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RURAL OLDER AMERICANS: UNANSWERED
QUESTIONS

WEDNESDAY, MAY 19, 1982

U.S. SENATE, -~
SpeciAL COMMITTEE ON AGING,
“ Washington, D.C.
The committee metbﬁ_urau.ant to notice, at 9:45 a.m., in room
5302, Dirksen Senate Office Building, Hon. Larry Pressler, presid-

mg’reeant: Senators Pressler, Grassley, and Burdick.

Also &resent: John C. Rother, staff director and chief counsel;
Karen Leichtnam, legislative asaistant to Senator Pressler; Angela
’l'htimia. staff assistant; and Eugene R. Cummings, printing assist-
ant.

OPENING STATEMENT BY SENATOR LARRY PRESSLER,
PRESIDING

Senator Pressrer. I call this meeting to order.

This is a Senate r.tsmg Committee hearing on “Rural Older
Americans: Unanswe uestions.” The purpose of this hearing is
somewhat unique. It is to build a record®egarding older Americans
who live in smaller tdowns and rural areas.

Now, there are severs! issues here. People might say: “Why is it
important to look into the circumstances of rural Americans who
are elderllf?" There are many facts we need to know. We want to
find out if their retirement habits are different, if their health care
needs are different. I find in visiting many small towns in my State

that a lot of rural elderly live in near poverty, because of the
high fuel bills, lack of transportation, and ce: problems that
face them that do not face urban residents. ) .

This commi has held a number of fileld hearings on this sub-

2 years, but this is the first one which will ap-
subject from a national perspective. Because my home
tate /of South ota is predominantly rural, I feel a special con-
cern for the problems of older persons li in rural areas. There
than 6 million people over living in rural areas,
Tl believe that we must establish a national priority to
determine the\needs of these people.
As most of us who have been involved in these know,

the lack of tionhubeenmamdlym as a major

lem for older Americans. e this is clearly true, I

’l'h“ o wonder if the problem does not go deeper tKan that.
ere is a

t deal we do not know about the problems of our
1)) .
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_rural citizens. I fear that many of our programs have been de-

gigned for urban areas, and then indiscriminately applied to rural
areas as an afterthought. I am not at all sure that tge problems of
our rural older citizens have been considered separately, but I
think that they must.

In the Older Americans Act, “rural communities™are defined as
those with less than 10,000 people. There are a number of problems
that are especially serious for those living in these small towns and
farms throughout the country. Many farm homes are older dwell-
ings with inadéquate insulation. This can cause winter heating
bills to become a terrible burden for retirees liwgg on fixed in-
comes. There are also indications- that- rural w%itizens may
have greater problems of income faintenance and may suffer from
poorer physical health than their urban counterparts. Despite indi-
cations of trends like these, there is very little systematic study of -
the special problems of rural senior citizens.

Even though the Federal Government collects an amazing body
of statistical information, there is very little available, for instance,
on the subject of rural retirement patterns. With cutbacks in staff,
in Federal agencies, it is highly unlikely that any new statistics
will be collected, and yet I think that the documentation of trends
like these could be very important in determining long-term solu-
. tions for the stability of the social security system.

In other areas, it would be very useful to have better information
concerning the recipients of current health care, nutrition, and
other programs. This information would help planners and law-
makers decide how to best target the use of tax dollars—The.abilit
to do so becomes increasing}y important as the competition fo -
eral dollars becomes more fierce. I have been a strong defender of .
Federal funding for programs for older Americans, but I know that
the case for these programs could be made much stronger with ap-
propriate supporting data. .

er¢ are a number of untested thothesea now circulating in
regard to the rural older American that could make a real differ-
ence in the way we plan for services, if they could be tested and
proven. Some researchers have suggested, for instance, that rural
people may have stronger support from their families and friends
than do those ih urban settings.: Others have presented the theory
that the rural elderly have less contact with their families than do
city dwellers because of a simple lack of proximity. The substantia-
tion of either of these theories could make a sifniﬁcant difference
in the kind of services provided for rural elderly, if only we knew .
which was true. ‘ \

It is my hope that pur witnesses today will be able to offer some
information about the true status of rural older Americans and

offer a clearer indication of where our legislative efforts should be - -

focused, in the future, in order to best provide or the needs of
rural older America.

So that is the purpose of the hearing, to take a look at this spe-
cial segment and to see if there are differences that we need to be
aware of as policymakers.

I now call on my friend, Senator Burdick.

‘Senator Burbick. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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In the interest of time, I ask unanimous consent that my opening
statement be placed in the record so we can get on with the hear-

-ing.
genator PressLer. Without objection, it is so ordered.
. (The prepared statement of Senator Burdick follows:]

STATEMENT or SzNator QuenTiN N. Bumbicx

Mr Chairman, [‘am glad that you arc holding this hearing todsy. As you rhefg”
know, | rocently held two hearings in North ota which focused on health care
for the rural elderly—one on this topic specifically, and a ‘socond on long-term
health care and the options available in the more rural areas of our country.

We do not have all the figures in on the rural elderly, but we do know that
over one-third of America's alder population lives in rural areas. And we know that
»the)" have special problcmu—inn&unw transportation and a chronic mortn;ge of
health professionals, to name two of the major ones in the health area. In North
Dakota, almost half of our counties are officinlly designated healtMshortage arcas.
and eight do not even have a practicing physician. Over 80 peroent of our doctors
serve people in the most populous counties, leaving 43 percent of the poople to be
served by logs than 20 percent. '

. Theee statistics mean problems when it comes to providing health care, especially
for the elderly. It is often difficult for the rural elderly to get to a doctor. and be-
cause of this. they tend to go less. Several providers at our hearings spoke out
strongly about the need for more preventive health care to counteract this problem.
In some of the | r senior centers in North Dekota, doctors, dentists, and nurses
are volunteering their time to provide such care #0 thuse who come to the centers.
This is a good iden for those in the larger towns, but in small communitics where
there is only one doctor or none at all, it ¢annot work. In these communitice, howev-
or. o mobile health van, staffed by & nurse, could make a big difference. A nurse or
similar health professional who mobility to travel to several smaller centers
would help to solve both the transportation problem and the accossibility problem.
This is an ides that has already been implemented in some States, and I think it is
a practical alternative for rural areas.

Another statistic We know s that our most rural communities are shrinking, leav
ing the old people there while the younger ones go off in soarch of better economic
ogportunmn. is is 0 trend that feeds upon itself and crestes terrible problems for
the older people left behind.

Today's economic problems make this problem capecially acute. Today even 8
prosperous rural community is seriously hurt by the recession, by high interest
rates and low farm prices. This kind of economy only lracdl up the abandonment of
the countryside. And it only creatos more sorious prablems of isolation and innccos-
sibility for the rural elderly. I think it is impartant for us to remember that a pros-

_ perous firm economy benefits more than just the farmers. It means o healthy rural

: Amarica, communitics where doctors and nurses are content to practico. where
young people can find jobs, where there are enough people to provide a community
of support and whero. as a result of all this, rura senior citizéns can enjoy happier
and hsalthier lives. ‘

With this hearing and the others we have held to investigate the lrocinl problems
of the rural elderly, this committee is building a good base of know edge about the
noeds of the rural clderly 1 look forward to working with the Senator from South
Dakota, our chairman. and the other membors of this committee to find the appro-
priate solutions.

Senator PressLEr. I first would like to call on Ruth Kobéll, legis-
lative assistant, National Farmers Union, Washington, D.C.

STATEMENT OF RUTH E. KOBELL, WASHINGTON, D.C,,
LEGISLATIVE ASSISTANT, NATIONAL FARMERS UNION

Ms. KoszLr. Thank you, Senator Pressler and Senator Burdick. I
appreciate the ogrortunit to be here to talk about what I see as
some of the problems and concerns of rural older people that we
need to address. - . ‘

I looked around for some of the resources that were available to
tell us at least what the problems were, and I found several.

.
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’ I was interested to note that Senator Dick Clark of this commit-
tee held field hearings 5 or 6 years ago on rural elderly, and I have '
attached to my statement an article ! developed by rural women
resardmg the problem. I jalso had the opportunity to talk about .

% older rural women at a special advisory committee down at the De-

% partment of Health and Human Services. I asked a group of our

own Farmers Union women, who were between 46 and 65 to list
* their concerns and their interests, and I have attached that to my .

statement because I think it outlines the problems that older
people themselves see; and I think this perhaps is most important.’

One of the great resources we have in looking at this issue has
been the report of the Rural White House Mini-Conferences, which
were convened by Green Thumb in a series of six conferences
across the country. Over 650 older people who served as delegates
drafted, under some nine headings, their concerns and their recom-

mendations. I would hope that the report which was put into the

hands of each delegate to the White House Conference might be
considered as a part of your hearing record,® because I think it out-
lines rather carefully a lot of the discussion and the direction that
those folks gave.

You outlined a lot of the problems that we recognized. Transpor-
tation is one. Our rgilroads are not even hauling very much farm
produce anymore. They are certainly not hauling people in most
places. I react to almidst any xlﬁiven rural problem by thinking about
my own home counly in Montana—Blaine County—which was
transversed by the Great Northegn Railroad. I recognize that trans-
portation is difficult not only because we do not have public trans-
portation in most of our small towns, we do not even have taxis for
those who have to occasionally use one. Many older people have
problems keeping a car or getting insurance. There is a tendency to |
assume that when you hit 70 years old, you are probably not a safe |
driver without any further consideration or testing. If you do not
have insurance, you cannot drive a car, you are isolated regardless
of tl::’gct that you may have good ‘health and a wide variety of
inte .

We have been excited with the development of the so-called
senior citizen buses, which provide transportation in small towns |
as well ‘as larger cities. In many rural communities, they in fact go |
out into the country maybe once a week, and it has been a great. |

\

help.

Egnployment was the second concern of the people who attended
the miniconferences. We have been proud of the fact that the
senior community service employment program has developed a
demonstration of ways in which older people as a resource in their
community can supplement their incomes. I think you are very
right that we do not know enough about retirement income. We do
know that farmers were not brought under social security until
1965, and that farm income has for many years been so low that
farmers have not been able to pay more the minimum social
security tax into the fund, and so when they retire, they have less

., retirement income.

1 Retained in committes flles. ) |
* Se0 appendix, item 1, page 45. |
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We know that in many small towns and rural areas, wage levels
are lower, and therefore, again, peogle pay less into the social secu-
rity program. And social security overall is, I think, the most im-

t source of retirement income, because mafiy small business-
es do not have the resources to develop an adequate private pen-
sion program. So income was a very important concern.

Nutrition was an important concern. You would think that cer-
tainly, peogle out close to the farms would not have to worry with
nutrition. But sgain, back to transportation, it is often very diffi-
cult to get into town to buy groceries. I was interested a couple of
years ago in s seminar that the Swedish Embassy hosted. They
said that in n, the rural mail carriers, as part of their re-

sponsibility, can bring groceries out, or medicine, or other things

for isolated rural people. And I had thought since that perhaps it is
one of the resources that we should look at, because we still have,
in most areas, at least some rural mail service yet, although it is

I think a major concern—and this is not isolated to rural areas,
but I think i, becomes increasingly important—is the opportunity
for older e to stay in the mainstream of their communities.

is includes not only helring out on a volunteer basis, which
many people do automatically, ‘and do not even count all of the vol-
unteer work thei'1 do, but being involved in policymaking, whether
it is sitting on the school board, or county commissioners, and so

on. .

So I am delighted that you have called this hearing. I hope it is
one step in moving ah to best use the resources, use | am
sure.you are very right; our resources are going to be limited. One
of my concerns, as we move to a Freater emphasis on local govern-
ment, is that the pressures on local government are many, and
that the funds available may be under great pressure to be used for
infrastructure such as repair of bridges and highways, and some-
times slight the human resource needs of additional services for
people, young or old. :

I am delighted that you have a number of.other witnesses to
_brin sgeci " expertise to this area, and I would like to stop there. I
would hope that my statement might be included in the record,
and I would be happy to answer any questions.

Senator PressLzr. Ruth, we thank you very much. Your pre-
pared statement will be entered into the record at this point.

(The prepared statement of Ms. Kobell follows:] ‘

Prerancp StatemenT o Ruths E. Kossw

Mr. Chairman, | am Ruth E. Kobell, legisiotive amsistant, National Farmers
Union, Washi . D.C, We appreciate the opportunity to discuss with you the spe-
cial concerns of older women and men in rural commupnities. We belisve it ls impor-
tant to identify what we do know and what information is not available about the
condition of older people and the access to and delivery of services in rural commu-
nities. *

We do know that the ﬂ-w out-mglmtion of g:plo in recorded history took
EI::: in the first half of this century in the United States with the exodus of people'

the farms to the cit{b The revolution in Iture forced many off the farms
and into urban set which they were ill-trained. It left many older people
without jobs that their traditional skills and put them into pockets of poverty
i{n smfall towns and down country lanes.

©
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Devslopment Policy Act of 1980. It that rural grow tly
the 1970’v—in population 16.8 percent and in loyment by 28.6
% > also MWM that im ] L

cent. relative income positions provement ap-
pears to have ceased by the mid-1970's. Rural mnullonlyaopcmmd
metropolitan ares incomes.
Nonmetro population totaled 63 million in 1980 ( 1974 SMSA boundaries), 28
percent of the United States total. From 1970 to 1980, the nonmetro population
growth rate exceeded the urban nbforthcﬂmﬁmolnlﬁo Non-
metro areas grew by more than lthmasmiluon whom mi-
ted from metro aress. This growth m- of the country, al-
h some ABOrurlleountlu( the Corn Belt, and -
the ppi Delta) continued to lonpopu on

In 1979, nonmetro nonfarm employment totaled 21.5 million (28 percent of uml
United States nonfarm empl t).

Farming continues to bea sobrce of income, providing 20 percent or more
ofr-ru‘m ' and laborers’ incoms in nearly 670 rural countiss.

beliove it is particularly important that you have instituted this line in inquiry.
becuuno while we are beginning to study moro closely the breakdown botween mot-

politan and nonm litan conditiogs, there has been little or no statistical in
formntion thond y about rural oldur people and the delivery of urvicu
to them. uch more detailed information about crop and livestock
production then .,bom thi.- important and m(n' po]mlnt.lon of runl America. |
am dﬂ“ﬁhw that you have invited Culvln e, of the Economic
at the U.S. Department ture to you an analysis
of cumu lnformut.lon regarding rural pooplo and ‘their li tterns. Mr. Beals

boenmcognlndformmyyunmthnouuﬁndlml lnnr«uofwhnt

we know about rural dovelopment.

Jun last fall, we were reminded that our information about the impact of Fodonl
expenditures on rural senior citizens was limited whon offices asked
the Social Security Admlnlltrntlon how many of their wnnlmonu would be harmod

.ochi security. The Social Security Adminis-
tration was not able to provide that information thout & special computsr run.
Their information was dmrly not broken down on a rural urban basis.

Ono of the best ways to about the concerns of rural citisens is to ask them. |
&u tl:im to nmh'tlléu Senator ?;ck Clark, o; llgqlénb.r of thil Senate Spoci:lf
mmittee on Aging a hearing mudl problems
rural olderly. Pnrt of that hearing was "problm of Older
Women in Rural Areas,” which was inserted in Conureul Reeord and which

lnmltuchln;npunofyourhuﬂnlnewd
ltwlllbounmltocompnnthoednmmmdnnduofﬁmo htcr !

Whonlwuuk.dtolpukm “The Profils and Needs of Rural Women ¢5 to 66
Years” to the Secretary's % Committes on the Rights and Responsibilities of
Women in the Deputment of th and Human Services in October 1980, 1 asked
a group of Farmers Uniah women mnthouno“ﬁtoﬁﬁwhowmntundln'
our Farmers Union Women's Conference to give me their recommendations. 1 am
attaching & copy of their recommendations which included the need for improved
educational norpartunltlu and job training, the gaps in social sscurity for farm

le, neod for improved health care an orpoﬂunlt.lu to move into community

other opportunity to ask rural people about their concerns was ded when
Omn Thumb acted us cenvener of the rural miniconferences for 1981 wmu
House Conference on Aging 'I‘wothounndrunlcit!umlncludlnlﬁﬂ)dol
mdmnnyoﬂnrrurllludmmotlndxemfnmmdu the summsr and lof
1980 to discuss in detail recommendations for the facing rural solder
people. 1 am attachi leopyofthorcponpnpnndﬁomth-confmcumd
mldhopﬂhltltmlctbolncludodu .lfou
upon.whlchwu t in the hands of all, lmtutothawﬁlwmuﬂom
on Aging, ted out that over one-third of cur Nation's elderly (60
u.l) llve in America. Ninstosn percent of older rural citizens have in-
comu low the poverty level.

-
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The six rural miniconferences fellowed a large number of local discussions and
district and Stats meetings to review in dstail the concerna of rural communities for
their senior citissns. ‘
the importance of transpottation in rlu:lunu mdk:lymm."dc.

em ce ru asa componen

transcontinsntal railroads help to settls tho farms and rural communities of
this Nation. Our farm-to-farm market rosds fed the produce of our farms into the
railroads for trans, from ocsan to ocean and later the interstate highway system
moved produce and people.
But we who grew up in rural areas recognise that t
dwnn.‘rio“uﬁnomthohoz::wnwmnu?hthomom ‘:‘. the m
trains running provide m nger dervice. large com-
mnlu operate only between town and cities. m; small towns simply isclated

any public transportation.

Over go munt of older people living in rural aress do not own a car. Without
transportal many older rural peopls who could and would like to work cannot
simply because thsy have no way of getting to and from a job.

D re, many elderly and rural citisens who e good health are confined
to their homses because they don’t own a car, cannot afford to drive a car or simply
do not drive. Remember that 8 woman who is now 70 grew up at a time when cars *
were very scarce. They may or may not have had an opportunity to lsarn to drive in
later years. Often it is it for oldor people to got or keep automobile insurance
oven though thay have driven for many ysars. They dare not drive without it.

Local officials know that transportation is often the one ingredient that makes all
other programs or’services work.

Employment was the second ranking issue of the dclnm to the rural confer.
ences. Our Groen Thumb has demonstrated how ious older peoplo are
to continue to work and con to to the well-being of their communitiocs.

Employment opportunitiss are often limited in small towns and rural communi.
tios and the training, education and placement are often limited. In many rural
States, the ployment Servico may have offices only in one-half or one-third in
the counties in a rural State. A rural resident may have to travel many milss, at
mndnubgrmnnl exponse even to r withithe Employment Service and so
be recogn as seeking work. Many oldor rural citizens who would like to work
are simply not even counted as part of the work force, how many we do not know.

loyment training and programs have tended to concentrate in larger

urban aress and so again many rural, particularly older, citisens are deprived of the
rtunity for skills training.

ousing prablems among the rural elderly are acute and often tragic in human

terms. y elderly rural persons are living in substandard housing with inad-

squate plumbing or sswage facilitiss, or none at all, and many still have unsafe

sources of drinking water. Sixty percent of ull our Nation's substandard housing ia

in rural America, and one of four such homes are occupied by an older person or

family.
Comparatively, | believe more clder rural citizens their own home but many
of them are over 50 ysars old and are not enorgy nt 80 that they use @ great
deal of costly ensrgy in providing heat. We are ha that in South Dakota and
other States, crews of Green Thumb workers have able to weathorise an:
r homes of older low-income citisens but fouch, much more noods to be done.
te housing has been built in many small towns and I think that it is ons
of the important contributions which Federal housing programs have made. | am
delighted to know that in Montans with whom 1 have worked aro able to
move into an apartment in the county seat or even in the small town close to where
Lhay farmed so they can continus to maintain their community tiss.
ut | d expect that not enough of thess are available to mest the needs. We
need to kn: whntmnmmmmmwyfmmm is often
SCarce in areas, as in fin: assistanco to private developers for build-
of multifamily h afTordable to low and modsrate incomse older persons.
utrition ls extremsly important for older citisens and those living in rural areas
would seem to have ready access to the source of food from our productive Ameri
can farms, But again transportation often makes it difficult\ mwunm' to buy
mwnpplhz‘foht;‘l"ood stamps. 'l'holnum rogra. mum}nrthlol
Amesricans . hnnrmculu portan providing not only we
u”bdmecdumnh but an opportunity to oochl{u for those older people who can get to
center,

But many times the senior citisens bus only reachss down a country road once a
wesk or once every 2 weeks, and if we continus to cut back on public funds to sup-

1i
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port these fragile rural transportation networks those older pecple who rely on

them for transportation will again be cut off from needed services.

1 have besn encouraged to nots in the of our Green Thumb workers that

an increasing number of our workers have able to build solar green houses to
0 wmwm?drmmﬁnmmmm%zfm%
p in deve pmmunity gardsns or plowing up a on or an

gmmmwmﬁ Again this hs! lnmlnmghwﬁtdhtluhld woll -
of rural sen cit[vnmwhooﬂ.n have the space to have a but may

not be able to physically ;d)? it up.

Two recommendations of the conference delegates was that food stamps should be
mailed directly to rurnl elderly residents and that nm»lul commodities held by the
US. Department of Agriculture should be distributed to charitable and nonproflt
o isations. They also recommended that alternative processing techniquss be de-
veloped using volunteer labor for Tennin; excess crops and in community canning
centers. | notice that ono Green Thumb crew runs a solar gresn houso during the
winter, uses it durh:{ the summoer to dry fruits for better storage.

The ngroblom of yrockmnf costs strikos at thoss most vulnerablo and
least able to pay. the rural odm;may depend on costly private ‘ tion
and as we have monuonﬁ before they are most likely to live in poorly lated
housing, with ljttle or no ic resources for improving it. They find the person-
al i rewarding and being able to stay in thelr own homes, which may not

. have a grost resalo valuo, stil) is the best use of their limited incoms.

Retirement incums and economic well being are overriding concerns of rural oldsr
peopls. Farm income hes fluctuated so that not since the early 1950's have farmers
recoived o parity price for their products. In many years, jpet iarm income has boen-
s0 low that farmers have besn abls to pay onl minimum socinl security tax,
thus cutting their eventual retirement incoms. Farmers were not brought under the
social security program until 1965 and so do not have a long history contribution.
Farm women are particularly disadvantaged becauso although they contribute ms-
terially to the farm operation they are not ablo to pay into social security in their
own right without special incorporation of the family farm.

Wago levels in rural communitiss have also often boen low so that many older
rural residonts wore not able to earn maximum social security coverage and for
many of them this 18 thelr only aouree of e o mension prog N g ta o

ve not been in & on to vate programs. wWe ow
jm*hnuhomunr:’unlnw'm

Health oare delivery is s major challenge for all rural residents. , distance
and transportation costs increase the difficulty and the affordability of health care.
The Fedoral Hill-Burton Hospital Construction legislation helped to provide hospital
facilitiss in many rural areas. But many doctors havo chosen to practice in more
lucrative settings and we have been slow to develop the alternate health care deliv-
or{that m h:‘ggin to moet some of the needs in rural communities.

tis cularly important for rural older people to have adequate health care as
close to home and supporting community structures as possible. Yet often the only
solution is to place an ill or disabled clder person in a nursing mru from
frionds and family. Isolation in this case es in other cases is a major Jing situa-

tion., .

Nothing is so fundamsntal or im to the quality of life to older rural
Americans than having the rtunlgy to fully pordc?mu ¥n the social and spiritu-
al life of their community. Too often we tend to isolate mlo on the baals of age,

’ ::Eonnbimy involvement. The network of social and emotional support required to
i

asking them to “go sit in the rocking chair” outside the nstream of community
el

fo moaningful is gained through the associstions and fellowships of family,
friends, no)fhborl. church and community social and economic affairs.
The development of rural electrification has been critically important in raising

. the living standards for many rura! citisens. Equally important was the rural telo-

phone p which has extended communication down most country byw:g:

A crucial concern in many rural communitiss at the moment is the availability of
cablo television without whz:h many rural citissns are limited in this important tool
of information and recroation, the family television set. The Federal Communication
Commission seems slow in providing opportunities for rural telsphone caoperatives
to $prnu rural cable telovision systems. ' ‘ ‘

s are slowly developing a recognition of older Americans as a growing nationa!
resource. | mdwmmqﬂnthunudhh-hhwwgl‘plulnthdr
communitiss and to rely on delivery of basic social services, The bes!
d"'“""‘"dol’"""’" is of no valus to thoso who need it but cannot participate. The
axtension of education and information and the direct delivery of in-home services

o
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are extremely important to older ‘rural residents. No person or family should be
denied sssistance ﬁmp&wm of where they have to reside.

Y.t'inpwvidins i md:h:“rensnw:or_edmdsxly i mmﬁwmmf"m%
agencies pre services n cousins or use outreac
and service is considered “not cost-efficient.”

Scattered populations are more expensive and more difficult to serve on a regular
basis. But are those hidden thousands somehow less important or less needed, or
somehow second class Americans, because they are rural residents?

1 believe that more attention is being paid to collecting some of the data needed to
review the needs of rural populations.

The Economic Research Service of the Department of Agriculture published “Fed-
eral Funds in 1979- hic Distribution and Recent Trends” on April 1982.
This report summarized sutribution of Federal funds in 1979. It points out that
Federal .per capita fund.i.nﬁ remains unevenly divided among the regions. I believe
that this publication coul ?rove a valuable resource for your in starting to
draw together the outlines of special needs for rural senior citizens. .

Much more needs to be done and we are anxious to work with you and the com-
mittee in developing ways to more effectively and efficiently use the resources both
. mm&it:l?. and Jocal to meet the special needs and use the special skills of older

Cl o . - .

Senator PressLER: Senator Grassley has arrived. Do you have an
opening statement, Chuck, or shall we just proceed with the ques-
i

»

tions? v

STATEMENT BY SENATOR CHARLES E. GRASSLEY

_ Senator GrassLey. Well, I would only put my opening statement

in the record and I guess the only thing I would highlight is that
. part of my opening statement which refers to a study that was
done by the subcommittee that I was ranking Republican on when
I was a Member of the House, and we had a report out called “The
Future Directions for Aging Policy, A Human Service Model,” and
we have some suggestions in there for how we can have local con-

trol and local decisionmaking as one solution to some of the prob-.

lems. The other thing is to incorporate to the greatest extent possi-
ble a combination of private sector as well as Government-related
solutions to the problems. E . “

. And the whole issue was more or less that we have got to get
away from the idea that the sole—and 1 want to emphasize, the
sole solution—to the problems come from what we can do here in
Washington, D.C. .

.So 1 want to thank you for your leadership in this area, and ¥
think that the extent to which we look at broad nation?l problems
and their solution, we must also consider the minority of our
people living in rural areas, sometimes it is difficult to bring spe-
cial attention to their special needs, and your hearing here does
that, and I want to compliment you forthat.

Thank you very much. -~

[The prepared stajement of Senator Grassley follows:]

PaepARED STATEMENT OF SENATOR CHARLES E. GRASSLEY

Mr. Chairman, the subject of this morning’s hearing will summon up different
images for those of us listening to the witnesses, whether sitting here as a Member
of the Senate or as a part of the audience. .

For my part, I have to admit to seeing rural older Americans as my friends and
relatives back in Iowa—small town ents or farm dwellers—these people helped
lhwe my viem-..ghiloaophy, afid work habits. o

ithin the last quarter century, the older American, - become the focus of a
great deal of attention and this attention has created ameffective lobby of special
interest groups. Though much of the work of these interest g¥oups is helpful to the

‘ . .
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elderly, the tendency to ignore local needs in favor of broad national priorities and
policy has removed attention from the grassroots level.

\ In the case of aging problems, I hope the decisionmaking can more effectively
return to the hands of loeal people and local officials. We can no longes look to si
plistic solutions such as service cutbacks or funding increases to deal with comple
nationa) problems. These only deal with the symptoms—not the disease—and it is
time to deal with the realities of a population growing older.

When I was ranking Republican of the House Select Committee on Aging, Con-
gressman Biagyi and I headed up a Subcommittee on Human Services. This commit- N
tee issued a study in 1980 called “Future Directions for Aging Policy, a Human -
Service Model.” It should be noted that this bipartisan report was pubﬂshed before
Reaganomics became a household word. )

_ The study forecast:
" 1. Those truly in need of services will be over 75.

2. A preventive approach in social, as well as medical programs should be encour-
aged.

3. Emphasis should be placed on decentralization—a return to loal authority.

4. Money management role should be taken from planning and advocacy agencies
since technical assistance and money management are incompatible roles.

5. Emphasis should also be placed on private sector involvement—fund-raising, +
families, neighborhoods, voluntary associations and religious groups.

6. The role of the area agencies on aging, as local resource centers, must be

" strengthened, especially as to planning from the bottom up and supporting and fully
utilizing in-place systems—families, neighborhoods, voluntary and religious associ-
ations, and racial and ethnic subgroups

Nowhere does the suggested road map for aging programs apply more realistically
than in rural America. .

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator PressLEr. Thank you very much, Senator Grassley.

Ruth, I am particularly concerned about the effect of the admin-
istration proposals for the title V program. Some have told me that
the loss of the Green Thumb workers will have a domino effect on
our small towns—that is to say that many small town nutrition
programs rely on these workerg, and if they lose them, they will be
unable to hire people to take ?i)eir place and to staff the nutrition
sites.

- Hew do you see this situation?

Ms. KoseLL. This is the report that we have received, that a good
‘many nutrition programs have had to rely on the help .of some
part-time Green Thumb workers and other title V workers to keep -
the program going. I remember stopping in a small town up in Wis-
consin not too long ago, in which they said, “Buthif-e lose this, we
may lose our nutrition program. We have already had our funds
cut back; we are cutting out Wednesday dinners, and everybody is
bringing pot-luck on Wednesday.” So I think there is automatically
an adaptation on a volunteer basis. But if we lose our Green
Thumb workers, we simply will not be able to keep the nutrition
sites opeh, which also is a base for the social activity; the opportu-
nity to come together. A Avoman who had considerable emotional
problems was playing the piano for the group, and it had proved a
therapy that was very useful, because she could get out and work
with other people. }

I am delighted to learn that, I believe yesterday in the markup of
the urgent supplemental program by the Senate Appropriations
Committee, Senator Schmitt's package of amendments to the
House bill—H.R. §922—added the $210 million which was needed
to keep the program running from October 1, 1982 to June 30,
1983. We hope that will move along, because otherv?e, we would

_— N
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be faced with an October 1 shutdown for what we think is one of ,
the most'constructive programs.

It is a ‘demonstration program. A number of our Green Thumb
workers are building solar greenhouses. Sometimes in the“winter-
time, theéy grow vegetables for the senior citizen center, or for some
of the other groups in town. They also grow seedling plants in the
"spring. In many rural areas, you do not have a lot of access to
garden supply. But then in the summertime, they use the heat of
the solar nhouse to dry fruits and vegetables. I think title V is
a great demonstration of the way in which what is basically a
small program in terms of Federal investment provides demonstra-
tion and leadership in new areas of activity. :

Senator PressLER. I shall now yield to Senator Burdick for his
questions. '

Senator Burbicx. Thank you. .

Ruth, it is good to see you again. ,
¢ Ms, KopeLL. 1t is nice to see you, Senator. :

Senator Burbick. We seem to rely on you for a lot of testimony
that applies to the upper Midwest and the farm areas, and we are
always pleased to hear from you. i

I know the Farmers Union just issued a study on the depressed
farm economy. How do you see the farm situation affecting the
rural elderly? .

Ms. KoseLL. Well, of course, it has a dramatic effect. Historical-
ly, if I can go back a minute, Green Thumb was startéd because we
recognized that a good many middle- and older farmers had
been forced off the farm and were caught in the pockets of poverty
of rural areas, and they needed some supplemental income. .

The fact is a good many of the farmers now being forced off the
land are probably not older farmers, but younger farmers who
have invested 10 or 15 years of their lives and their energies to try
and get started in farming. Our high interest rates and low farm
prices have just brought many of them to their knees and will con-
tinue to do so. This of course immediately reacts on older people in
the community, many of whom are the parents of those farmers.

So it is a ripple-effect. I was not able to find out—but I am sure
gomebody has the ratio—of how many small businesses go out of
business when a group of farmers go out of business. We have one
county in which they said there were 47 farm sales in the next 2
months. That is a pretty fast sellout of a basic industry. -

Senator Burpick. The two A:fing Committee hearings I held in
North Dakota recently on health care made it clear to.me-that
raral elderly are not apathetic. Thei' have good ideas about how to
meet their needs. What do you think the Government could do best
to help the rural elderly, especially in the health care area?

Ms. KosxLr. Well, I think one of the great steps we took was the
Hill-Burton Hospital Construction Act, which brought modern,
small hoepitals to many communities. I must say that I have found
-in some communities, although the law mandated the use of those
hospitals for pedple who could not pay or who had medicare or
medicaid, that is not always enforced, and so enforcing access to
these hospitals is important. : ’

I think the clinics which have been set up in a number of rural -
areas are extremely important. If older people need highly sophisti-

)
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cated medical care, they will go to Bismarck or to Great Falls or to
a larger area to get it. But often, they need a maintenance kind of
service, checking on the blood pressure, being sure that they get
continuing care. And I think this might be one of the most efficient
uses of our health care systems.
Senator BurDICK. One last question. As you know, home health
and homemaker services are in great demand by the rural elderly
- but are usually unavailable in smaller rurdl towns. Now, Green
Thumb reaches out into a lot of these little towns. Has anyone
given any thought to letting Green Thumb workers provide those
services? If Green Thumb workers can work in nutrition sites and
similar community service programs, couldn’t they serve here, too?
Do you see this as a poesibility down the road?

. KoBeLL. This 18 a possibility that has been implemented. We
have had over 500 Green Thumbers who are doing just that. They
not only come out and give home health care; they may drive
somebody into town to check with the doctor or to get groceries or
to fill. out their social security forms or whatever business they
need to do. It is again a demonstration of the ways in which a very
limited amount of financial investment can stretch services and be
very cost-effective. As you know, someone who has a little help can
often stay in their homes. If they do not have any help, they end
up in a nursing home, using their savings and before ve;y lon,
havling to go on medicaid, which is an extremely expensive Federa
outlay.

Senator BurpicK. Thank you very much for your contribytion
_this morning and thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Senator PressLER. Senator Grassley. . *
Senator GrassLEy. Thank you. ‘
Senator Pressler chose as the title of this hearing, “Unanswered
Questions.” One of the unanswered questions that I have been
dealin% with——and I hope that there has been a little progress
made, but I guess it does not stand out enough, and I am satisfied
that it has been made—and that is, in the 8 years that I have been
on aging committees in the House and Senate, we in the Midwest,
or I should say, rural America, have always been concerned about
. the problems of transportation of the elderly. In fact, in our areas
of the country, they always say that it is pretty basic to having any
other services work. And your experience in past hearings on rural
elderly have always featured this common agreement of the need
for transportation in rural areas. .
Well, we have a nice national policy in the sense that this is a
concern and something that ought to be dealt with, but the details
always need to be worked out. So one of the thingy that I thought
about, or I guess I want to ask, is your ideas on the fact that maybe
we have a lack of interagencg cooperation. I think of transporta-
tion for senior citizens, I think of some transportation we have for
handicapped people, and of course, we have got the usual school-
buses that are transporting people around. We even have some
churches involved in transportation. All of these things, in their
own way, trying to solve their own problems and to serve the needs
of their own pe:ﬁle, with very little cooperation. And when you see
empty or parti empty buses going up and down the road, you
ink in terms of what could we'do or these networks to be serv-
(§)
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' ing mutual interests and in the end, hopefully, enhance the trans-
portation opportunities for the senior citizens, as well as all others
fave 5 given this any thought, and d rogress havi

ve you given this any tho , and do you see p
beznlgaasge s?nce we first held those hearings in Iowa back in E’?ﬁ
an

Ms. KoszrL. As you know, we have run a couple of demonstra-
tions of interagency cooperation on transportation. They have not
always been totally succeesful in reaching their goals. Partly, I
think, people get accustomed to doing things the same way.

One of the problems that I have been told is difficult, and yet I
suspect should have a solution, is that of insurance. They say,
“Well, we cannot use the schoolbus for disabled people because the
insurance will not cover it,” or {‘We cannot use it for senior citi-
zens.” And I remember several years ago suggesting that it would
be great if the Senate Aging Committee, the White House, some-
body on a prestigious level, simply got some of the insurance people
together and said: ‘‘Listen, there must be ways—you have met a lot
of other problems on insurance. You have met high-risk costs and -
so on—to work out an adaptation so that we can éxpand our uses
of vehicles across the organization lines.” I think it is extremely
important that we do this. :

rtainly, while we may have had a decrease of 2 or 3 cents in
gasoline, we are going to have an energy problem continuing, and
as you say, it is terrible to have empty buses running up and down.

- I would also point out that down in Texas about 8 or 9 years ago,
after Green Thumb had demonstrated the fact that we could use
older people in scheduling and driving buses, the State of Texas ap-
propriated funds on the State level to set up what is called the
senior transportation employment program int some 40 or 50 coun-
ties in west Texas. They continued to appropriate funds on a State
level, year after year, to maintain that transportation. The buses
are repaired, I think, in the State prison, as part of the training
program for prisoners. The buses are driven and managed by
mople who meet the same eligibiligdguidelines as Green Thumb. 1

ve had a letter from a county Croes up in Wisconsin, who
pointed out that they sponsor a rural transportation program. They
get financial support for their buses, their fuel, and o on, I think,
through the county commissioners. ’fheti got their drivers and their
dispatchers from Green Thumb, and the Red Cross people them-

selves provided some overall supervision and responsibility for the

project.
S{) maybe what we need to do is talk more about the ways in
which we can spread the demonstrations that we have already ex-
perienced in meeting some of these needs. I would sus that one
of the great steps forward would be to figure out what the prob-
lems are with insurance.

Senator GrassLzy. Thank you. ' :

Senator PresspLEr. Let me say that the Senators can submit addi-
tional questions for the record to any witnesses or indeed, can
submit questions,-and we will try to submit them to the appropri-
ate agency to get a specific answer. “ ’

Ruth, et me ask one final question. In your opinion, what could
be done to alleviate the problems of income maintenance from

Q . ‘
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which rural women suffer disproportionately? You might- expand
on that a bit. Do rural elderly women suffer from problems, or do
they have different experiences, or do we need to be especially con-
cerned about them, as compared to elderly women in general?

Ms. KoseLs. I think rural women, by and large, probably have
less opportunities for education and training. I am reminded of
vour definition of communities of 10,000 and less, because you do
not have junior colleges out there, at least not in Montana or
South Dakota. You may have an agricultural extension service, but
this often is not focused on training for employment or income en-
hancement.

Again, we have limited employment opportunities in many areas
and a great many rural women are homemakers most of their
lives. Farm women particularly may farm with their husbandy a
good ?‘art of their lives and then be widowed and lose the farm and
find that they have got no recognized employment skills. We think
they have marketable skills, in terms of maintaining a home and
helping to run a farm and to manage the assets. But they start out
late in life, even paying social security, so that quite often a
woman’s social security is less than that for which she is eligible as
a spouse.

arm women are not eligible to pay into social security unless a
farm is incorporated and the farmer and his wife are put on pay-
roll as such, so that they lose the disability coverage of social secu-
rity. as well as the retirement coverage, and the protection for
their dependents.

So yes, I think it is a real problem. I think again, it is probably a
matter of a combination of resources. The Women's Educational
Equity Act provided some targeting of resources, and also some rec-
ognition of the fact that this enhances the whole wealth of the
community. Over half of the farmers in this country have one
member of the family workinf off the farm. Of course, that is
largely because you have such lousy farm prices that they have to
work off the farm to buy groceries. But I think farm woinen have
often, from a variety of directions, been limited in their opportuni-
ties for employment.

Senator PressLER. | want to get that point straight on social se-
curity. If the farm is not incorporated so the husband and wife can
both be on the payroll, over the years, the wife does not have a se
arate social security account, so therefore, she would not qualify,
for example, for disability, but she would qualify for social security
pavments if her husband dies. ,

Ms. KoBeLL. As a spouse, but not in her own right as having con-
tributed, and a good many women, as you know, ride the tractor,
keep the accounts, run the dairy farm, or whatever, so that they
are making a professional contribution, and yet by law, they are
not alloweg to contribute to social security unless they have a spe-
cia] incorporation status.

Senator PressLer. Sure. Even if they(do not ride the tractor, they
are cooking and maintaining the home.\_

Ms. KoBeLL. Yes, but more than that, they really are an impor-
tant part of the management of that business.

Senator PresspLEr. Ruth, we may have additional questions for
vou for the record. We appreciate your coming. I am going to have
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lunch today with your national president, Mr. Stone, and our State
president, and we appreciate your work very much.

Ms. KosxrL. Thank you. I appreciate that.

Senator Pressrer. Next, I will call on Calvin Beale, Program
Leader, Economic Development Division, U.S. Department- of Agri-
culture, Washington, D.C. ) -

Calvin, if you can summarize your opening statement somewhat,

we will have some questions for you. "

STATEMENT OF CALVIN L. BEALE, WASHINGTON, D.C., PROGRAM
LEADER, ECONOMIC- DEVELOPMENT DIVISION, US. DEPART-
MENT OF AGRICULTURE

Mr. Beare. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. a

I propose to give a brief overview of the population and related
characteristics of the older rural So ulation.

There is no standard program definition of “rural.” We have sev-
eral different definitions. And when the results of the 1980 popula-
tion census finally become available, we will be able to class the
statistics for different versions of rurality and can tailor them
more to your needs. For this hearing, it is neceesary for the most
part to rely on surveys whose residential dimension is that of met-
ropolitan and nonmetropolitan. In general, the numbers and char-
acteristics” of nonmetropolitan people are rather similar to rural,
although a nonmetropolitan area can include a city of as large as
49,000 people, but it would not include the many rural people who,
live in the outlying parts of officially metropolitan counties.

In 1980, we about 9 million nonmetropolitan residents who
were 65 and over. I believe you may have cited a figure of 5 million
in your opening statement. If you did, then I would say that you
are actu 3? understating the numbers of these people. There may’
be about 300,000 who are in institutions, and the data on character-

istics that we have are for the remaining approximately 8.7 mil-

lion.

But if we had the definition that you used of rural and towns of
less than 10,000, I am confident that even with that definition, the
number would not be less than 8 million in the 1980 census.

From a regional point of view, the South has far more elderly
rural people than any other region—about 45 percent of them—
and the Midwest from Ohio to the Dakotas has about another 30
percent. So three-fourths of them are located in those two regions,
whereas the metropolitan elderly population is much more widely

distributed from a regional point view. The number of older °

rural and smalltown people has been growing very rapidly i
recent years by ‘around 2% percent, per year. This is far more than
double the growth rate ¢f the U.S. population as a whole, and is
roughly 16 percent higher than the rate at which the older metro-
politan population has been increasing.

The percentage that older people comprise of the total population
in rural areas runs around 12 percent, about one-eighth, compared
with about one-tenth of the total in the metro areas. However,
there are great disparities between different of the country in
the percentage that older people make up of the total, and I have
illustrated that with a map. map shows the nonmetropolitan
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counties which have one-sixth or more of their population consist-
ing of persons 65 years of ‘age and over. There are about 500 coun-
ties like that now, which is about one-fifth of all rural and small-
town counties. Those that are lined on the map have between one-
sixth and one-fifth of their population now 65 and over, and the
counties that are dotted have 20 percent or more, one-fifth or more.
You will notice immediately how strongly they are concentrated in
a North-South Belt from Minnesota and the Dakotas in the North
down to Texas in the South, plus some outlying areas such as Flor-
ida. ‘
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In the agricultural areas on that map, such as the Dakotas, and
parts of lowa, Kansas, Nebraska, the high percentages result from
, out-movement of younger people because of the heavy dependence
on agriculture, and the lack of alternative job opportunities. A
higher percentage of older people develops because so many of the
young have moved away. In areas such as the central Texas hill
country or the Missourt Ozarks or the Upper Great Lakes, or in
Florida, the high percentages stem from tge in-movement of older
people seeking nonmetropolitan areas for retirement.

1 mentioned there are about 500 counties on the map, which is
for 1978. In 1970, there were only 125 counties with this high a per-
centage of the elderly, so there is a very rapid increase in the
number of rural and small-town counties that have comparatively
high percentages of older people. Naturally, in these areas, then,
there is a comparatively high need for services for the elderly in
comparison with other types of services, and the elderly voters do
gradually become a substantial part of the electorate, though we do
not have any county in which they are a majority of the electorate.

High percentages like this are much-inore common in nonmetro-
politan areas than they are in metropolitan areas—St. Petersburg,
in Pinellas County, Fla., would be a notable exception to that. You
can have neighborhoods within urban municipalities or counties at
high percentages, but in terms of county governmental units, it is
predominantly a rural phenomenon.

A number of older people in the last decade, perhaps 15 years,
have been moving into the rural areas. We think this is running at
a net of about 45,000 people per year. And the movement extends
down to the not-yet-older population, thoee 556 to 64 years of age.
There is no net movement of elderly people in after about age 75.
With advancing age, some of them seem to feel it necessary to
move back to the cities, with widowhood or declining health capac-
ity.

The second map is on net migration—nonmetropolitan counties
with high levels of net improvement of older ple. The rate
shown would be the equivalent of growth of the elderly population
by at least one-eighth in every 10 years from net inmovement—
those are the lined counties—but the dotted counties are growing
at a rate of about 20 percent in older population over 10 years from .
inmovement.
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The difference between the two maps is immediately apparent.
Many of the counties that are havin%. net inmovement of older
EeoK e are much widely spread than the counties that have

igh percentages oEﬂ, elderly in the total population. This can come
about because sa mdny of the counties having substantial inmove-
ment”“of older geople are also having inmovement of younger

ut

people as well. some of these growth areas are advancing to
the state of the counties, we saw on the rrevious mff. You can
notice the rapid inmovement of older peo? e into the Upper Great
Lakes area. It is no longer just a Sun Belt phenomenon. You can
see Florida and Arizona, but you can also see the New Mexico,
Texas, the Puget Sound area, the Sierra Nevada areas in Califor-
nia, or areas in the Northeast, too. It has become a very wide-
spread occurrence. .

Research on the people who move into these areas indicates that
they typically cite broadly environmental reasons for their decision
to move, either in terms of negative attitudes about the cities or
positive attitudes about the rural areas_and most of them have
preexisting ties of either kinship, friendsifip, or property ownership
in the areas to which they move.

In a study of the rapidly growing nonmetropolitan areas in the
Midwest, it was foynd that the older newcomers were less likely to
be satisfied with medical care, with public transportation, which is
practically absent, or shopping facilities, but nonetheless, despite
those deficiencies, they showed a-high degree of overall satisfaction
about their moves. Particularly, they rated the nonmetropolitan
areas high on healthy environment, personal safety, privacy,
friendliness, and lower local taxes.

Close to three-fifths of the elderly in rural areas are married
with spouse present. Most of the others are living alone, although
some are with fargilies or friends. The women are much more
likely to be widowed or to be alone than the men, because of the
greater lon e»jty of women, which is about 7 years longer than
men, and the’fact that most women marry men who are 2 or 3
years older than themselves.

The one-person elderly household is not more common in the
rural areas than in the metro, but I think it does pose more of a
problem in the open country setting, where neighbors are not as
close to be summoned for assistance or to detect when some type of -
emergency has occurred.

As with urban people, most of the rural elderly are not formally
employed, but 20 percent of the men are still in the labor force at
age 65 and over: about 8 percent of the women. Now, the figure for
the men is a little hi?her than that in urban areas, I think princi-
pally because some of the rural men are able to continue at least
part-time employment in farming. But as in urban areas, the per-
centage of older men who are employed continues to drop. It was
3bout 25 percent back in the early 1970's and is now down to about
20 percent.

e can say two things dbout income. First, the older rural
people are more likely to be poor thintheir metropolitan counter-
parts and, second, that there is a greater generational difference in
the incidence of poverty level inconie in the rural areas than in the
city. That is to say, there is not too much difference in the likeli-
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hood of being poorin a metropolitan setting if you are old or not
old, but in rural areas, 20 percent of the older people have poverty
level income using the official definitions, com with onl
about 12 percent of the younger rural le and compared wi
only about 12 percent of the urban elderly. It is a significant differ-
ence. * .

Expressed another way, one-half of all the older people in the
United States who have poverty level incomes live in rural areas,
although not more-than about a third of the yougﬁ:r poor do so.

Poverty is especially high for rural blacks and Hispanics. Some
. 46 percent of all older black ‘elderly rurdl residents had poverty

level incomes in 1979, and 35 percent of the Hispanics. Poverty is
also Kart.iculnrly high for those who are not living with a spouse,
whether living alone or with other relatives. Three-sighths of them
are in poverty. Then the highest rty rate that I have ever seen
in any of the Federal statistics, none, is for older black rural
women who have a poverty rate of 82 percent. There are something
over 100,000 of them. ) . .

I would like to fouch on health conditions. Rural elderly are
more prone to have chronic health conditions than are urban elder-
ly—chronic health conditions that limit their activity in some way.

ut 48 percent of them reported they had an activity limitation
due to chronic health problems. The corresponding figurg for met-
ropolitan older people is 43 percent. It is not an enormous differ-
ence, but it is a real one and a persistent one. Poor health is most
- common among older rural pegple in the South, where 53 percent
reported a chronic problem. - “
older rural elderly do not havelany higher incidence of acute
conditions, short term or injury t conditions, than the metro-
politan poor do. But the disproportionate occurrence of chronic con-
ditions is also true of middle-aged mle. and thus, it is not a prob-
lem that is going to disappear in areas, simply with the pass-
ing of the,current older generation. Older nonmetro people are not
as likely as older metro residents to make visits to physicians, de-
spite their chronic limitations, but they are much more likely to
rocLuire hospitalization. They showsd an average of about 280 stays
in hospitals per 1,000 population per year, compared with metro el-
derly who averaged about 227 hospital stays per 1,000 population
per year. The very nature of rural and small town settlement may
make it more necessary far rural people to require hospitalization
because of the lower accessibility of either physicians or outpatient
tment. .

For most older rural people, the quality of housing is adequate,
but such deficiencies as occur are more liksly to occur in the rural
areas. About 8 nt of the rural households headed by an older
E:nonltill comﬁote glum . That is, either t! do not

ve a flush toilet, a bathtub or a , or hot and cold
water, or some combination of those basic elements, and this is
more than four times the rate of plumbing deficiencies among the
urban elderly, The plumbing problem is especially prevalent
among rural elderly in the South and among those who rent their
housing. Older elderly people in rural areas who rent their housing
lack complete plumbl’x'ns in about one-fifth of the housing units.

I3 g

Q 2;)
i

¥

L




ERI!

S 5

- DD ’

Also, the ri;ral elderly are more likely to have places that have
gln;blfgms relating to sewage disppsal, kitchen facilities, or structur-
efects. .
So, although there has bee?x great progress in rural housinF,
there are, still remaining problems that occur disproportionately

among the rural elderly.

In conclusion, the older rural and small town population seems
likely to continue to Frow rapidly in the future, with mueh of the
growth at the very oldest ages. where physical or mental infirmi-
ties and widowhood are mosfycommon. In a time when there has
been much modernization of the conditions of rural life, it, would be
wrong to pretend that there is no similarity in the conditions and
needs of the urban and rural elderly, but it would be equally wrong
to contend that all meaningful differences in the circumstances of
these people have vanished, or that they are ever likely to. Sparsi-’
ty of population and small scale settlement will, in my opinion,
always impose somewhat different conditions and suggest different
proiram approaches in rural areas

Thank you. . ‘
[The prepared statement of Mr. Beale follows:)
- Prevanen STaTeMENT 07 CALVIN L Brars .

Older rural Americans, and communities in which they live, share in the general
trends and conditions that occur in the Nation. But life in rural areas and small
towns is still shaped by the scattered nature of settlement, the small size of commu-
nities. and differences betweon rural and urban areas in economy, income, and facil-
itios. Thus, in any consideration of the neods of older people it is useful to take a
soparate lovk at rural aress. | propose in this statemant to.give a brief overview of
population and related characteristics of older rural peo&le :

ere is no standard program definition of "rural” When the results of the 1980
population census become available, it will be puesible to show statistica for people
classed by several different degrees of rurality. For this hearing, it is ry to
rely on surveys whose only reaidentinl dimension is that of metropoli and nen-
metropolitan. In general. the numbers and characteristics of nonmetropolitan

ple are similar to rural, and | will use the two terms rather interchangeably

e difference between the concepts in that nonmetropolitan areas include cities of
up to 49,999 people, but exclude open country and village residents who live within
the official boundarice of a metropulitan area.

NUMBER AND LOCATION OF PREOPLE

In 1980, thore were 8,669,000 nénm&_h)polﬁmn reaidenta who were 60 years old or
over iexcluding those in institutions). They accounted for 36 perfent of all
noninstitutionalized older people in the United States. (The number of nonmetropol.
itan -older people in institutions ia believed to be about 300,000, but dote on these
people are not available in the surveys on which this -mencm is based ) ~

Because of regional differences in rural settlement and retirement potterns. the
rqfionnl distribution of the rural elderly is ragher different from lhnéeef the metro-
pulitan elderly. Among thesfour major ons—Northeast, North Central. South.
and Wost—the proportion that each contains of tho older metropolitan population
varies only from 21 percent in the West to 30 percent in the Northeast. However,
the-South alone contains 45 percent of the older rural and smal| town population,
whereas the Northeast and West combined have only 20 percent ~
“»The. number of oldet rural and small town people has been growing rapidly in
recent years, by arcund 2.5 percent per year This is far more than double the
growth rate of the total U S. population, and about one-seventh highgr that the rate
at which the older metropolitan population has been increasing

The_percentage that older people comprise of the total population i» somewhat
greater in rural and small town areas than in large cities and suburbs. In 1980, per-
sons 65 and over comprised one-eighth (12.3 percent) of the nonmetropolitan populs-
tion and one-tenth (102 percant) of the metropolitan total. In general, this percent-
age is highest in rural villages, next hl’hmt small towns of up to 10,000 popula-
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tion, and lower in somewhat larger towns or in the open country. It is still common
for manmle or other open country dwellers to move into & village or town
i weor, the di 'tha different parts of the
owever, i ities that exist among different country in- propor-
tions of older pomn are typically wider than those among varioultgpel of resi-
dence. We now have over 500 rural and emall town counties in which people 65 and
over comprise one-sixth or more of the total population, and in 178 of cases
the proportion exceeds one-fifth of them“ ose counties are heavily cone
centrated in the central part of the , from Minnesota and North ota
south to Texas. In the agricultural areas of this belt, the mrﬁon of elderly
people has become high because, as the number of farms has i of the,
young ped e have moved away over the years to seek opportunity elsew] re. In
such as the Oxark plateau or the Texas hill country, the make up of
the population has become older because retired people have moved in. Counties
with high percentage of older people are much more common in rural and small
areas than they are in metropolitan ‘America. In such areas there is a relative-
ly hi}h need for services for the elderly in comparison with other services. Elderly
voters g‘ndual:f become a substantial part of the electorate, although essentially
never a majority. :

MIGRATION 0o

L -~ YRS :

In the last two decades, considerable movement of{ older people to rural and small
town areas has occurred. From 1975 to 1980, the average net movement of persons
65 years and over to nonmetropolitan areas was 45,000 per year. On a net basis, all - .
of this occurred amr:ﬁpoo e aged 65 to T4. With advancinme. umnnj people - -
move away from and small town areas as to them. umably, decli
health andv onset of widowhood prompt some people to seek the services and m;:’; S
ties of urban areas or to move nearer their children.

It should be noted that the rural and small town counties that are having rapid
growth of older population are dispersed more widely throughout the country than
those that have high relative proportions of the elderly. pid ltgrawth of older
peeple does rot necessarily. | to high relative concentrations if the number of

ounger peaple is growing, also. Thus for example, many counties in the West, the

utheast (except for Florida), or even in northern Michigan, that attract older

E:ggle have also tended to attract population of all ages. Thus, they have not
me disproportionately elderly.

Research on the older people who move to nonmetropolitan areas shows that the
majority are married at ghe time of their moves, and typically more affluent and
better educated than the’local older population. Many of the mi ts cite environ-
mental reasons for their decision to move, which may be couched either in terms of
negative perceptions of continued life in metropolitan areas or positive views about
the merits of rural or small town life. Most have preexisting ties of friendship, kin-
ship, or property ownership in the areas to which they move. There is evidence that
the older migrants from metropolitan areas are more frona to seek an open country
residence at their area of destination than is true of older rural people who move at
time of retirement. The latter show a stronger preference for towns.

_ In_a study of rapidly growing nonmetropolitan counties in the Midwest,! it was
found that older people moving into these areas from the cities were Tess likely to'be
as satisfied with medical care, shopping facilities, employment opportunities, or

. availahility of public transportation as they were in their previous residence. None-
theless, they rated their overall degree of satisfaction as higher in their new rural
and small town communities, giving their new communities particularly high rat-
ings for healthy environment, personal safety, privuz‘dfriendlme-, and lower l&l
taxes, as compared . with the metropolitan areas they left. —y

MARITAL AND HOUSEHOLD STATUS

Among all nonmetropolitan residents 65 years old and over, about 57 percent are
married with apouse present. This is higher than the comparable figure of 51.5 per-
cent in metropolitan areas, and is a favorable aspect of the condition of older rural
people. The ‘erence begins to ;m?:l‘]e in early periods of life when some rural

0

ple—women in particular—w to marry or who ha ken marriages
zle:ct to move to the city. It is often reinforced in later m%nﬁty of

- s “Rabirth of Rural America: Rural Mi in the Midwest,” Andrew J. Sofranko and
| James D. Williames, editors, North Central Center for Rural Development, June 1960.
’@.chapart"l‘thlanopolihnOridn t. . .", by Nina Glasgow.
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older rural people to move during widowhood. As in urban areas, there is a vast
difference in the marital status of older rural people by sex. Seventy-eight percent
of the men are married, spouse present, compared to only 41 percent of the women.
This primarily reflects the much greater longevity of women, plus the fact that
most women marry men who are older than themselves. .
Curiously, we do not seem to have precise data on the extent to which rural and
small town older people live alone. We do know that living alone occurs slightly less
frequently among the rural than urban elderly, because of the somewhat lower per-
centage of women present in the rural group. We ate-able to say that 43 percent of
all nonmetropolitan housshold heads 65 years and over in 1979 consisted of one
person households. The metropolitan figure was 46 percent. The percentage who live
alone is probably increasing, given more rapid growth of the oldest segment of thé
elderly population—those 75 years of* age ang over, where widowhood is more
common. Living alone can pose particular problems in an open country setting,
where neighbors are not as close by to be summoned for assistance or to detect
emergencies.

EMPLOYMENT

Most people 65 f’ears old and over no longer work for & living, although a major-
ity of men are still in the labor force at ages 60 to 64. During 1981, an average of
19.t; percent of nonmetropolitan men 65 years and over were in the labor force, and
8.3 percent of the women. The figure for men is consistently somewhat higher than
that for men in urban areas (17.7 in 1981), but there is no measurable residential
difference in the propensity of oldér women to work. The somewhat higher labor
force participation for older nonmetropolitan men is in large part a function of the
greater role of agriculture in rural areas and of the ability and desire of some older
men to continue activity in agriculture, even if of a diminished nature.

As in urban areas, the percentage of older rural and small town men who work
has been dropping steadily. As late as 1973, 25.9 percent of them were in the labor .

" force, compared with the 19.6 percent in 1981. There seems to be no statistical evi-
dence yet of a leveling off in this trend. The generally increased participation of
American women in the habor force is common among young and middle-aged rural
women, but has not resulted in increased employment of those above age 60.

! . INCOME

The only incomerdata currently available on older rural people are those relating
to poverty status. They show clearly that older rural people are {1} more likely to be
poor than are their metropolitan counterparts, and that (2) there is a greater gener-
ational diffefepce-tn poverty status in the rural areas than in the cities. To be spe-
cific, 20 percent of all nonmetropolitan people 65 years and over were living on pov-
erty level incomes in 1979, compared with 12 percent of persons of the.same age in
metropolitan areas. And, whereas there was little difference in the incidence of pow-

~ erty among the elderly and nonelderly in metropolitan areas (12 percent versus 10
percent), in rural areas and small towns the difference wgs substantially wider (20.5
hrercent versus 12.7 percent). Thus rural and small town poverty is disproportionate-

- ly an affliction of the-elderly. Expressed in another-way; one half of all older people =
in America who have poverty level incomes live in rural areas and small towns,
compured with less than three-eighths of the young and middle-aged poor.

As is the case with urban poverty, rural poverty is especialalfr high for blacks and
Higpanics. Some 46 percent of all older black rural and amalil town residents had
poverty leve] incomes in 1979, as did 35 percent of the Hispanics.

Wide variations in poverty level income conditions are associated with differences

\\i?{famil and househdld status. Of the older rural and small towrzpeople who main-
ined t{neir own households or who lived with family members 8nly about 13 per-

cent were in poverty (although this is more than double the comparable metropoli-
tan level). However. of those who were living alone or with nonrelatives, 37 percent °
were in poverty. Among older black rural women not in families, the poverty rate

reaches an astounding 82 percent. .

1

In addition to bding more likely to have very low incomes, the rural elderly are
also more prone to have chronic health conditions that limit their activity. In 1973~
74, 48.1 percent of nonmetropolitan people aged 65 and over reported that they had
an activity limitation due to chronic health problems. The corresponding figure for

HEALTH CONDITIONS
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CONCLUBION . .
From this overview of the older rural population, I think there are several pdints

stress: .
Unﬁkethapqriodbefoml%ﬂ.themnllndlmnﬂwwnpopuhﬁonilﬂvwin(nm
onlyfromibownmturﬂinmm.butnhofwm t of from the
cities and m This ent probably included about a ion elderly
in. ..
ties with high percentages of older people are much more common in rural
and small town areas than'they are in metropolitan areas, and their number is

ra . ,
i pgional ‘g’.‘ the nonmetropolitan elderly population is disproportionately located

Mm'mrilolderpeoplempwr.?omtyiseomidmblymmpmdantmong
thomgaleldqutlnn1thamon¢urb¢neldcrly.lnnmnnﬂnotutmeofthe

'l'lm-euq definitely a residential difference in heelth conditions and hospitalization
noodlnmongglic‘i:r“ﬂwplo.'l'hm in nonmetropolitan areas are more likely to
are more

g

have chronic ties that restrict their activities and increase their need for as-

luvi.c:el miliﬁaiforoldnpwpleuthoy more t with advanc-
mﬁupd'unwmn-ofthommlimiudnnﬂabﬂi of certain services rural
and small town setting, older in rural areas, including those who have moved
in from urban areas, express a of tial preference

thout question, problems of inadeq more affect older
people and are most pronounced among the rural ¢ ly.ugwly%whom

renters or who live in the South.
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The older rural and small town population seems likely to ¢ontinue to rapid-
ly in the future, with much more growth of population at the v ,.oidut ages,
where LEl:yucal or mental infirmities and widowhood are most co: ~In a time
when there has heen much modernization of the conditions of rural life-it-would be
wrong to pretend that there is no similarity in the conditions and needs of the rural
and urban elderly. But, it would be equally vrronfmto contend that all meaningful~-.
differences in the circumstances of these people have vanished, or that they are
ever likely to. Sparsity of population and small-scale settlements will always impose
somewhat different conditions and suggest different program approaches in rural

«

areas.
TABLE 1 —MARITAL STATUS OF PERSONS 65 YEARS OLD AND OVER, BY RESIDENCE, MARCH 1980
" (Nombers in thousands]
Total 65 yeors and over 65 Y0 74 yoers 15 years and ovee
Mantal status -
fetre ¢ Nenmetre Metro Nenmetro Metre Nonmetro
Abpersons .. e 15084 8,659 9572 5,521 5,512 3.132
Single. ... .. 62 46 6.0 4] 6.4 43
Married, spouse 515 510 596 65.2 4 23
Marrid, spouse aboent . e s 18 18 22 18 12 17
Widowsd .. .. 3.7 37 21 U5 524 500
Divorced.. 38 30 45 37 26 17
Sex ratio 679 138 739 815 58.6 619

' Metropelttan status 3 of 1970
Sewce” Buresy of the Census, Curent Populstion Reports, Series P-20, Ne. 365. 1981

TABLE 2.—MARITAL STATUS OF PERSONS 65 YEARS OLD AND OVER, BY SEX AND RESIDENCE,

MARCH 1980
[Numbers in thousande]
N [ "] Fomele
Mantal status - -

-— Netrs Mnm Nietro Nonmetro
All persons ....... 6.103 3,680 8,982 4978
Percant. .

Single i ) . . 4.5 ¥ 6.6 47
Married, spouse present. .. .. . . . . @ i 140 18, 36.2 413
Married, spouse absent . 2.2 1. ’16 17
Widowed S 147 1 516 500
Divoresd.... 36 9 40 22

- ' Mutropekitan .remdence & of 1970. 7 7 -
Source. Bureeu of the Ceneus, Current Papulstion Meperts, Series P-20, No. 365, 1981,

TABLE 3. —EMPLOYMENT STATUS OF THE CIVILIAN NONINSTITUTIONAL POPULATION, AGE 60 AND
OVER, BY RESIDENCE: 1981 AND 1973

[Percentages are computed frem anoual svarage figures)
! 191 1973
Persors 60 0 64 Persars §5 yoors Porsens 60 1o 64 Persens 65 yeors
Empleyment status yors nd over ~ yen nd o

i Nen- Nen- M-
Mete ! e Wt e Wty o Weie e

Males .. ... o 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000
In Labor fORC8..._... oo 600 559 177 196 635 681 A1 259
Not in tabor ForCe ... ..o 00 41 1223 KN4 NS NI 9 Nl
0f those in Labor force ... 1000 1000 1000 1000 2000 1000 1000 1000

31
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TABLE 3.—EMPLOYMENT STATUS OF THE CVILIAN NONINSTITUTIONAL POPULATION, AGE §0 AND
OVER, BY RESIDENCE: 1581 AND 1873—Continued
Y 1 F f "1
1M 1m
h-l'b“ ﬁ:&m Vr-':-a m::m '

e B o e 2w &

EPPONN ... W04 985 M6 917 S MO0 M3 03
19 18 CTI V) 29 nd 0 W
— W4 TR0 015 NS5 R NS W @25
i A1 35 kX 24 32w a2 2]

Fomales.... . . 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000

-31.8 80 83 W BS W (X
62 N0 N7 G W5 N3 0l

1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000

ue %0 90 W5 9Ny N0 WS
43 10 63 U1 ] 2l 15
122 M9 N7 MY 120 MY N0
kX “Ww 30 (X A | 30 22

-

* Motragaliee stoke 8 of 1970 . :
mwmm.um.muumuddwunmumm

TABLE 4. —PQVERTY STATUS IN 1979 OF PERSONS, BY RESIDENCE, Rmﬁ. AND SPANISH ORIGIN®

[Mumbers & Svaonie)
Nom W Slech ﬂw'
e g e
Type of reidenmy
‘~~:“‘h=‘“”;‘“ :
T i ur
" o * o " . -
o * ' \
... WS 15732 107 124626 0700 18 10818 S50 243 103 22m 209\
5 yous 15085 Lal2 120 13495 1379 102 1377 419 304 m a2
Onder 65 yoors . 132503 13920 105 10131 8327 15 1441 5142 22 1058 2 27
Neamotre:
M. I 613 137 @42 LI 112 SHEa2 NS 222 84 254
Sy o o 865 L4 M5 7951 L6l 14 43 M M3 T2 % 3]
Under 65 yoars . GLS12 T 127 SS4T1 565 102 8123 L7 M8 2118 528 MY
sPhweem o of March 1900
Stin ke & of 150
SPysem of Symish wigh may b0 of 3y .
Semwe: Sunes of Su Consws, Corrent Mupuinfion Repers, Suriss P00, M. 190, 1901
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TABLE 5.—POVERTY STATUS IN 1979 OF PERSONS 65 YEARS OLD AND OVER, BY RESIDENCE,
FAMILY STATUS, AND RACE *
ks & Sans]

N e 7
g

182 120 1345
™6
e

458
1l

2m

Sowrsn Buren of B Comwn, Curent Popudntion Roparte, Surise P-60, Mo 130, 1961

Senator GrassLEY dinge'l'hank you very much. Senator
Pressler will be right In meantime, since he is not here, I
normally would be second on asking questions, but I would like to
ask first, in his absence.

First of all, the statistics that you were using, and I know you
used statistics throughout your testimony, but the last stated statis-

i lt';'“ wondering what the date of those were. Are those very -
recen '

Mr. BzaLz. The statistics that I used vary from 1974 to 1981.
have scrounged them from wherever I could get them. Most of
them come from surveys conducted by the Census Bureau, national
umglce surveys. Some of them come surveys conducted by the
Public Health Service. -

Senator GrassLay. They would be the latest statistics.

Mr. B 'l‘heymthehtutinelchcue.&u.

franktl’v, from the title of your divi-
the USDA, I am not sure that you
y, if you cannot answer it, you
will take the message back to pe’ogl:tgm\workwith.

But we had the previcus witness, Kobell, who represented
the National Farmers Union, as one of four or five inent farm
organizations in the country, and I could include in my question

tions that are rural-oriented that maybe are
not prominent in the sense of being national farm organizations
per se, but she represents an organization that has been concerned
about the sqcial problems and the social needs of rural America
.:I-l;’l has been ;’ctwely involvedplnnd h.t'ofbmnni ﬁ” a Ftel'lie.
eral program to encourage employmen or citizens. I use :
Farmers Union just as an example. My key point is volunteerism

<COPY AVAILABLE - 32
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and this administration’s efforts to promote volunteerism to fill in
some of the gaps that the Federal Government has not been filling
in or, because of budget cutbacks, will not. be doing as much as
they have in the past. .
there been anK effort within the Department of Agriculture,
not just because of the President’s emphasis upon volunteerism, to
get farm organizations, rural private groups, interested in promot-
ing volunteerism? Has the Secretary asked these farm organiza-
tions if they are concerned about things other than farm programs
and basic economic philosophies? There is a need for organizations
to represent, to spearhead cooperative efforts in not only promoting
volunteerism, hopefully, with the end result being to fill some gaps,
not just because of budget cutbacks, but because, regardless of
whatever level of Federal expenditures we have for some of these
rograms, we are not going to fill all the needs. So I would like to
ve you comment and, to the extent that you can, answer the
question, and see if something can be done within the Department
of Agriculture to promote this. ~

Mr. BeaLr. | think that the basic answer to your question is yes,
but I am not in a position to comment on it, in that I do not have
any program-:or policy functions. I can tell you that we have at-
tempted in the Economic Research Service to do some research at
least on the subject of volunteerism to be supportive of policies of
this nature. I suspect the Secretary’s office would be glad to re-
spond to the question, but since my work is in research and infor-
mation, I cannot comment on aspects of that nature.

Senator GrassLEY. Maybe you could submit to the Assistant Sec-
retary who is in charf of your division my interest in this, so that
it could get to the higher counsels within the USDA, and I will ex-
press it from the top down.

Mr. BzaLz. I would be glad to, sir.

Senator GrassiLEy. Senator Pressler has asked me to express his
thanks to you, Calvin, for your testimony, and that he does not
have anky questions at this point. He may submit some in writing.

Thank you.

I would like to call the next witness, who is David Earl Suther-
land. He is director of the rural gerontology rogram and associate
professor of sociology at Ohio Universify, which is in Athens, Ohio.

Mr. Sutherland, we welcome you to the committee, and tell you

~ that you may proceed as you desire, but if you want to simmarize,

your statement will be printed in toto in the record.

STATEMENT OF DAVID EARL SUTHERLANI;.TDIRECI'OR. RURAL
GERONTOLOGY PROGRAM, OHIO UNIVERSITY, ATHENS, OHIO

Mr. SurHERLAND. | appreciate the privilege of appearing before
you this morning. My task in the next few minutes is to identify
what I believe are significant research gaps in knowledge about
rural aging events. | see these areas as pointing out paradoxes and
puzzles in the knowledge base being created in rural gerontology.

There ara eight topics I would like to briefly for you.
The first one has to do with the nature of the rural environment.

We tend to treat the rural environment as something to be oveg..

~ come as & barrier to services and programs. Typically, research 1s
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directodtocon-beneﬂtumlydlindeliveryofprogrmmlunee.

geographical isolation, sparsely populated areas—all these ele-

ments are seen as problems. I believe it is paradoxical that we have

been unsble or unwilling to reframe our efforts and recognise the

genuine importance of these aspects of rural environments as a

ntribution to a meaningful agi“.:f experience—to see these things,
and so forth, as opportunities.

One possibility recognizes what has been called an e]der environ-’
mental complex as exemplified by the work by es in Appa- .
lachia. We need to extend his microlevel studies on hew elderly op-
erate in the environment through tochnimlike mental mapping.
How do rural elderly incorporate into t day- meanings
e oo oot services rank in o oographical space?

en ere do se ran geograp. space
We could perhaps use such unorthodox techniques as remote sens-
ing technologies or universal phic information systems, to
build IMG files which would allow rative modeling com-
bining fixed transportation o?mml, location, and especial-
ly, interpretive m: the environment for understanding
how rural elderly negotiate their space. We do not understand how
a person incorporates environmental characteristics of rural situa-
tions into their aging behavior.

The second area is the meaning of the aging experience in rural
environments. Gerontologists typically research value systems
about and toward elderly, generally to show: that myths of aging
exist. Studies do exist and are currently ongoing seeking to under-
cover the rural values appropriate to aging. :

My interest lies in exploring the natural occasions under which
aging becomes a factor in self-image and self-actualization in rural
environments. How is one reminded of aging? B{ the area agency
on aging? By social gerontol doing research? By needs assess-
ment surveys? By reading the Older Americans Act? In other
words, what are the reflexive dimensions to aging and how can
those dimensionalities be researched?

With support from the Administration on Aging, I have been in-
volved in theee efforts in the kinship information study done in
southeastern Ohio in one county. I proposed in that research at
least three reflexive dimensions. The first is technical, that is, the
cognitive ‘meaning and knowledge about aging held by a person;
theseoondinlinguiatic.orhowmlediscuuaginganddaoode
their aging experience; and the is practice, that is, practical
actions taken by a person through the intersection of the other two
dimensions as motivational bases.

Wefounda-&;rﬂlx:ggmultinmkingdauonthoﬁuttwoof
these aspects. Using well-known Palmore facts about age quiz
given to rural elderly, we found that rural women layed a re-
markable consistency in their cognitive knowledge ut aging.
Moreover, their scores correlated with other kinds of sociodemogra-

| rihttif clf cogniti .ndmg“'l'l?e‘;mmed to g dif:
‘ e if any ve CO) . occupy a .
ferent aging world altogether relative to rural V}':lzmw
very little t male-female differences in such basic orientations
t.otheagingproce-inmrlllituatiom,howmnlenvimnmenu
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help understand these orientations, or how aging orientatién re-
lates to program cipation in senior activities.

Third is a problejn,of what I call the data base reliakslity: Self-
reporta’or structurgl factors. Gerontology assumes that knowledge
about aging co from aging persons. Hence, the efforts devoted
to needs assessmet methodologies by agencies or collection of data
reports from elderly in research. I am walking a thin line here, but
I want to make a point. :

It is by no meahs evident to me that individually based reports
accurately suppl %erontological foundations for aging knowledge. I
would dutmi'uu our-phases of knowledge inquiry—of elderly, for
elderly, by elderly, and with elderly. All four knowledge inquiries
require matic research, yet research efforts ignore one or
more of these factors. e

One could interpret social gerontology as an exercise in showing
how elderly themselves provide flawed imageries or myths of aging.
But a deeper issue exists. Consider health data on rural elderly.
Broad aggregate data indicate that rural environments present a
hazardous situation for health of older persons living in rural

- areas. However, rural elderly themselves rarely characterize the

rural environment as ill-suited for older persons. Instead, it is the
}nrban situation that is dangerous, with crime often cited as a
actor. :

Is one to counteract the misperceptions of lay rural elderly with
tHat of expert knowledge base of the gerontologist? I think the task
is rather fo foster communicative mergers of eronboloii'hca:la knowl-
edge with the immediate social world of rural glderly. This knowl-
edge-complex process has not been researched. We do 'not know
how to merge structural data—much of the sort that you heard
earlier this mOrnix&—with the individual perceptions of rural el-
derly themselves. Current research practices do not routinely re-
quire researchers to report back meaningfully and directly to those
rural elderly from whom information is obtained for aiding their
aging behaviors. ¢

The fourth area is the aging practice in rural situations. I believe
that research in aging acquires special value when translated into
policy, but I also believe that the research modeling of such proc-
esses is restricted and traditional. We need a research model in

- which policy development requires a discursive mode of exchange

between researcher and practitioner that seeks to incorporate ger-
ontological knowledge as part of an evolutiongry program develop-
ment, and I want to give you just two examples. .
Gerontology often comments that future cohorts of elderly would
be different—more educated, better health, smaller family size, and
so forth. Can we begin research now on evolving new rural cohort
expectations and problems that g programs will encounter in
the year 2000 in rural America? we research the evolution of
change intending to work with new rural aging cohorts
anﬂ not research essentially crisis - ment problems alone?
The second example, a recent stud medical cg;cdce in small
areas suggests that the major f for redu unn
medical usage is an informed’ patient assertive enough to seek
second and even third pll_xrvnicim consultation. Is an informed rural
elderly cohort possible? How can that quéstion be researched?
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The fifth area, returning to the environment question, I want to
relate technology here. Current American interest in high technol-
* ogy, new computer generations, and information processing revolu-
tion, might seem unrelated to rural aging research. Yet why not
yse rura) settings as fertile grounds precisely for the application of
high technology to maintain the rural character of the environ-
ment, yet transport services and aids to rural elderly. Self-monitor-
ing of health, stress, and medications are surelf' cases, of informa-
tion management over distances. Why not employ computer poesi-
bilities as aids to rural elderly? Or does one maintain that rural
elderly are incapable of learning computer literacy?

Sixth, rural-urban or rural-rural comparisons. It is surprising
that we restrict ourselves to the usual rural-urban comparisons for
‘analysis. - g

We need an alternative research agenda—serious and full atten-
tion devoted to studies of rural aging patterns in different rural re-
gions of the country. Do New York rural elderly inform us of
events encountered by senior citizens in the Dakotas? Are SKanish-
sr‘eaking older persons in the Southwest similar to rural a-
chia elderly? Since rural elderly constitute about one-third o older
Americans—although this depends on your definition—is it not
reasonable that we promote research activities seeking a national
view of rural regionalism and that impact upon the aging experi-
ence? '

Seventh, rural aging is the forerunner for gerontological re-
search. While most research activities in afing concern themselves
with urban elderly, I believe the tential for imaginative and fun-
damental work will occur in rural studies. Rural gerontologists rec-
ognize explicitly a longstanding commitment of the field: The rec-
ognition that all endeavors seek to maintain the existence of rural.
character to aging events. However difficult to analytically define
or describe, this commitment to the integrity of the environment
places a profound research obligation for rural aging studies: To
preserve that that gives the older person his or her rural character
to their aging. '

We know that mechanistic transferral of urban programs to
rural situations is not useful. If we could acquire the capacity ‘to
understand and to intervene appropriately in individual aging
events and simultaneously maintain the integrity of the rural ex-
perience, we would have a knowledge base and practice indeed
powerful. ‘

Lastly, the relationship between research and practice. I would
argue that we do not understand the translation of research into
practice. Despite significant examples like the Duke OARS project,
rural gerontology yet to appreciate the complex mechanisms
embedded in this process. The most lophinticated effort to research
how social science information is utilized for policymnkin%ua:: the
Federal level, the RANN project, discourages one from thi
the problem is a mechanical one connecting knowledge and polic{.
We need serious work on the non-aged-related’as involyed in
development of applications in rural situations. ural tology
would do well to consider issues, perhaps, in the sociology science
that shed light on this problem. We need focused research on

*
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'knov’v_lbdgo-t,ranlfer mechanisms from rural gerontology to rural

practice. ,

In conclusion, I have sought here to brieﬂinidentify examples of
researchable problems reflecting gaps in our knowledge about rural
aging events. My intention was to try to stretch our imaginations
for producing better knowledge and better information systems.

Several possible modes exist for implementing such research.
Much greater use of public institutions to support efforts at nation- -
al and State levels; developing a network of rural aging researchers
to aid the newly formed Office of Rural Development Policy and
the rural aging specialist assigned to that office; or funding, actual-
ly at modest cost, extensive secondary analysis of the existing data
archives in aging. The most. prohibitive cost involved is usually the
o::ginal roduction of knowledge, and through AoA and other Fed-
eral funds, there now exist natiopal data archives at Michigan and
Duke, and these data have not been systematically analyzed for
their rural aspects. “

Most of all, I would argue for the rec(}gnition that an extremely
useful research projgois one requiring fundamental rethinking of
what rural aging is ut. An American Nobel lauredte is said to
have remarked that he could get a research t any time he
wanted, but it was not possible to get a research grant on what he
wanted to do. Future research guidelines will cover the usual topics
and problems areas as per existing patterns, but create however
small a space, but a space, for allowing the exploration of alterna-

- tive schemes of thinking and reflecting on rural aging. We need

fundamental work in this area.

Ms. Leicurnanm [presiding). Thank you, Dr. Sutherland. Senator
Pressler should be back from voting shortly. In the meantime, with
your permission, I will fill in and ask you some questions.

Dr. SuthzrLAND. Fine. ‘ ~

Ms. LeicirnaM. I gather from your comments that you feel there

- are some really basic thinggswe do not understand about the way

, :fmg means. This may soun

rural ple deal with the aging procsgss. In your opinion, what
kind of information would be the very most important for us to so-
ligit in order to gain an understanding of how they deal with the
aging grocess? .

Dr. SuTHERLAND. You know, when you ask a researcher, they im-
mediately turn to their own pet %rojects. 80 I will do that for you. I
think the most fundamental on lem we do not know is what the -

i like an obvious question, but I have

ways been intrigued with what appear to be simple questions.

I was involved 1n a project with my college—we run the PBS sta-
tion in the area—in which I interviewed rural elderly in southeast
Ohio, and we made a videotape called, “Rural Aging in America.”
And if you listen to those people talk, you get all kinds of paradox-
es. On the one hand, it is a very positive image, very strong. These
are people who are articulate, ranging from a woman who is 76
m&n old, never married, lives on a farm, still rents the farm all by

reelf, was even a delegate to the White House Conference on
Aging—a marvelous person to talk to; to a 98-year-old man who
lives, perhaps, in a situation that you or I would not admire—or at
least, the people in Washington probably would not—by himself for
years, growing seeds, and selling tomato seeds all over the world.
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These are fascinating people with very strong characters, very
loyal and attached to their situations, who could not imagine goin;
into an urban area and just think it is terrible that someone woul
havewo be old in places {ike New York or Washington. And you get
a very positive sense of that But I think what you do not sense is
that there are strong reasons to believe that rural elderly people
should be outraged at the conditions that they face. But I think to
understand that means we have to understand their sense of the
meaning of the experience. . * .

The anthropologist working on our project came to me once and
remarked—and this is a very small study, and you cannot general-
ize—but she said, “You know, I think that the Older Americans
Act is out on Mars somewhere.” If I lived the life according to how
these people live, all these efforts are not incorporated into that. I
am not saying that is good or bad; it is a different perception. Ido
not think we understand that very well, that basic kind of orienta-
tion of what the aging experience means, much less working with
the cohorts who are comin§ down the line. ‘

Ms. LeicutnaM. Do you feel that studies that compare urban an
rural older persons would be of more value to us than studies that
study rural ple alone, that we can understand more froln study
about the differences? . :

Dr. SuTHERLAND. Well, 1 have a minority view on this, and 1
think it is important that you realize that. I have no doubt that
rural-urban comparisons will be made. The data analysis this
morning is quite traditional in this sense. It is quite important. We
need these social indicators updated. I think that it is a mistake to
do only that, that in trying to understand the special character
about rural aging—and I may be wrong—I think we need to dévote
full attention to that.

I am simply struck by—and I have talked with others just infor-
mally about the variations between Aryéalachia and what I hear
people telling me about certain parts of California, partly Spanish-
speaking, or Chicano-speaking—I am just struck by the vast/differ-
ences in those. - ~ ,

I would be silly to deny the importance of agriculture a d the
farm base, and particularly in States like the one you a from,
South Dakota, but I think it is not fair to think of rural elderly
always as in a farming situation. There is a sort of complexity to
rural that you lose when you lump it all together and compare it to
urban. I think even the data this morning was comparison at the
level of metropolitan-nonmetropolitan, because there are all sorts
of disagreements over these definitions. I can imagine projects that
would do the following. This morning some 520-some-odd counties
were mentioned that were probably somehow really rural. Well, 1
am familiar with the Rand study that analyzed the 1970 census. I
would be fascinated to find out where these ‘counties are and do
studies of those, but this would be a national study of rural situa-
tions. I just want to/make the argument that I think it is more im-
portant at this point to get involved in directly studying those
rural areas. 1 appreciate our urban cousins and all that sort of .
thing and those studies would be done, but I do not think rural
should get lost as a kind of second-cousin relationship to the urban
situation.

Js
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Ms. LeicuTNAM. Do you think it is possible for researchers who

are rgostly urban people tp even comprehend the nature of rural--

ity, and how do we deal with that problem?

Dr. SuTHERLAND. One wants to say yes and no. As a sociologist, I
am obliged to say of course, sociologists can study things that they
do not happen to be. .

Let mo suggest this answer. I think what would be enormously
useful, given the crunch in funding, is that rural research, agsum-
ing it needs to be done, ought to be first focused upon by universi-
ties who are primarily in rural areas, and I confess to being some-
what self-serving on because this is the nature of my universi-
ty, but I have a reason for that. My university recently added a
medical school, and it is adding a geriatrics section, and it is doing
all sorts of things of this kind. I am struck by the fact that we are

not, as a public institution, a fundamental major resource for all,

kinds of activities that are going on in my State related to rural
elderly. There was a comment. mentioned earlier by one of the Sen-
ators about volunteerism, and I am struck that my university has
not been a force and a movement in that direction. I think it {ould
be very difficult to do that, if you are doing NORC national studies
out of Ann Arbor. | mean, they are important. In gther words,
there are th that natio iversitios in urban areas can do
about rural elderly, but I t one of the reasons for grounding
some of this research in institutions that have these characteris-
tics, and they are rather special, is that one of the byproducts may
be increased opening up of the institition to provide other kinds of
services and capabilities to the area. -

- . Senator Pressler remarked about the concept of training possi-
ilities and raised the issue, I believe, with the first witness about
ow to get employment possibilities for older women. That witness

remarked that many of the older women are farm wives and that
sort of thing. In my institution, as in many others, we are develop-
ing models that in effect translate experience into, for example,
academic credit. I do not think a rural person, in my area, is going
to go up to Columbus, or to Ohio State, to get involved in that. But
we might have that kind of capacity. I am arguing that I think
there is a sense of expanding the research dollar, fetting more for
your value, and trying to make sure that those institutions,’like
mine, that have a medical complex and so forth in rural areas
ought to be involved in a multifaceted kind of p;,)proach. But I
would obviously be foolish to say that it is not possible for Harvard,
Berkeley, Stanford, Northwestern, Michigan to do studies of aging,
or the d of work that was done—] think it was Econometrics
here in Betheeda, for AoA—on evaluating needs. There is a lot of
sector analysis. But the fundamental work, I think, really o:lght to
be, if I can use the pun, “farmed out” to institutions in rurdl envi-
ronments, because I think we have more tasks to do other than just
the research.

Ms. Lricurnan. Focusing for just a minute on a reference you
made to one of your studies, can you make any 1‘“9.0! as to why
rural women seem to havé better cognitive knowledge of the proc-
ess of aging? .

Dr. SuTHERLAND. Yes, I will make some, and these are quite hy-
pothetical at this point, and I would add that I have just gotten
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some more data using this particular instrument on 900 rural el-
derly that I hope to analyze in a couple of months. We are specu-
lating that in a sense, contrary to the normal pattern in this soci-
" ety, in which women probably age less well than men because of
cultural biases, the rural women we were talking with/geemed to
age better. They seemed to have social networks that br ugzlt them
in closer together. They seemed to be able to form fri hips as.
well as fights, to be sure, but theysseemed to sort of mesh together.
ct, the use of what was officially a senior club—it started out
nding from the area agency on aging—had' nothing to do with
jors: it was sort of a social affair—they seemed to be able to do
this well. With the males, we are not sure. We think it may reflect
a patterrr of work ethic-that does not encourage development of
_male friendship ties beyond the immediate work task at hand. I am
very puzzled by that. It may be a consequence of the sample. But if
it is not, then this implies a greater strength for women and in cur-
ious ways, perhaps, rural males may n more attention than one
realizes. ; -

Ms. Lricitnam. Do you have any plans to test that? -

Dr. SUTHERLAND. Yes, like I said, through happenchance, one of
the area agencies had to do a needs assessment program, and in
fact, in the larger text, I tried to suggest that one way to do re-
search with less cost is to piggyback onto these ai‘ency oporations
research questions. Because of my relationship with the director of

* that agency, I convinced him to allow” me to add on anpther 25
('?:estions. and I think what we will be able to find out for #ure in
that sample, which is quite a bit larger than my original study, is
if there are these male-female differences, in cognitive orientations.
There are also other questions on which we can do more correla-
tional study. So I think, yes, that will be followed up on. :

Ms. LeicutNaM. Do you plan to publish the results of that? Y

Dr. SutHERLAND. Yes. rchers always plan to publish. We -
have been giving papers at a variety of meetings—I gave a paper at
the International Congress on rontol in Hamburg last -
summer on this question, and I-think this kind of literature will
slowly get out. 1 might add that 1 am working now with a grant
pro involving, curiously enough, a cancer study, but in the
process of doing it, the people are interested in lifestyles of 40 and
over rural elderly population, and I am trying to incorporate a
desigm to see if rural aging relates to even something as serious a
medical problem as cancer difficulties. , =

. So 1 am hoping to say that there will be a lot of material coming
out in the future in all this, and presumably, we can find some sup-
port for it. ‘

Ms. Leicutnan. We have heard a lot of different opinions or esti- -
mates or guesses about what “rural” is, this morning. There are a
lot of different definitions floating around. The Census Bureau uses
one, the Older Americans Act uses another. I believe the White
House Conference on Aging used yet another. Do you see un¥ hope
for the future, or do you have any estimates of your own o what
you think would be an adequate standard definition of rural, and
do you see that as a problem, the lack of a definition of the term
llmral"? ‘
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Dr. SutHERLAND. | want to say this generally, because I support
all of these programs, and I think what you are reallf' king
about is a kind of uniform definition that often gets translated into
Federal policy program futding and that sort of thing, and in that
sense, ‘it is obviously quite critical, which one you use. It seems a
little difficult, as an outsider to Washington, to look in and see this
enormous fight goigg_on over which form are you going to use. I do
not want to speak to recommending any one over the other. I
really think that Green Thumb has come out with a suggestion for
common definition that is in the conference report. I am sort of
skipping past your question, because I want to say that those ques-
tions are often demographically defined, using the size of an area,
for those kinds of purposes. I happen to think that if you are
asking for the real meaning of rural and what that lifestyle is, I do
not think we know that. I think it is a soctal question, not a popu-

» lation question alone. But the population question is obviously
useful and in the kind of maps we saw earlier, you have to make
an assessment on using population figures. But I think there is still

. missing in these efforts the sense of the social character, the social
construction of what that aspect is, and I think that probably will
be correlated with these moré governmental kinds of definitions. 1
do not think the thing I am looking for would be helpful, for what
you are asking about in terms of defining and allowing governrhen="
tal policy to proceed. /

Senator PRESSLER [resuming chair]. Thank you, Karen, for ably
filling in while I' was voting. Dr. Sutherland, I might ask you the
question I asked earlier about rural elderly women. 1 do not want
to be dub@:tive, but are there substantigl differences?

Dr. SUTHERLAND. Senator,.as I recall, your quéstion was in the
context often of employment, social security, and economics. The
kind of difference that I have been working‘with, to be very fair, is
a very sort of basic research question, and has to do with how you
have a meaning and a knowledge about your aging as an experi-
ence, and we have a fairly exciting result that I did describe earlier
thdt syggests there may well be a difference between the way

~ women integrate or have knowledge about what the aging experi-
ence means, compared to men. -
The kind' of issue 1 am trying to delineate is one that I do not.
know yet has implications for your concerns—certainly, perhaps, it
does not imply anything for the kind of question you asked about
income. ‘I am aware in general that women Jn"obably face much .
more difficulty in terms of social security and other programs as

. they have classically been designed in the past. ‘ ‘

' One thing I might add in the spirit of your -question is I caught \

\an element of the issue of how women can transfer skills to em-

ployable kinds (éfﬁm'eas and if that is meaningful, and as a minor
amendment to that, I would urge you to tap into university sys-
tems and structures that are located in areas that have a reason-
able accessibility to rural populations and try to induce the univer-
sity to respond well to these kinds of transferrals of skills. As you

- know, universities have typically been dedling with 18- to 22-year-

olds, and I am sort of embarrassed to confess that the term we use
is “nontraditional,” if you can believe that. If you are over 24, you
are a “nontraditional’’ learner. Yet we know in gerontology that
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learning is lifélong. I think if anything, we underestimate the ca-
pacity of elderly people to learn new skills, and one of the areas
that mag;nstnke you as very far in the future is the application of
high technology—for example, computer terminal utilization. I find
no reason why, in theory, one could not imagine employment op-
portunities existing for rural women in rural situations using data
processing techniques to get transferred to somewhere else. We do
not seem to see this population as one that has that capacity to
expand. So I would encourage the consideration—I thmk we under-
estimate rather than overestimate what feople can do.

Senator PressLER. Let me ask you and Calvin Bealw if there is a
difference in the retirement habits—do people retire at age 62 or
65? Do you know an about that?

Dr. SutHErLAND. I do not know anything about it in the sense of
applying to a rural context. I know a little bit about it in general.
In fact, there were some hearings, I believe, before this committee
several months ago, about early retirees and why they retire.

Senator PressLER. And are more of those rural, or——

Dr. SutherLAND. No, it was not rural-urban.

Senator PressLER. Do you knew, Calvin, are there any good sta-
tistics on [?:ople in rural areas? Do the rural elderly retire earlier
or later? Do we have any good numbers on that?

Mr. Bearr. I do not think they retire earlier, but Y think we have
some data that might enable us to give a more definitive answer to
you. Sixty-five is still the most common single age at which ple
retire, whether urban or rural, and retirement is coming earlier in
> both urban and rural areas, but it is my impression that early re-
tirement is more common in the metropolitan setting than it is in
the rural or smalltown setting.

Senator PressLER. Say that again, please,

-Mr. Beare. I think that early retirement is somewhat more
common in metropolitan areas than it is in the rural or smalltown
setting. But I can transmit to you some data on labor force partici-
pation rates by age ofﬁ:iople

Senator PressLER. t would shed some light. For example. asl
understand it, under social security, you can retire at 62 at a
reduced formula. and at age 63~or or 65 at a reduced formula,
and then after 65, it does not change until you are 72, in terms of
the ability to work and have minimum earnings, and so forth. But
between 65 and 72 is kind of a staple period. But I was wondering
if there-was any pattern. Of course, some: people do not retire at-
all. There might be a higher percentage of farmers who just do not
retire; I do not know. That wouldsbe very helpful to know.

Dr. Sutherland, I thank you very mu::?;

I will now call on Dr. Kay Hofer, director, South Dakota Health
Planning and Development Age) , Pierre, S. Dak. I look forward
to hearing from you uth Dakota is my home State and
one that has a high percentage of rural elderly.

STATEMENT OF DR. KAY HOFER, DIRECTOR, HEALTH PLANNING
AND DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT
OF HEALTH, PIERRE, S. DAK.

Dr. Horxr. Senator Pressler, thank you.
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I might also add that I am a farm wife, so I have some special
concerns. I think we have discussed a lot of statistics here, and I
have submitted additional data for the committee, so I woulg like
to just come down to three or four very central points. Ghe is,
when you asked for a definition of “rural,’ I almost think That you
must live there to truly understand. When I am out, working with
my husband, we are 28 miles from any individual in any direction.
If we run into difficulties, there is no place to go and phone for

hee,lgi We do have medical care 28 miles to the west. We also have *
m

cal care available 59 miles to the east. We are talking about
small community hospitals when you do get to that medical care.
So that brings me to an issue that is of prime concern in a rural
State like South Dakota. Transportation is our No. 1 difficulty—
transportation in getting the elderly person to vital primary care
services, to preventive health services that they need, and also, the
high costs involved in trying to get those services delivered through
the community health numing“rherogram, that is, home health care
out to the elderly individuals. n you are looking at farmhouses
that may average 1 every 10 or 15 miles, for a single-family dwell-
ing, we are looking at great distances between people, and costs of
delivering health care are prohibitive. In the central w of the
State, we have absolutely no tglublic transportation. young
people, once they get through the first six grades, must comé in
and board to receive their high school education, because we do not

have schoolbus services. So t eliminates an adaptation of using

tllagt {node of transportation to get health services to and from the
elderly. .o ‘

The second point of issue here is that we have up to 65 percent of
the population of the State either in primary or secondary farm-
related activities, and 65 percent of the State live in counties that
have very small populations, some with a population density of 0.63
persons per square mile, compared with a national norm of 62.9
persons per square mile. Individuals may be extremely isolated.

- We have the foremost problem that our pri cities that do
have above 10,000 population are located on the tar eastern and
western borders of the State, a distance of 399 miles apart. All
services provided to the elderly and the programs designed to deliv-
er these services seem to be designed for cities of this size or loca-
tions of this type. %

Innovative solutions for the really small town, the town of 200
mple, 300 people, are not readily available. There are a number of

eral regulations that prohibit the development of innovative
services. One of them, for example, is the requirement for physi-
cians to arly visit the nursing homes. If you do not have a
physician, but you still need that vital service, that continuum of
care, what do'you do? In the State of South Dakota, we have a very
stringent law and a very goodTgrogram that has been started, the
physician extender ’& . The physician extenders can provide
that vital service. The Federal Government has granted a waiver
for a certification for eligibiltilz for medicaid and the physician ex-
tender may now do the certification. But the counte of that
waiver is that a waiver has not been granted to allow physician
extender to continue that service for the regular, 60-day intervals
examinations that are required for title XIX reimbursement. If the
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two Federal regulations do not go hand in hand, we are prohibited
from delivering a vital health service at the institutional level.

Another area for concern is the network that provides all serv-
ices to rural elderly. We just completed an 18-month research proj-
ect on all long-term care services available in the State of Sout
Dakota, and we find one program housed in the department of
transportation, six or seven in the department of social services,
three or four in the department of health, one in the department of

Ezblic safety—etich a separate entity. We found that not everyone
. knew what the other people or program were doing. There is no
way to know" the total level of services the clients are receiving or
how much it costs or whether it is more cost-effective to deliver
home health as op to institutional service. There is also no
single point at which the elderly person can access that system and
be made aware of every service that is available and all resources
that ltﬁney can utilize to attempt to remain independent as long as
possible.

That is something that is vitally needed. .

We also have a higher proportion of elderly than in the Nation—
most of you are aware of that—and a higher dependency ratio than
that of the national level; the dependency ratio is that proportion
of the population 65 years of age divided by that proportion of the
population capable of providing support services to the elderly mul-
tiplied b’y 100.

As a farm wife, ] am concerned because all but two of our chil-
dren have left the State of South Dakota due to a depressed farm
economy that radically affects the tyw. of employment and the,
means of making a living in the State. We expect the youngest two,
to leave this year to go to college, and probably be fo: also to
leave the State.

We are just a single family, but I can assure you in my hearings
around the State, I have been made awdre that many elderly cou-
ples or individuals are faced with the problem of having that vital
informal support network missing. In the State of South Dakota,
the economy and the condition of agriculture go hand in hand, and
families are separated. That removes the vital source of the infor-
mal network, -

We have 39 counties that are medical manpower shortage areas
of class 1 or class II, as designated by the Federal Government. It is
very difficult to deliver health care in these areas. But we also
rank third nationally in the proportion of individuals 76 and over
who need services.

Senator PressLEr. That is, South Dakota ranks third of States
who have individuals over 75?7

Dr. Horza. As the proportion of the State’s population over 75, it
ranks third nationally.

Senator PressLEr. Our people must live a long time.

Dr. Horxr. They do live a long time.

Senato LER. Aren’t we one of the longest in longevity of all
the States g the Union?

Dr. Horzr. Yes, we are. We are No. 3 for the combined male-
feﬁale, and we are No. 2 for white female, and No. 5 for white
males.
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fS.etngtor Pressren. Is that right? What State has the longest lon-
gevity

Dr. Horxs. For both sexes, Hawaii.

Senator Pressrxr. I would be curious. Maybe for the record, you
could submit that. But for the length of life of women, we are
second in the Nation? )

Dr. Horzr. We were second based on the last census data. We
have not received the most recent census ta broken down by

, seXx, and race. We have p:guhtion only. So we will be redoing
of the statistics in the month of June.

Senator PressLEr. What is the average lifespan of a woman in
South Dakota?

Dr. Horzr. It is 77 Tor white females.

Senator PressLER. And for a man, it is what? ,

Dr. Horzr. It is 69.4 for white males. '

Senator PressLEr. We will put it in the record, but you can
submit it after you have had a chance to check your notes. That is
fascinating, isn't it? Now, we are a Northern State that is kind of
chilly. Do you suppose that is the reason that we live longer?

Dr. Horxe. I ‘sup we get a lot of exercise when we are
snowed in, because the only means of transportation is walking or
climbing the snowbanks. ’

Senator PressLERr. I notice you have said that rural livinf was
kind of a state of mind sometimes, or something that a lot of
people do not envisage. -

* Dr. Horzr. That is correct.

‘Senator PressLEr. I find that to be true. But I think in some of
our small towns, like Humboldt, or other little towns, there are
about 50 percent elderly in these places because the ranchers and
farmers move into the town, don’t they, and retire there?

Dr. Horxr. Some do, yes. And South Dakota has 292 such loca-
tions and 55 percent of the State’s population lives in a rural area.

Senator PressLER. Please say that again.

Dr. Horzr. We have 292 towns—you cannot call them cities,
really, when you are talking about a two-block-long area; 313,169
people, live in these locations or in more rural areas.

Senator PressLER. In towns of what size?

Dr. Horzr. Towns below 2,600, but in South Dakota, that means
towns between 200 and 300 in population or even smaller. Ten per-
cent live in areas where there is no incorporation at ail. :

Senator PressiLEr. Oh, is that right, so they do live in little clus-
ters of houses, more or less, I guess you would say? -
boar. Horzr. Totally isolated—10 miles out from a place like Hum-

t.

lSeq?ator PressLER. Ten percent of our elderly live in such a
place

Dr. Horer. Yes.

Senator PressLERr. Fascinating. And maybe some of these people,
actually, if they had some supportive services, would be less expen-
sive to care for, just in terms of the cold, hard, taxpayers’ dollars, if
they had a visiting nurse or transportation of some sort, or some
kind of contact, because I sup these people become prime can-
didates for a nursing home if anything goes wrong. They go into
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the nursing home too soon, sometimes, because they have no
option. There is nobody around to take care of them. -

Dr. Horzr. Well, we have some of the best nursing homes in the
country in the State of South Dakota, as I am sure you are aware.
The nursing home is the only place that the elderly person from
such & rural environment can get a complete continuum of care.
Even if they only need homemaker services or personal care serv-
ices, they may enter a nursing home, as you said, simply because

there, they can get all of the services, often more than they need.

They do not have to worry, and they have their needs taken care
of. I would say the big problem associated with such care is that 60
percent of those who enter nursing homes as private pay clients
convert to medicaid within 12 months according to our latest statis-
tics gathered this })aat year. Then providing care becomes a very
costly proposition for Federal and State government. I know that
the State of South Dakota has, in particular, requested waivers on
some of the Federal regulations that would allow more innovative
solutions to be developed that deliver care at the lower level in the
continuum of care—personal care homemaker care and related

tygzs of care.
nator PressLER. Are any of the goals for future data collection
which you proposed in ¥our long-term care plan going to be
reached in the near future

Dr. Horzr. No, Senator, they are not. Due to budget cuts and

staff cuts, we are unable to go ahead with any of the efforts. There

is a lot of information we need to have, not the least of which is a

determination of the most cost-effective means of providing services

that are both vital to the elderly and of quality.

Senator PressLEr. Do you feel that the current lack of data is
currently having an effect on your ability to provide adequate and
appropriate services? o

. Horxr. Yes; it is because we cannot provide the justification

that is necessary for develogx:ent of the informal support programs

that inherently are felt to be cost savings programs while m

the elderly person happier; this is an important consideration that
is often overlooked. These reoile want to be independent as long as
possible, and at our public hearings, many of them personally
spoke to us and said, “With a minimum of service, I can stay in my
home 2 to 3 years longer, but if you cut the homemaker program, I
am going to have to go into a nursing home,” or, “If you cut the
transportation program back even further, and I cannot get in
town to buy my groceries, I am going to have to go into a nursing
home.” And we do not have the information we need.

Senator PressLzr. Do you know any good statistics on retirement
patterns in our State? Do rural people tend to retire later? Do they
tend to opt for the later retirement under social security more
often than do urban people?

Dr. Horxr. I do not have those statistics. My reaction to that on
simply a personal level is that we know almost everyone in, I
would say, a four-county area who is involved in our occupation of
farming. These people do not retire. They work, the majority of
them, until they die, for reasons that have been mentioned b
other people who have testified—the problem and difficulty wi
social security. | am more fortunate than most because I work.
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Most farm wives do not have social security benefits of their own
with the disability benefits that have been mentioned. Because of
the depressed farm economy, the majority of farmers also are
paying in only the minimum. They have got to keep working. I sup-
pose it is common knowledge that there have been more foreclo-
sures of farms by FHA in the month of Jan in the State of
South Dakota than for the entire previous year. Yet it is difficult—
if not impossible—when you have farmed for a number of years for
these people to change occupations. -

Senator PressLEr. Do you know if there are any good statistics

on whether or not farm elderly people take advantage of the social
security system—is that what you are suggesting—on a large scale, .
or is this just sort of an observation? I mean, do we have any good
statinlti?cs on the retirement age of farmers, as compared to urban
people
Dr. Horxr. No, we do not. And the other thing we do have statis-
tics on and can get statistics on is the number of farms that are
mc:ﬁpomwd, and in the State of South Dakota, that is relatively
small. ,
Senator PressLER. Yes, that would be quite small.
Ms. KoL Senator, [ would just add, you may remember a year
ago when there was discussion of cutting back on the minimum
social security benefit, when I think a Congressman from South
Dakota asked Social Security how many of his constituents would
be served in almost totally rural areas. They could not tell. So it
appears that the statistics are not broken down where you could
get a hold of them in terms of services.

Senator PressLER. Yes, that is what we seem to have found. I
would guess that a lot of farmers would be on the minimum bene-
fit, because if they went into the program in 1965, they probably
would have paid in the minimum. I have always said that a lot of
farmers who went into the social security program would be under
the ‘social security minimum benefit. At least that is what I have
always contended, but I have never had any good statistics to back
it up.

Dr. Horzr. Senator Pressler, last year, we spent 8 months inves-
tigating to determine if there were any statistics available with
regard to farm disabilities or farm accidents. We contacted every
possible source at the national and State levels. We find that that
data is also nonexistent, not to mention the fact that insurance
companies do not even know where they ﬁ their data, that is, ac-
tuarial tables for agricultural employees. There are no statistics on
injuries, death, disability, or anything related to agricultural as an
occupation.

Senator PaessLzr. We are sometimes ignored, in other words.

Mr. Connoy. Senator Pressler, along this line, I would like to
make a point that Senator Grassley, before he left, !u%ﬁ:ted that
we follow up on his question dealing with gathering kind of
information not necessarily from the Census Bureau or from social
security, but by using these farm organizations, extension services,
and so on, who are out there, especially in those rural areas that
are sparsely populated, where it would not be that difficult for ex-
tension service or Farmers Union or the Farm Bureau to gather
that information. Our statistics could then be as reputable or more
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reputable, I think, certainly, than whatever the Federal Govern-
ment might gather. That will be the focus of his question not only
to the Secretary of iculture, but to some of these organizations.

Senator PressLxr. Perhaps where we could go is to the Census
Bureau for that. I would think that a lot of these things would be. -
available on their computer tapes, if they were run a certain way.

One gets into these circuitous arguments—the other day, I was sit-
ting in a hearing, and some cable TV people were telling about all
the services they were providing to rural areas. And I said, “Well,
that is strange, use there is no cable on our farm, and there is
no cable in Humboldt, which has 450 people.” Well, they
meant rural areas that are within counties that are standard sta-
tistical metropolitan areas, which have 50,000 people and above. So
there is a great deal of confusion when we talk about “rural areas’
around here. There are a lot of things I do not know, either, about
urban areas, but I am trying to learn them. The point is, we have a |
lot of misunderstanding, but the rural population can very easily |
be overlooked, and we would have to forcefully argue for our cause
and make people aware of it, and that is part of the purpose of this ‘
hearing, to heighten awareness. ‘ ' “

But of course, a lot of rural people do not like to admit that they ]
need any help until it is almost too late, at which time, it might be |
more expensive to take care of the problem, I contend that there |
are a lot of people in nursing homes who, with some minimum sup-
portive services, could be in their own homes, with some degree of
planning. But in our State, very frankly—and I am not critical at
all—but I guess our State legislature made certain decisions
about funding, and the Federal Government has, and maybe we
think we are saving money in these areas, whereas actually, in the
long run it is costing more. That is always something that, in plan-
ning and legislating, we have to consider.

Dr. Horxr. I think that was documented in the long-term care

‘study, and the information we found is that many of these individ-

uals, since the care services at the pnma.r{ care—lower care
levels—are unavailable and are difficult to reach due to transporta-
tion and medical manpower shortages, apply for nursing home care
and enter at the highest level, not at an intermediate level. The
result is, as you say, much more costly. They enter at the skilled
level often because they have gone without other care that they
:deeded for a much longer period of time; that has been document-

Senator PressLEr. We will be submitting some written requests
for statistics, because I want to start getting these out to the
Budget Committee and the Appropriations Committee, and we are
going to be submitting questions on some of the things I raised
today to the Census Bureau and to the Department of Agriculture.
Dr. Hofer's reall{moutatanding 'testimony here has focused our
thinking. But we have to keeto?eaking up for rural older Ameri-
cans, because if we do not, nobody else wﬂ] We cannot allow them
to be the quiet, forgotten Americans, because they have built our
country, and that is a very important thing.

So I thank you very much for being here.

With that, I will conclude this meeting.

[Whereupon, at 11:34 a.m., the hearing was adjourned.]




APPENDIX

ITEM 1. 1981 WHITE HOUSE CONFERENCE OM AGING RURAL MIMI-
COMFERENCE REPORT, SUBMITTED BY RUTH E. KOBELL

“Each time a man stands up for an ideal, or acts to improve the lot of others. or strikes out
against injustice, he sends forth a tiny tipple of hope, and crossing each other from a
million different centers of energy and daring, those ripples build a current that can sweep
down the mightiest walls of oppression and resistance.” :

Robert F, Kennedy

Why a Serigs of Minl-Conferences on the Rural Aging?

For decades It has been recognized by rural leaders. rural-based organizations, and par-
ticularly by rural older people that advancing age in rural America brings with it certain
unique and important problems that differ sharply from those problems faced by older city-

There is an ever-growing number of policy-makers, members of Congress, and leaders In
the field of aging who believe that far-too-little attention has been paid to these clearly
definable, but extremely significant differences, between growing older in a rural, t\h:

than an urban setting.

This series of grassroots Rural Mini-Conferences was convened as & major step in provok-
ing nationwide thought, stimulating national discussion. and recommending to all levels of -
government solutions which will become an integral part of the national forum provided by
the 1981 White House Conference on Aging. :

It is clear that the mini-conference process has given tremendous opportunity to single-out
and thoroughly examine important rural aging issues. and to recommend new and better
ways to make the 1980's a decade of progress for all older Americans . . . urban and rural.

Some Important Facts You Should Know: ™
o Over one-third of our nation's elderly (60 years plus) live in rural America.

o 19% of the older rural population exists with a level of income below the poverty guide-
lines.
/o Two-thizds of all sub-standard housing in the U.S. is in rural America, much of which is
occupied by older persons.
o Public transportation is nearly non-existant in rural America—greatly affecting the
_ ability of older persons to get to needed services, or to receive proper and timely medical
" care.
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¢ Many programs and services currently available under the Older Americans Act do not
reach rural areas or serve gevgraphically isolated older persons.

* Lack ot nearby medical care often means vlder persons go untreated or make long, ex-
pensive journeys to urban. medical facilities. if they are able to get transportation,

"o Full or part-time fobs jor vlder rural persons are limited, giving little opportunity for

supplemental earnings.

Rural America and its people truly are “Coming of Age” and we can ill afford to allow
apathy. insensitivity, or ignorance to spawn a new breed of forgotten Americans. Nor can
we allow inattention or misdirected programs and services to perpetuate the misery and fre-
quent human tragedy which befalls many rural people as they advance in years.

These rural mini-conference then. represent a new beginning and a fresh start into the next
decade, forged by people who care. and by people who belteve that the highest quality of
lite America can offer should extend trom birth to death . . . for all people . . . wherever
they chose to live.

How Were the Rural Mini-Conferences Convened? :

Green Thumb. Inc.; a rural-based national aging organization under the sponsorship of Na-
tional Farmers Union. was designated by the Executive Director of the 1981 White House
Conference on Aging, Jerome Waldie. to serve as the official convener of the Rural Mini-
Conferences.

The Green Thumb Organization was selected as the convener because of its demonstrated
years of concern and experience in developing and implementing programs and services
talored to meet the needs of vlder rural peaple. Operating programs In 43 states. Puerto
Rico, and the District of Columbia. Green Thumb had the nationwide capability and ad-
ministrative network necessary to undertake the organizational planning and provide the
logistical support required to convene the Rural Mini-Conferences.

How Many Rural Minl-Conferefices Were Held and How Were They Finariced?

Six Rural Mini-Conferences were held on a regional basis as follows:

1. September 8-10. 1980
Owensboro. Kentucky

Serving:  Kentucky. Indiana. Virginia. lllinois. Ohio. West Virginia. Michigan

L September 23-25, 1980

L RIC

.

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC
-

vﬁj‘ -

East Hartford, Connecticut .

Serving: New York. Delaware. New Jersey, Pennsylvania, Mﬂiylmd, Vermont, New
_ Hampshire, Maine. Massachusetts, Connecticut, Rhode Island

. October $-7. 1980
Jacksonville. Florida

Serving: North Carolina, South Carolina. Georgia, Alabama. Mississippi. Florida.
Puerto Rico, Tennessee
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Iv. October 19-21, 1980 L

. .

Sioux Falls, South Dakota
' Serving: North Dakota, South Dakota, Minnesots, Wisconsin, lowa, Nebraska

V. November 12-14, 1980
Oklahoma City. Oklahoma .
Serving. Arkansas, Kansas, lnu.hum Missouri, New Mexico, Oklahoma, Texas
v VL November 23-23, 1960

Sacramento, California

Serving:  California. Washington, Oregon, Montana, Wyoming, Idaho, Nevada, Colo-
rado, Utah, Arizona, Alasks, Hawaii

Financing for the Rural Mini-Conferences was made possible through a series of unprece-
dented interagency agreemnents which pocled monies from a host of federal agencies having
‘mpondbimbtmxd the elderly in rural areas.

The following federal agencies participated in, and provided financial assistance to the
Rural Minj-Conferences:

1. The United States Department of Agriculture;

2. The United States Department of Labor;

3. The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development;
4 The United States Department of Health and Human Services;

Health Care Financing Administration
Health Services Administration

3. The Appalachian Regional Commission;

6. The United Siates Department of Transportation;

7. The Community Services Administration.

These agencies which provided financial support, along with literally hundreds of locally-
based Community Action Agencies, Area Agencies on Aging, Universities, civic and social

service agencies that staffed and gave technical assistance, made the Rural Mini-
Conferences possible, and made them work.

How Were Participants in the Rural-Mini Conferences Selected?
Conference participants were essentially comprised of two groups:

1. 650 Delegates ~whose expenses were paid through Mini-Conference funding, after
.meeting certain @igibility criteria. and being screenad and officially selected by a state
Rural Aging Task Force

2. Non-Delegate pasticipants—represented agencies and organizations, or who were
sumply interested and concerned local citizens. Non-Delegate participants primarily
represented the network of social service professionals providing a wide range of ser-
vices to the rural elderly” All Non-Delegate expenses were borne by each individual.
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Green Thumb. Inc. serving as the Rural Mini-Conference convener, was responsible for the
establishment of a "Rural Aging Task Force” in each state. The “Rural Aging Task Force”
was compused of a wide range of local. state, and federal representatives whose primary

purpuse was to tairly screen and select trom among the eligible delegate nominees in each
state. a representative number ot delegates who could articulate the needs. and act in behalf
ot the tural elderly of their respective states

1
Criteria For Delegate Selection .
Rural Mini-Conferences

1 The delegates shall be selected by lSm;- Rural Aging Task Force coordinated by the
Green Thumb State Director. The composition of the Rural Aging Task Force will be
at the discretion of the Green Thumb State Director. The WHCoA State Coordinator.
a representative trom the funding agencies, a representative from the State Aging Net-
work, as well jas representatives from uther organizations, agencies. churches and

. groups concerned with RURAL aging issues should be invited to participate as Task
Force Members

The method tor selecting delegates to the Mini-Conference shall be determined by the
Rural Aging Task Force. (Delegates may be nominated and selected by the full Task
Force, or organizations groups represented mny be apportioned delegate positions to
till. etc )

3. The state delegation must meet the following criteria: .

‘ 10% Rural

Majority women

* Geographically distributed within rural areas of the state '

* Reflect minority representation as based on the percentage of minorities in the /me
rural pupulation p

Majority low income {using SCSEP guidellm)

Y0% age S5 ur older

Represent buth small town and un-farm living

Diverse backgrounds (educational and occupational)

L )

4 Delegates should be able to articulate the needs and problems of the rural elderly in the
context ol group discussion

S. Delegates should be willing to travel to the site of the Mini-Conference alone. If not
alone. the Green Thumb State Director shall identify and arrange for a responsible
persun to accompany the delegate to the conference without additional expense to the
conterence

¢ Delegates should complete all pre<onference questionnaires and forms. and submit
them in a tunely tashion to the designated office

7 Delegates should be able to provide repurts on the Mini-Conference once that conter-
ence Ras concluded.
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What Process Was Wriliaed to Examine Rural lssues and Develop Recommendations?

All Rural Mini-Conference Participants were involved in intensive discussion in snall
group . Problem identification within each lasue group utilized a process of
brainstorming, consolidation, and prioritization.

Pmldmmmumdto"dnumaunh",...tothmkwhnufenhouldmdcouldbc
like under ideal circumstances. This helped in determining “action steps” necessary to move
from the present state of rural programs and services, to where we ought to be as a nation
within the next decade in addressing nesds of the rural elderly.’

Finally, solutions were recommended and resclutions adopted for the purpose of guiding
local, state and federal policy and lawmakers as they attempt to understand, develop, and
thbhmmmh-mmmequﬂmalﬁe,mdmmpma-
tion of the dignity and independence of older, rural Americans,

This 1981 White House Conference on Aging holds a prothise . . ., a promise of renewed
hope . . . a promise that individual effort can and make a difference. And thus, this
series of Rural Mini-Conferences, along with the following recommendations, ‘provide &
staging area for action, and fulfillment of & national promise and commitment to rural
America through the Older Americans Act.

Recommaendations for Action

The following recommendations are the product of the considered thought, research, hard
work and long hours of nearly 2000 dedicated rural leaders. Their toil was a labor of love
.. but is only a small manifestation of the dedication and determination to make their
dreams, hopes, and aspirations a reality for older rural Americans. They deserve and will
accept no less. :

By way of Resolutions adopted at each of six Rural Mini-Conferences, recommendations
were made as follows:

TRANSPORTATION
In rura! America, mobility is vital. Transportation, or more often a lack of it, affects literal-
ly every area of rural life. . :

For the elderly. the ability to move about can be as important as life or death. Transporta-
tion for the elderly can mean living life to its fullest, o without it, living a lonely existence
in exile by-circumstance, isolated from friends, church, health care, work, shopping and
other important and nesded services.

No one item holds the solution to so many pressing rural problems as does having ade-
quate, affordable public transportation. Hardly a meeting or conference convenes to
discuss rural issues or problems that does not define transportation as the number one pro-
blem to rural inhabitants.

For the elderly who do not own a car, and over fifty-percent do not. some form of public
transportation s essential to the maintenance of independent living. Without transporta-
tion, many older rural persons who could, and would work, cannot, simply because they
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have no way of getting to and from a jub Many uthers are institutionalized because access
to health care is vital, and without transportation relocation bécomes necessary .

Furthermure. su otten the mapy elderly in rural areas who enjoy good health are confined
to their humes because they du nut own a car. cannot afford to drive a car. or simply will
nut drive

A great lack ot understanding seems to exist within government at all levels. of how impor-
tant mobility is to the pverall economic and social health of any given area or community
Partscdlarly  many %omciah and lawmakers seem to still huld the mistakened belief
that a cross-town bus stOPs at every street corner across America

Rural vlder people know how important transportation is to their well- Being, and local of-
ticials know tou. that transportation is often lhe une ingredient that makes all ther pro-
grams or services work . - .

Why theg 1 an aftordable public lramponanun system so elusive. yet so needed? Mainly.
because tew teem 1o understand the problem. nd fewer yet seem to care about devising a
mnonal solution .

:m.-p- have been taken-halting steps at hen -but much remains to be done to bemn an all-put
. attack on the problerq} that is at the heart of rural America’s future

.The Rural Mini-Contérences made theiollowing recommendations on lfampunallon to
improve the lives of the rural elderly.

¢ Every ettort should be made to provide education. intense technical assistance. and a
mure clear interpretation of tederal and state regulations. in order to encourage local
applications for assistance in establishing integrated rural transportation systems

A Rural Mass Transportation Administration should be established within the U S
Department ot Transportation. which would coordinate. plan. develop. and finance
rural transportation systems throdghout rural Amcﬂu:h

Greater coordination should vccur between the Federal Highway Adminisfation and
the Urban Mass Transit Administration. as related to rural transportation programs.

’
¢ Re-examine state insurance options and rates offered by individual insurarke Carriers to
maximize the utilization of}u.hjk’\nzmlunury" and religious sector tlansportation
systems *

¢ Extend courdination elforts between the Department of Labor. chnal
ministration. and the Urban Mass Transit Administration to provide innovaljve demen-
stration eftorts in rural public transportation

¢ Where possible. encourage the development of regional pubﬁ transportatior] systems
in rural areas. with emphasis on multi-community cooperation .

* Encourage the development and initiation of privately owned transpurtation systems
in rural areas throygh low-interest loans on capital and equipment. through tax incen-
tives. and through cooperative relationships between local government and private
business.

® Direct a proportionately tair share of transportation dollars from tederal and state
sources toward rural areas
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* Waive match requu'ements) thoce rural areas which are umble to raise enough local
dollars to receive federal

] "o Assure that in all planning of rural transportation, provisions are made for use by the ~
: elderly, and that route structuring takes into consideration the transportation needs and

geographical locations of rural elderly persons who often are unable to get to pick up
points far fron{ their homes.

EMPLOYMENT -

| *“No man needs sympathy because he has to work . . . . . Far and away the best prize that
: life offers is the chance to work hard at work worth doing”

g “ Theodore Roosevelt

Many real and artificial barriers exist which serve to prevent ofder. rural workers from ex-
tendirig their work years beyond previously traditional retirement age. Re-entry into the

work force, or entry at a later age, becomes neasgly impossible for rural older persons
wishing to work.

Older women, or widows who may have raised a family and who have been homemakers,
often are rejected by employers as “not having enough work experience.” Problems are

compounded in rural settings where jobs are scarce and public transportation is
unavailable. s

Rural job seekers who are older face multiple difficulties created by generally fewer jobs.
poor or non-existent public transportation, lowgr wage scales, and a shift or decline ir{ the
types of jobs for which they may have been trained or experienced. Jobs in agricultur, i

forestry. or agriculture-related fields are steadil declmmg due to both economic fa
and mechanization. X

Traditional barriers to the employment of older workers are also more prevalent in rural
areas where age discrimination is often overlooked or ignored. -

_ As a nation, we are beginning to recogm}z the tremendous contribution which the skilled,
experienced, and willing hands and minds of older workers have made and can continue to
make in our economy. Programs like Green Thumb and Senior Aides have demonstrated
ways in which this vast national resource can be applied to make our communities a better
place in which to live, work, and play.

We simply must learn new and better ways to unleash this vast, untapped resource, and to

extend productivity and financial independence into later life.

To that end, Delegates to the Rural Mini-Conferences made the following recommenda-

tions: ) 4

® The federal government serve as the employer of last resort and expand job opportuni-
__ties in rural areas through the Senior Community Service Employment Program (Tjitle
"V of the Older Americans Act) and C.E.T.A. Public Service Jobs Programs. Fewer than

one percent (1%) of eligible workers are currently given the opportunity to work.

e Establish integrated, workable public transportation systems in rural areas to enable
older persons to seek and accept work..

ERIC | |

BEST COPY AVAILABLE




52

» Develop incentives for local, state, and federal governments to take the leadership in
developing part-time, time-sharing, and flexi-time work schedules, and encourage the
private sector to follow the example. B

® Examine practices in Employment Service Offices to assure that rural areas are ade-
quately served, and that older workers are identitied and given counseling assistance.
The establishment of an “older worker counselor” has proven extremely successful in
limited pilot efforts. This concept should be expanded into rural Employment Service
Offices to enhance understanding of the special needs of older rural workers, and to
lessen intimidating experiences when the age difference between counselor and client is
great. Older persons respond to “peer counseling” when assisted by a counselor of
similar age in seeking employment. .

¢ Encourage the private sector to employ substantially greater numbers of older workers
through the use of tax incentives.

¢ Lift social security earnings limitations" to provide incentives for older workers to con-
tinue working, earning, and contributing.

e Expand loan programs and technical assistance available through Farmers Home Ad-
- ministration and the Small Business Administration, and earmark resources for older
persons wishing to become self-employed, or to enter private business.

* Extend vocational rehabilitation Benefits to older workers in order to provide assistance

with dentures, ‘eyeglasses, hearing aids, and prosthetic devices necessary to seek or con-
tinue gainful employment.

It is now clearly recognized that functional rather than chronological age is a better
measure of when an employee should disengage from the labor force. Funding should be
provided for national research and development of functional criteria for measuring
employee ability to contintie working, in order to prevent arbitrary age-based forced
retirement. .

Develop usable, understandable Affirmative Action Guidelines for public and private
employers in implementing the provisions of the Age Discrimination in Employment
Act. These guidelines should be clear, monitorable, and enforceable under law.

* Eliminate all upper age limits under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act.

® Provide funding through the Administration on Aging and the U.S. Department of
Labor for the conduct of nationwide educational efforts to greate better understanding
of the value of older workers among employers, potential employees, and the general

- public. Suck educational efforts would include private-sector employment demonstra-
tion projects including the establishment of private sector job banks and employment
placement services for older workers in rural areas.

HOUSING

Housing problems among the rural elderly are acute and often tragic in human terms.
Many elderly‘rural persons are living in sub-standard housing with inadequate plumbing or
sewage facilities, or none gt all, and many still have unsafe sources of drinking water. Sixty
percent (60%) of all our n&ion's sub-standard housing is in rural America, and one of four
such hotnes are occupied by an older person or family.

]
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Many rural homes occupied by older persons were bullt over fifty years ago and are inade-
quately heated ar insulated, and in hot weather climates, homes oftentimes are poorly in-
sulaied and have no cooling systern. Thousands of okder persons die annually from cold or
heat. preveritable by proper, and relatively inexpensive, weatherization trestment.

For older homeowners with often low and fixed incomes, simple maintenance, as well as

skyrocketing eniergy costs, are an enormous drain on limited financial resources. Many
o&rmﬂmmq}monbﬂmfudmfoodduﬂmwh&rmﬂu.mdformy,
the choice is tragic. :

. Mhd«ru&mdmﬁﬁmﬂn@mdmﬂmhﬂwaﬂmﬁmoﬁm
new, low-cost rental, or owner-occupied housing.

Congregate housing for the eldesly in rural aress still lags far behind metropolitan areas in
the numnber of per capita units available. Still worse, there exists no national plan or time-
table to approach this serious problem in an organized, efficient way. Great confusion has
~been created, in part, by overlapping federal agencies, inconsistent financial guidelines for

Mortgage money for owner occupied housing is often scarce in rural areas, as is financial
assistance to private developers for the building of multi-family housing, affordable to low
or moderate income older persons.

Furthermore, development costs are often prohibitive in rural areas. This, coupled with
typically smaller developments, often serves as an economic dis-incentive to developers,
even though the need exists and is real for many ill-housed older persons.

Delegates to the Rural Mini-Conferences made the following recommendations toward the
solution of rural housing problems:

* Substantially greater funding should be provided through H.U.D. and F.H.A. to finance
rural congregate housing with multi-service facilities incorporated into the design.

* Expand weatherization programs in rural areas for both summer and winter, including
alternative energy-efficient heating and cooling methods and the installation of insula-
tion and infiltration prevention materials.

® Expand and effectively utilize Farmers Home Administration money, and rental
assistance programs. Extend the use of program funds to mobile homes.

¢ Transfer weatherization funds and administrative authority for those funds from the
Department of Energy back to the Community Services Administration to improve the
effective use and delivery of program resources.

* Develop consistent standard eligibility guidelines to be used by all federal agencies in
determining income eligibility for rental assistance programs, low-interest housing
loans, weatherization assistance and other housing-related programs servirig the elderly
in rural areas.

® Develop a national housing policy, with a plan and timetable for providing orderly
and equitable distribution of housing resources and assistance to rural aress.
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o Provide consumer housing guides and information about available housing programs
for use by the rural elderly.

¢ Develop tax adjustments for the eldcrlj to decrease tax burdens with age.

NUTRITION

“Man has but one body in which to house the existence of an entire lifetime. Therefore. the
care which one takes of his body to a large extent determines the quality of his existence

For all of us, the ability to remain healthy, independent, secure, and productive depends
greatly upon an accurate knowledge of proper nutrition, as well as upon the availability of
nutritious foods and supplements, and our access to them. Indeed, without a nutritious
.diet, good health and both physical and mental well-being cannot be obtained.

Proper nutrition is essential for normal organ development and functioning, for normal cel!
reproduction. growth, and maintenance; for optimum activity levpl and working efficien-
<y: for resistance to infection and disease; and for the ability to repair bodily damage or in-
jury.-Therefore, every effort should be made to attain and maintain an adequate. balanced -
dally intake of all necessary nutrients throughout life.

Unfortunately. the opportunity to obtain a balanced, nutritious diet is not one enjoyed by
all older Americans today, because of a variety of factors, which include: insufficient nutri-
tion education; limited or fixed incomes with which to purchase dietary requirements;
unavailability of nutritious foods and vitamin/mineral supplements; insufficient funding
for congregate and home-delivered meals, as well as other nutrition services; and limited
access to nutritious foods and health services, where available.

For the rural elderly, these problems are compounded by the oftentimes great physical
distances separating the elderly consumer from the service and by the lower economic tax
base of rural éommunities with which to support nutrition projects. Furthermore, the
overall higher cost per unit of nutrition services to rural residents. as opposed to their urban
and suburban neighbors, contributes to a lower percentage of funding, development, and
delivery of nutrition services to rural areas.

Certainly, proper nutrition is considered to be an essential technique of “preventive
medicine.” as well as a necessary ingredient for the effective treatment of health-related
problems. .

In Rural America, where health services are inadequate to meet the needs of its citizenry,
preventive health care is of great consequence to the physical and mental well-being of
olger citizens. Good health in one's later years may mean the difference between living in-
dependently in one’s own home, or being institutionalized in unfamiliar surroundings. It
may mean the différence between financial independence or dependence, between hap-
piness ur despondency.

The opportunity to obtain nutritious meals, both congregate and home-delivered, is an op-
portunity of life-giving and life-sustaining proportions to thousands of rural elderly.
Because proper nutrition was recognized as being so vital to an active, satisfying life as one
grows older, Delegates to the Rural Mini-Conferences recommended that:
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® A qualitative measure constituting one-third of the daily minimum nutritional allow-
mﬁwﬁhmﬁnﬂh%mﬁmﬂdhm&faﬂimmwﬁnm

® Processed foods should be clearly and simply labeled for nutrient value,

OMhuc.apmd-dfundimd\ouldbeumurk.dEwMHuormmummdoodd
mdﬂwymwﬂmm&nﬂmwmdmdymnlpubkmof
phyimlhohﬁm,uwdluﬂneonwondimh@mmdmhdﬂimytomnl
ares residents.

O&ddmwhﬂxmdhwdmbebmbmdwuhnmrmmmmymulwm‘
should be reinstated with adsquate monies allocated for those services.

® Restrictions on the use of Madicare, Madicaid, and Food Stamps should be Lifted in
mdumuﬂowﬂnpuxdmdvltmﬂmmdoﬂmnmmmmpﬂmmhbyﬁnmedy

] &ﬂmdmmmdehwymohwummunlqudymdmm
a8 mobile grocery stores. .

o Expnd,hmwdeﬂm'dmhmhﬂudeﬁm.amud.mdwmblem,uwdl
unummus-udum'dwuhuuhmbcamhwmd\edly.

. hmmordimumdfmmd!vdomu,udddivuymwuewo
cles and organizations (n order to best meet rural needs.

OWWMMMHmmthMWMdﬂnMMy
mddnhuwy.mdthmudueomdlmmdwmmudfon.mﬂﬁood&ampdl-
rectly to rural elderly residents.

ORmmelmlmmmumlﬂowforfuﬂuﬁlhmonofUSDAmoommodmsby,
charitable and non-profit organizations/groups; advocate alternative processing tech-
Mquuudmvdunuuhborﬂwuhmmdhmmtymnmm.

¢ In order to most effectively meet the nutritional needs of the rural elderly, meals should
be served three times a day, seven days a wesk in nutrition sites with no limit on the
number served. Home-delivered meals should be available to meet the needs of all who
are unable to eat at the congregate site, with no limit on the number served.

-mmcmmmmmmmmwmmm
allocated and delivered; eliminate uniform transportation delivery statutes for urben
mdmdmtnordcrmaﬂowforumdmumﬂaﬂﬂmytomajmloalm;
Mmuhe"momﬁmvdﬂdatobeoqulwdforﬂnhmdiappod.

o A:udincukformdiﬁblmyd\mddbemmmduambywhkhmm
sources may be targeted to those most in need. However, factors relating to emotional
stability, physical well-being, and independent living should also be considered in de-
fining those “most nesdy.”

Oilulthmdﬁmddewm:udiouldbemﬁdodtonumﬂmdnmdouuuchpc-
ponmdh:mdutoaubhﬁmnto:qnndqukklyuﬂcﬁccﬁvdytnmdm—
tions. ANy
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o Increase federal monies available under Title 1lI of the Older Americans Act to provide
nutrition education and counseling, in addition to adequate and accessible congregate
meals and honte-bound delivery for the rural elderly.

o Federal pulicies should encourage and support local community involvement in. pro-
viding resources, tacilities and services for food purchase, preparation, and delivery. as
well a8 nutrition education information and counseling for older rural residents.

ENERGY ]

A national problem of no small consequence, the problem of energy and skyrocketing
energy costs strikes first at those most vulnerable and least able to pay . . . . the rural
elderly.

Dependent on costly. private transportation, held captive to the price of oil, gasoline, or
other sources of energy transported far from metropolitan distribution centers, and more
than likely living in poorly insulated housing, the rural elderly are often the first victims to
see and feel their fixed incomes being eroded by inflated energy costs.

‘The rural elderly often occupy housing which is least energy-efficient and in need of insula-

tion. weather stripping, and other energy-related improvements. Consequently, an ever-
increasing percentage of available household income must be spent on heating or cooling
energy costs.

Home energy costs are often the least variable of household costs among the rural elderly.
as the elderly tend to occupy their homes during most hours of the day, and are unable to
alter temperature settings to more energy-saving levels for extended periods. Because of
their low-incomes, elderly households are among those least able to afford home im-
provements which would reduce energy bills.

Energy Crisis Assistance Programs and weatherization programs are currently inadequate
to meet existing needs. and often are not extended to isolated rural areas for reasons of
higher cost-of-delivery. or because the rural elderly are often unaware of available
assistance.

Immediate recognition of the problem. coupled with decisive action. is needed to avert
further suftering. and all-too-often choices between fuel or food by financially over-
burdened older persons.

Delegates to the Rural Mini-Conferences recommended the following actions to alleviate
many energy-related problems among the rural elderly:

e Many older rural residents are uneducated regarding available energy assistance pro-
grams, and are in great need of information on energy conservation methods and prac-
tices which can help reduge household energy costs. Steps are encouraged for coopera-
tion between utilities and government to develop (a) education programs for s
conservation practices (b) rewards or incentives for conservation (c) outreach efforts for
cunservation awareness (d) home energy audits.

o Establish uniform and fixed energy rates for home heating and cooling for the elderly
based on ability to pay. ’

Develop a tederal energy stamp program to provide reduced energy costs to qualifying
tamilies.

12

&

S GOPY AVALABLE




) ¢ Devilop fair and understandable regulations for energy cut-off procedures.
 Provide regulated weatharization standards for new construction of homes or buildings.
o Provide incressed federal funding for the development of reasonably priced energy, and
the exploration and ressarch of alternative energy sources such as thermal, water, solar,
. anMmmmmMmuthwdemth@.
e Expand energy conservation in transportation through coordinated pooling, better
¢ Improve and maintain railroad and waterway systenw using bold and innovative ap-
proaches in moving people and goods. ’
o Expand research into alternate living modes such as underground housing, foam con-
struction and innovative congregate housing arrangements.
o Establish elected Public Service Commissions with provisions for public review of
utility rates. . . : .
o Stop preferential rates for high volume users of energy.
o Re-evaluate environmental regulations to determine where modest relaxation can gain
high returns in energy use reduction or cost reduction.

o Mandate through regulation, use of available conservation technology both for new
construction and retro-fit on older buildings and homes. .

e Rewrite building codes to require use of conservation technology, and enforce through

o Greatly expand funds available for weatherization, including financial assistance, con-
version of heating systems to more energy-sfficient and cost efficient units, -

o Make greater use of tax incentives to encourage conservation and to expedite weather-
ization. .

LY

RETIREMENT INCOME/ECONOMIC WELL-BEING

“All of us could retire nicely, without financial worries, in our old age, if we could dispose
of our experiences for what they cost us.”

Author Unknown

No national promise rings so hollow to many older rural Americans than the promise of
financial security and adequate income to meet essential living expenses. One in five older
persons in rural aress live below federally established poverty guldelines, and many more
are among the “marginally poor”. That is, they have a family income which anly slightly
exceeds the stringent poverty guidelines.

Financial security among older rural residents has often been a lifelong problem. With
generally Idwer wages, few job opportunities, and a declining agricultural economy, many
families were unable to save or invest for their retirement security. Others, of course, were
not covered by Social Security orbecause of low eamings, only made minimum contribu-
tions. )
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Nationwide, inflation has eroded the buying power of fixed-income dollars jropardizing the
security of millions who expected to at least be able to meet their housing. food. and utility
bills. if not to have Hnancial “peace of mind” in their later years.

Rural older persons. Jependent on private transportation to move about, are often forced
to tace expensive automubile uwnership. or substantially higher transpartation costs to get
tu essential health services. stares. and vther services often centeréd long distances from
their homes

In short, being older and being “rural” represents a double threat to individual financial
security, and certainly being one of many ethnic minorities living in rural America. adds
even a third unfavorable dimension.

In order to assure the financial security of older rural residents, and to promote individual
self-esteemn and independence. the delegates to the Rural Mini-Conferences recommend the
tollowing :

® Amend Social Security laws to provide greater protection for women, partlcularly
widows, and divorced widows_ Such changes should include provisions for:

(1) When a spause dies. the surviving spouse or surviving divarced spouse inherits the
deceased spouse’s earnings credits to the extent that credits were earned during their
marriage. .

21 Rem'nize marriage as an economic partnership. and as |uch that homemaken
contribute to that partnership.

{3) Inherited credits would be added to any credit earned by the |urvwln3 spouse before,
during. or after marriage.

($ At age 62 the survivor would become eligible for retired workers benefits. That
benefit would be based on (A) inherited credits if survivor has never worked in the
paid labor force. or (B) a combinativn of inherited credits and credits earned by the
survivor. -

($) Disability benetits for honfemakers.

¢ Change inheritance tax laws which penalize womer involved in the economic partner-

ship of tarming .

e. Develop responsive adjustments in Sucial Security payments which more accurately. and
in a more timely way. retlect increases in the cost of living index.

e Sucial Security benetits should never be less than federally established poverty levels
o There should be no taxation of Sccial Security benefits.
® Private pension plans should be transferable.

e Emphasts by the federal government should be toward a more balanced federal budget.
along with enwuragemem ot increased individual production according to individual
capacity..

e Social Security cost-of-living increases should not affect eligibility tor food stamps.
medicaid. or H.U D. rent levels.

CoPY AVAILABI.E




¢ Earnings limitations on Soclal Security should be removed antirely to encourage con-
tinued earning and later retirement.

o Himinate taxes on savings.

MBII'M.ANDHIYSICALHEAL‘IHANDLONG'IWCA.R
‘Gmyddwﬂhmlﬂnhdhy‘ttoh-ﬂnhﬂoﬂlhforwﬁdchﬂnﬂﬂmm..."

*  Optimistically implying that ong’s later years should be filled with meaning, purpose and
the opportunity to Live satiefying, productive Lives, these words of Robert Browning point
to a sad dlsparity which oftentimes exists in our country. This disparity is betwesn our
dresma of a bright future as we grow older, and the solemn awarenses that thoss dreams are
not reslised by many elderly Americans because of inadequate basic health care services in
The maintenance of one's physical health, and consequently, a system of comprehenaive
health end long-term care services has long besn viewsd as a basic right to be enjoyed by all
Amexican citisens, regardiess of sex, age, race, ethnic beckground, religious or political
preference/affiliation. Also to be added to these categories is that of “geographical
focation”, since rurs) residents possess uniqualy different health service problems, condi-
tions, and service. delivery requirements than those of urben and suburban residents.
Certainly, for America’s older rural citisens, health care services may mean the difference
mm&pmumdm\mmnnmmdw\:ymdhmmmmm
hope and despeir, life and desth. . .
On behalf of the almost fifty percent of all rural Americans who live in medically under-
served areas, Delegates to the Rural Mini-Conferences recommend that:

A. Moedical/ Health Coverage

o A comprehenaive national heaith cars plan should be legislated, financed, and im-
plementsd for all Americans, replacing Medicare and Medicaid. Pending the .
achievement of such a plan, the complete rangs of health care services for the

“ elderly must be provided by expanding the coverage and flnancing of Madicare
and Medicaid.

o Medicare policies should provide coverage for dental, hearing, and vision services;
chiropractic services; supportive non-skilled, in-home health sesvices; hospice
care; intermediate nursing care; preventive hsalth care; prescription drugs: mental
health care; podiatry care; services by all certified medical/health care providers;
and protection of patients’ rights by service providers. .

e Medicaid policies should cover preventive health care; hospice care; adult dsy
care; homemaker service: physical therapy: and mental health care.

Omlmmmmdndimumolmmmdummmw
coverage should be reviewed and liberalized.

¢ Restrictions which dissuade or prevent family members from meeting the haalth
care needs of thelr clder family members because of insufficient financial induce-
ments or assistance, should be removed, with incentives such as tax credits, funds
for cuetodial care, and home delivered made available to families who take
care of their own. ‘ .
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B. Access to Health Services ' .
. Aﬂadabhnu'dmblkmporuummdmbuhmemkedwuldbedﬂdupod

mdotynndndtopmideoqutubhmtomedmlmdptherwlh-nhud
services

o Legislate and finance additional mobile health care units, day care centers, well-

* sendor clinics, hospice care, respite care, in-home care, home-delivered meals and
rural heslth clinics with health care specialists available on a regular basis.

. Expmdhdmhduuﬁonmdmmﬂnmmmforﬂnmdddﬂlymd
their families through Increased consumer and community planning, coordination.
and delivery of services; distribution of information; use of available media and
communications systems; and expansion of clder worker and CETA
to implement these programs. .

o Eliminate prior cash payment requirement for admittance to hospitals and other
haalth service facilities.

o Establish ombudsmen to assist the rural elderly in abtaining appropriate case,
completing health claims, understanding medical care provisions, and alleviating
sdverse conditions relating to health care nesds and services.

o Establish a ceiling on all heslth costs, including insurance fees for medical care,
and prescription drugs.

e Provide incentives which encourage pharmacies to honor Medicaid Cards and
prescriptions under Medicare,

® Encourage and expand the availability of ru;al Health Maintenance Organiza-
tions.

¢ Provide inducements for state and local governments and private enterprise to en-
courage training and continuing education programs for long term care and other
health service providers.

o Incentive payments should be made to rural paraprofessionals: grants to medical
students specializing in family practice who are willing to serve rural areas upon
. completion of training; training in geriatrics to health professionals and, para-
¢ _professionals. .
C. Quality of Services
o Improve quality of nursing home care through regular and stringent monitoring,
inspecting, and evaluating of nursing home care.
e The concept of “peer counseling” should be expanded, utilizing trained older
counselors within social service agencies to evoke a more effective response among
older clients. .
o The staff of all social services agencies should be sensitized, through specific train-
ing, to the emotional needs of older persons to whom they are providing services.

e Provide funding (federal and state) to make available a continuum of care for the
rural elderly ranging from supportive in-home services, through institutionaliza-

1 . -
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thon. Modification of requirements and restrictions governing Titles XVIII, XIX
and XX of the Social Security Act, and modifications of Comprehensive Older
Americans Act should be made in order to most successfully permit older citizens
tomlnmdependzm.mthemmm&oﬂhdxchom.

. Wimmwhmdtondw@thedmmntymm(orkmmtom-
sure their participation in Social Security benefits; to support health programs for
the Indian aged, staffed by Indian people: and to grant ralief to Indians who find
that they must give up their land, which is sacred, to qualify for needed health
programs. :

* Encourage better local coordination and communication between medical and
' home care providers in order to assure comprehensive continuing care and moni-
toring of health care plans. Local community and private resources should be

SOCIAL AND SPIRITUAL WELL-BEING

“There is a destiny that makes us bto(hm none goes his way alone, All that we send into
the lives of others. comes back into our own.”

Edwin Markham

Nothing is so fundamental or lmponan“ to the quality of life among older, rural Americans
than having the opportunity to fully participate tn the social and spiritual life of their com-
munity.

S0 often the network of social.and emotional support required to make life meaningful. is
sained through the associations and fellowship of family, friends, and neighbors, in
church, or in community social events.

It is imperative that programs and services be designed which expand upon, and enhance
this natural suppon network.

Delegates to the Rural Mini-Conferences recommend the following:

* Promote an awareness of stereotyping, negative attitudes, and myths surrounding the
elderly in our society. develop-effective educational, public, relations, and intergenera-
tional programs and activities to correct this stereotyping, Improve attitudes and erase
myths. .

® Develop and.or expand educatidnal and informational programs which contribute to
improved crime prevention at the local level. Volunteer programs such as “home wateh”,
; alert”, and self-defense programs should be expanded.

* Establish more effective and comprehensive consumer protection activities at federal.
state, and local levels.

* Institutions of higher education responsible for the education of professionals in med)-
cine, psychiatry, psychology, nursing, the clergy. and social work, should develop
within their educational curriculum, a competent of quality geristric and gerontology
education which responds to the special needs and problems of the older population.
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¢ Contribute toln-tmfmﬂ]yhvlm(ormnleldeﬂybyhmuﬂmSSlmdFoodSump
allotments; protecting the family from severe economic loss due to family care of the
elderly: provide low interest loans to fainilies for home renovation which enables them
to care for their elders.

¢ Fund volunteer programe in areas of administration, recreation, and management train-
ing; provide tax credits to volunteers for hours worked: give priority for additional fund-
ing to agancies/organizations which develop and provide volunteer programs.

® Support community programs encouraging “in-kind” contributions and the bartering
o Enhance and expand the National Senior Companionship Program of ACTION.
mednmmdfoodhmnmﬁmformdtm. :
. . R
o Develop effective educational and skill develops tclauewuhhlnput(romthcruul'
diderly designed to improve self<oncepts, employability, and continue the process of
o Utilize the talants of the rural aging in local communities through employment, volun-
teer activitiés, on advisor/planning boards and committees. )

o Encourage the devélopment of neighbor assistance programs to relieve loneliness among
the rural elderly by subsidizing volunteer visitation services.

° hﬂyhndkurdocvdowmmdlm"hlchpmtded(ormdnmd, agricultural,
mdnml,coumumtyd-velopmemmordntopwmuhcm.htofrunlyoumtouw
d!b,dmmhudqmumalmplorymtopponumuo.mm;hto&mdywmh
mmmmwmwmwmmwfmmmwn
uponwhichUnoldmdfnlleldeﬂydepmdforphyﬂalmdmotlonallmthmd

¢ Local agencies/ organizations should provide assistance in pre-retirement planning to the
rural elderly. 3

e Local churches should provide taped worship services and sermons, conduct prayer
maetings, and provide other special ministerial services for the home-bound rural
elderly; conduct religious services at nursing homes on the Sabbath and religious holi-
days; offer volunteer chore and homemaker assistance; provide advocacy, counseling,
information, outreach and referral services; offer home-delivered meals to the home-

o Encourage the tesching of the hospice concept, and affirm an individual's right to die
with dignity: utilize the elderly in counseling and outreach efforts to bring about an ac-
ceptance of death as a natural process. ‘

* Government policies should support and promote the continuation of small family farms
as vita) to the well-being of the rural elderly, and to the preservation of our national |
heritage. )

* Expand the development of rural multl-purpose senior centers as focal points for the de-
livery and coordination of needed services for the elderly.
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* Enact legialation to ald/or grant relief from the high cost of food, fuel, rent, heelth, and
hospital care, taxm, and the other necessitios of life, and ensure that the rural elderly
will not pecoad® destitute, totally dependent, and subject to the despair of helpness. ‘
'mhmmwmwdymﬁmo{mglmmduahmm - {
who abuse and commit crtmes"”fym'up rural elderly.”
* EAcourage public, private, and parochial schools to incorporate gerontology material
mwmhwmmdmmduummmmmmwmmm\um
a classroom situation. ) ,

. SOCIAL SERVICE DELIVERY AND.OUTREACH/OLDER AMERICANS AS A GROW.»
' ING NATIONAL RESOURCE
.. Have love. Not love alone for one
. But man, as man, thy brother call,
And scatter, ke a circling sun,
Thy charities on afl . . .”

Friedrick Von Schiller

The best of programs, in design and purpose. is of no value to those who need it, but who
‘cannot participate. The extension of education, information, and the direct delivery of in-
hmnavimmammelyunponmuoo!derrummu.Nopmonorhmﬂythould
 be denied needed assistance simply because of where they happen to reside. Yet in rura)
areas, thousands are ignored daily because theyMive too far from agencies providing ser-
vices to their not-so-rural cousins, or because rural cutreach and service dellvery is con-
sidered “not cost-efficient.”

Smmodpopuhﬁommmumiwmdmmdﬂﬂculuommapﬂumwh.
but are those hidden thousands somehow lem important or less in need, or somehow
second-class Americans because they are rural? Delegates to the Rural Mini-Conferences
think not, &nd they have made the following recommendations for action.

'&wdmdpmvidtfun&fmlncmududmcyd‘ommdnthemdermﬂm
Act.

* Eliminate federal regulations requiring matching funds for services/programs in rural
communities.

® Adjust guidelines for appropriating funds for service delivery to the low-income elderly
to reflect changes in the cost of living.

¢ Mandate federally funded service delivery agencies to pvovtdn outreach services to the
rural elderly.

¢ Reimburse mileage expenses incurred by outreach volunteers. @

* Increase funding for expanded outreach services and for effactive training of outresch
workers and planners.

r'd
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o hire Outreach and Social Service Delivery Special-
~hbﬂbMM«WMﬂmMW.u\dmm
technical assistance to outresch workers.

o wnm.mwmmqumu%me&ﬂymm@.
state and federal benefit programs.

. mmmummimbvekfmbunﬁ!mm.

OMWWMMMMMNMWM-
‘mewmﬂmmmwmmd

and implementation of rural services and programs.

¢ Include in the 1981 resuthorization of the Older Americans Act the creation of & separate
mhhmmmdmmmﬂm.mmmmmm-pm
wmmdewdummwmmMmdmd
Mvﬂytodnuﬂqmmﬁdlhmnldduly,mdmpmbknuwhbdlmubthad
{n order to effectively meet those neede.

. Amdwmww&wmhﬂnmm*d\wldhm
MMM&MWMMMWMWWMnMW.
luﬂnfhdm.mMAmmnwmmdndwdoMohmw
mmmmmwnmdmunmmm. '

e mmmaw«-mmmmwum
o~ mmmmmmmwmwwymmmmmn
mmmmwwwwmmmw:mdm
-mmmm.—n&mwmm-mwmdammm
nmlmdmbmddtly-dm-mwhichammnlmdalhwtohmmly
-hud.tlmthundﬂimmyhmﬂymmmmmnﬂmﬂm
for rural service dalivery. N
* Local, m,mdhdznlhmdﬂmuﬂoaﬂ,ulmmmmdnnmlddalydmuhh
based on a “nesds formula”.
mmmvm“wdmmmwhﬂlmdwumm
w.mwm.mummmwmmmpmmm
mmwauuicnmdcmuuﬂubmdddﬂy.
. mmwmmmmmmmmmﬂwxy
aoummm*umdmunmmnbmAadxmmmm

1 ‘rhum'mnl‘md‘mﬂm‘hﬂmhﬂudtmminmdnormmﬂl
Momﬂhﬂhmdw.wmwﬂmhwmdhmmd
mﬁummmwﬂu&cﬂmm&t 310(b), and 312(b), (), and
w.m&n‘mﬂd‘mﬂm‘mwwnﬂmmd.m.mm
mamm,wmwmmummmmmuma
mmmomdw.mam“mwuymm
dum“m.mm&mdmjwmwmmﬂm

‘ dwum.mdmbmhmmm“ .
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* Provide telephane resssurance services to rural residents through local sheriff's offices,
or by other service delivery agencies, volunteers, or older workers. \
® Authorize and fund the research and development of educational materials, programs, |
m:ndnfurdqmtomthepmﬂmdahoholmdmmmm
elderly

OvakhM&ummduNavahononmdoﬁmwpponlwh\dunmbum.
the Older Americans Act for the delivery of social services in order to improve the physi-
d.plydlolodcnlmdlodllwdl-bdmofﬁuhdhnekhfy Funding for Section 608 of
Title VI of the Comprehensive Older Americans Act should be provided to maintain
basic services for Native American rural elderly, both on and off the reservation.

Legal Services

OPmnwuunmamhoEcununhmmdmhkpndkummmthemuo&m-
flated real estate taxes on rural property owned by the elderly, and excessive inher-
itance taxes on farm property, encouraging local ruril organizations and senior ad-
vocacy groups to affect positive changes on these important issues.

. ® Establish county-wide legal service coordinators who would prepare and conduct

_ legal needs and resource surveys: obtain needed information, resources, and assistance
from members of the local Bar Association, the State Legislature, and other legal
aide providers; provideeduatiomlmhtm;mdmfomhononlmlmvmmmm

to outreach and paralegal workers, nuuorandothuomniutiomlumunp and the
nmmedh

¢ Continue and expand legal mfonmuon and assistance under the Oldgr Americam Act

SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS

° ﬂedé:mnonof"RURAL asundbythe lmMﬂteHouseConfmce on Aging in
determining urban and rural delegate representation unfairly contributés to the perpetua-
tion of an urban bias in aging services and programs. This definition, which considers
all persons residing in towns with a population of 2,500 or more to be urban, grossly
neglects the rural character of small towns with populations of between 2,500 and
50,000. Thus, the Rural Mini-Conference delegates recommend that the present WHCo A
definition of “rural” be changed to that, as stated in the 1972 Rural Development Act,
which considers all persons residing in areas with a population under 50,000 to indeed,
be RURAL citizens.

i
LRI 2R 2]

Through the 1981 White House Conference on Aging we witness the best form of American

democracy. People . . . grassroots péople, sharing in their government, and lakm; respon-
—sibility for shaping thm own destinies.

This npon on the Rural Mini-Conferences is an important part of that process . bul we

have only begun.

\ We are each instruments o& change, but togcther, driven by dedication and convicnon we
mabke a difference.
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ITEM 2, A PROPOSED AGENDA OF RESEARCH GAPS IN RURAL AGING:
CRITICAL REFLECTIONS ON RESEARCH PARADOXES

BY DAVID EARL SUTHERLAND, DIRECTOR
RURAL GERONTOLOGY ‘ PROGRAM,
OHIO UNIVERSITY, ATHENS, OHIO

LN

Intvoduction

A culmu:nplacﬁ vbscrvation notes the enormous increase in the sheer
vutput of ressarch literaturs 1.n the field of gerontology, especially
since World War (1.  Yet it romains no exoggeration to assert that
gor’ﬁutology remains a "youthful" enterprise, especially with respect to
sociological work on oglnﬁ. By “youtﬁful" ‘T mean that the actual sub-
stantive and/or theoretical developments in the cocloqlogy of aging emerging
from such studies cannot ba indexed by ths volume of literature.

Ihic attribute applies with even grdater precision when one turns
to “"sub-populations’” of elderly for spscial examination--in partlculu%«v P
social research on rural slderly reflects very recent efforts. A‘»A/ Smalji/.
but steadily growing. body of literature now exiets attesting to the
special conditions encountéred by rural elderly that are not faced by their
urban-couwmterpsrts (Adam“. 1975;Ansc¢llo, 1980; HarvoLyon, 1977; Harris, N
1978; Lawton, 1980; Scholler, 1975; Sotomayor, 1981; Task Force, 1980;
Wiles, 1979: Youmms, 1967 snd 1977¢ Zuiches and Eml, 1978; and Wouiy, :

et, al., 1981). For example. health status 18 an especlally critical

domain for rural slderly {(General Q%counting Office, 1980a and 1980b;

’

3

. i e i s g

N N . #

e s »

FRIC*

BEST COP¥ AVAILABLE




A ext provided by enic
- a

(2)

.

Profilés, 1981; Shook, 1980; and Sutherland, 198ia).
Yot sven this rccordrinu-trntu naradoxes: on tl\ef one hand the,

resasrch efforts devoted to rural sging studies remains linited aund

msager with respect to that done on urbnh sging (Omnrdﬂ. 1979 snd Youmans,
1973). A recent bibliogrsphicsl survey examining some 40,000 publications
vritten specifically on sging fownd that less than 2 por’cent dualt with

s rural sging populstion (Kim, 19€0:330).° On the othar hand,-policy.respohsc -
" to such stulies on the "double jeopsrdy” or ';triplo Jeopsrdy"” special
cxrcﬁtmcugt rural elderly hae been described as a subtle, but
systematic Misérimination in public funding for services to rural

scess (Asbrosius, 1979; Cloward, 1979; Improving Services, 1979; Kim, 1981;
Kivett “mid l;;ﬁlmor. 1981; Nelson, 1980; and Reid, &oduy. and Hines, 1978).
An uneettling reeult of special survey studies done with delegates and
non-delegstee sttending the eix Rural Mini-Conferences held sround .tln
country ss psrt of preparstione for the 1681 White House Conference on
Aging ie congruent with the lack of resesrch and policy connectedness.
Almoet 90 per cant of >d‘10utn and non-delegates sgresd that (1) policy
plannere in eging servicee did not wnderstand t?‘/\niqu- needs of rural
old‘riy and (2) government sdministrstors and planners vere not cognlzant «
of the special problems of rural slderly (Cox and Sekhon, 1981: 11).

In one sease, the difficultise of knovladge producticn end

prsctice highlight s desply imbedded festure of gofontoloq thst rveflects
inqueetionable mieeions of the field---namely,’Whowledge production sbout

sging should be constituted in wvaye spplicsble for improving the lifes of

elderly citizene. . v
The presentstion vﬂl' strsss the resesrch aspects of knowledge

production in rursl gerontology and suggeet basic knowledge arcas that

illuminate zaps in rowearch codeavors. _With ona exception, [ will not

[}
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present Jdetailed argumentation for the proposed aegends of crdsearch gaps.
The enception lavoelves recently completed research on vural eluerly
ae yot unpubliehed and a eample paper from thit project is provided in
an Appendix. Tha other identifiable iasucs for ressarch do roflect
the work involved in that projc;:: and in othere, but the dmu'tln for

thoes polats will be illuwstrated gnly. .

Rassarch GCaps in Rural Aginx: A Proposed Agenda
(1) Rmesarch/Practice

,As noted sbove, tha intent in gerontology connccting knowledge to

practice, is osaentially a gerontological axiom. No onos questions the

openly valumd intent of developing knowledge conatituted in such a manner

ae to be applied 1@ scrvices and programs sesking to improve the quality
"of life for older bcuonc. The paradox is saen in the continual tunsions

‘and dynamics charéctarizing thia intention-~~-be it the frustration of

practitionere u‘ung to ":ﬁmll:c" fcuqrch into practice or the complainte

of rasearchsrs ;m:vpolicy deeignere hnnw no adaquate grasp of busic

knowledge. ic létuu any evidence in rural aging of vhat reeearch is ‘ ,
traceable to whet: uee? ‘ ‘ L~

i argus that at best, the utilization of ressarch knowledge to applied

rural uron;.ology is primarily technical in nature. By tlile I msan the

deaire for inetrumsntation and factual information. The W'«nlopﬁnt

and widespread use 1llustrates the firet point (especially in the Channeling

w'rojccn now \;uhmy) and ths need for up-dating of socio-economic deta .
of rursl eiderly illustrates the second point.  What remains wexplored

are mnculj'ttml into more complex integration of knowledge traneferral

into policy-—-im vaye 1n vh;ch interpretive procesess utilization technical

data evolve policy. )

The most sophisticated research c!!’or‘:t along thease linea (admitedly in

- a non-gerontological setting) does not provide encounmuué for thosa

#0lder Amsricans Rasources and Service .
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with 8 wechanistic wmodel comnacting knowledge and policy. While .

gerontologiate and policy askare eurely recognize “political” dimenatone

to iaformation-exchanges in policy formstion, RANN (Resesrch Applied to .

ll:ﬁn&l. Needs Divieion) sponsored etudies of the use of social

science infermation and public policy making et the federel level

‘indicate a more eubtle process (Rich, 1981). Rural ”:.-on:olou remaine

uwnawere of the vhlus of non-aged related resserch in the sociology of

sciance as ¢ masne of developing age policy etretegiss. We need g“\‘

ressarch focus directly on knowledgs—transfer wechaniams from rural '

gerontology to rural prectica.

{2) Rurel Environment: Berrier to or Esssnce of Rural Aging?

The search for e satiefactory dafinition of "rural,” especially

in terms of legislative policy, continuse. Surely a common element

involved in chat effort admite to the environmeatel charecter of rurel

1ife-—-the distances, geographical isolation,sparsely populeted erees,

. .ot egricultural land features-—that discinguishee it from urban America.
Yot thie moat essantisl feature in wvhich rural eging occure bacomea
defined as ona of the moat severe prablems for rural elderly. Availeblicy
of ur'vtcu and facilitiee ssems relatively ;dvmtcpom for urban
alderly, and all too scercs for rural elderly. The latter fece eignificant
coste for transportation to Trequisite services and much effort ie dovoted
to setimating such coate for program deeign (Wosny, st. el; 1981). Policy
.ruurch thus esuggeste that euch coste conetitute barriers for improving
the qQuality of rursl }iving for eenior citizens because of “‘;lltimo
:nnaporu‘uou gape, and t::cnl clv-nou’. . L :

While not dsnying the interest for such questions, nevertheless, it N
vesaine peredoxical that wve have besn unable to re-frams our efforte and .
'ncopu: the genuins importance of such fcn:uru of the rural environment

for contributing to e meaningful aging experiencs. Sugcly. to convort

- »

Q 7
ERIC 4.

Aruitoxt provided by Eic: 5 d




(3)

-
-~

rural services into urban cownterparte on tha baeis of wishing-uway
the “burden” of rural environmentel featupep peredoxically sceks
! dJdastruction of an elemant Of rural living eesentiel ¢o its chefacter.
\ Ve might wish Co transcend geographical dietance, perhape even modify
it sumswhat, but we need never forgst that such geographical chamc:urlrd:‘lm
aust be retained as opportupities, not negative bnrriu:c. Aging
| ‘policise must re~effirm Che chvt:cn—nt not "transfer it to another aileau
| entirely; t.e.. make “rural” e kind of mini-"urban” eftusticn. We
> need resesarch on the poeitive contributione and potentialities fov j“‘
(’ aging pussible in euch an environment. ‘

One puseibility recognizee an elder-envigonmantal complex for rural

4

. eging processes et beet only hinted at in current etudiee. Rowles'
work (1978) done initially with ;rbm alderly and more recently concerncd
with rural aging in Appalechie (1980 snd 19310 and 1981b) provides .
micro-level studies uf the meaning given to geographical spacce hy rural
elderly. This work needs to be done on e more extensive ecale,
pc;hnpc involving techniquee like “mental mapping” (Could and Whitae, 1974)
epplied to rurel eitustions. Hovdo mr\d elderly incorporete into their
maaninge for deily life the location feeturse of their lnvi:onmnt?

Which of thess features are selient for them? Whers do eging services rank
in cheir mtcrpnntigm of their geogrephical spece? B
Other technijuse ‘could be epplicable hers---for example, thoss

1llustreted in urban etudige (Wamee, ed., 1982); .or the use 'of
remute ssnsing technologies 1like ERDAS (élnh Rasources Analysis Systsm),
or utilizetion of ;co;rcplqully sophieticated i{nformstion techniquee such
s UGIS (Universal coo;n;hic Information Syetems) to build IMGRID filee

Information Manipulation on e Grid) for constructing generetive modeling

ERIC
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combining (ined traneportation eyetces, service location, and luterpretive
mesninge of the environment for wnderetanding how rural eldoerly -m;-.'ottute:
their envitonmental festuree as @ qualicatively tmiun: dimsneion to

rural aging processsa. Ve nead to incorporata environment in rescarch

on rurel aging as a sptual comp of the social thought of rural

elderly (Sack, 1980), and relata that procses to service utilisacion

patterns.
(3) Meanina of Rural Aging Sxparience/Procase: An Rxcureion into Heomnoutice

An important contribution of gerontological studiae to the underetanding
of aging focusas upon "qy;hn“ of eging captured in yalues, ettitudce, and
atarsotypse held edout aging by alderly and by ncn-;ldnrly. Other
vork hiae axsminad sslf-images is epscial aub-populacions of aldarly (1.e.,
womsn) or evea emong service providers :Muoivn? Often the question hae
besn posed in the contaxt of vhather or not ou-\riy 1088 astess and
prestige in industrialised socistise as opposed to ctraditional societios.
Curiously, the paredoxicsl alement remains unstated-=——namoly; on the ono
hand iadustrialization creeted the conditions for e “"greying” of cociety.‘
while on the other hand, dsbete tas itself to the loee of value for
elderly citigzens. Ve M’CAA!Z:! the couditione to ellov eging yet
disavow aging as o stigmatized or rolelsas fola.

1 have sought a diffarent approach to undarstanding the msaning of
eging axperiences, basad upon social theoty emansting from Ruropasn socisl
thought in che tradition of critical theory. My intarset lise in
axploring tha "natural" occassions under which aging becomes a fector 1in
selt-image and eslf-sctualization in rural environmente. tow ie ono remindod
of aging? 8y the Ares mncy‘%lon Aging? 8y socisl gsrontologiate doing
ressarch? 8y needs nnu-n& surveye? 8y reading the Older Americans Act?
Vhat are the raflexive dimsneionslitiss to aging and how can those

dimeneionslitise be rasserchad?
-l
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With ewpport from the Adminietration on le.n;. initial efforts have
besn made 1in this directiem (Sutherland, smu_y. MQuovn. 198193, Appondix A
containe one project paper relating directly to}th. fleawe ‘;M o ing and
also providoe wulficient datails fvr the rluurd: deaign and chutanteriatilcy
supporting thie diecuseion. I proposa et least three reflexive
dt-uctmllt}ou to the aging experionca: (1) :oclnlc’n't the cugnitive
m; and knowledgs ebout eging by e pont;n; (2) hermensutic: the
ﬁtucuutvo processes involvad in tf; linguietic decoding procceses
employed by e parson in lnwngup-pgomtctum and diecuseion of his/hor
eging; and (3) c-mdpotoéy: tho practical ections taksn by e persun
roflectively mbtivated through the intersection of (1) and (2) with °
the intentionality of creating poseible futuree 1in which eging occurs.
The Kinehip-Information Rural Aging Project allovs initial
sssasemente of the firet two dimsneionslities: Rural slderly vers
given the Pelmora Facte About Ags Quis (probdadly the firet time aever
dooe in rural etudise) to asesss ttntr cognitive knovledge ebout aging;
they wers than asked (rether innocently) to inform us ebout the difficulty
in talking about e range of topics, among which was aging. Tha resulte @
vere \;um:tod. o
Rurel elderly femalee in this sasple displayed e remarkable consistency
and tt.htmsc to their c9g;£uv. orientetions to eging (Ses Table I in
the Appendix). Moreover, their Quiz ecoree correleted with othar kinde
‘of socio~demogrephic characterietice and activitiee:. Rurel malee
displsyed virtually no cognitive cohsrency-—-they seemad to occupy e
different social world altogether relative to rural women. The small
sample eize disevowe much .conudtna as to gsnerelity to other rurel
siderly (! have just obteinad dste on Palmors scores for sows 900 rurel

slderly for additional exsmination of thie finding), but tha theorstical .

intent of thie Tesasrch ssems pPromieing. Ve reslly koov vory little

‘ 77
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sbout male/famule Jdifferences in euch baeic orientetions to the afing proccss
in rurel eavironmonte, hov rural environmente help mdcuu’md agiog
btunutwn. aor how eging orientetion reletee tu program p.n‘lcip.’utun

in Ulder Amsrican Act Ptul;m.

4) Dato Bass Reliability: Self-Keporte or Expert AnalyculIndtvidwl*brumndo
Policy or Structural Conetrainta .

.

1 have elsevhere explored thie 1uun (Suthoruml, 1981b) md condensu
. that discuseion here. Coneiderabls care ie required in order not to
mieunderetand the ieeue reised in thie eection. One of the more fundamental
aseumpt {ione in gerontological ressarch has us adopt the n(gn(ogy that
tnowledge ebout eging must logtculylmum:chly come [rom eging perevna.
Hence the coneiderable afforte dovoted to nesde sescesment matlwdolopius’
by eging egencies or the cereful collaction of date-reporte from eldarly.
Howevar, it ie by no msane evident that individunlly-beeed repotte
accurately eupply gervutological foundatione for c;in;.knwlcdgc. That ie,
[ would distinguieh four phasse of gorontologicel knowledge: “uf* clderly;
"for” elderly; “by" elderly; "wicth” cldorly. Moreovar, ell a' knowledge
typu must be resserched eystematicelly and thoroughly---yot moet roscarch
projecte ignore one or move. One could interpret much of aociel guonwlohy
es an exsrcise in demonetreting hov eldely themsslvee provide flewed
lnuﬁcc (mythe) of eging and that e potential problem in reeserch *
e the furmation of aging policy besed upun elderly self-procleimations.
- Thie can be illustroted in rurel eging haelth petterne. Teble !
provides aggregote data from a very rocent Vital and lleslth Stetietice

taport . Becauss of nationel eempling procedures, date collected for

ferm 6reae neceesarily reeulte in eignificant sompling error. vacinnlcu.

@ structural pattern of 1-p¢tr-int differentiele exiet to the detrimont of

trural eldarly. (Thie rurel-urban heelth Jifferentisl ie elso reflectod in
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TRAE 1 PREVANNE OF SELECTED IMPAIRYENTS
FOR ELDERLY G5+ URBAM VS. RURL,
» UNTED STATES, 1977

OUTSIDE
PETROPOLTTAN AREAS  METAOPOLITAN AREAS

CENTRAL
oy OTHR MeENs .

VISUAL IMPAIRMENTS 0.9 20 2l 12.4
SEVEFE VISUAL MPAIRENTS W5 38.0 @3S - 0.6
OnER ViU PARENTS 1733 140 1816 158
SPEECH IMPALHMINIS 84 8.8 1.4 9.2*°
PARALYSIS 5.5 233 " 08 3.6

ABSENCE OF FINGLHS OR TOES 1.9 15.9 21 28,8
HEARING IMPALRMENTS

74 W3 WO M8 A
7o W4 WO W2 16
IMPAIRMENTS
R owsen %3 B8 B w06
BACK OR SPINE .
&7 - @3 66 60 wae
7o @5 B8 76 @2
LOWER EXTREMITY °
R HIP
AT @4 @2 B4 72
7o  s2 M8 ®1 @6

*RaTES PER 1,000 POPULATION
*ORE THAN 30-PERCENT RELATIVE STANDARD ERROR “

SOURCE: VITAL ND HEALTH STATISTICS (1981)
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the UARS aesessment Jata diecussed in Sutherland, i198lad.
However, tutal elder}y the-um rarely characterize the ruval ' ;
environmeit ee @ tuulth—'lurunbua eituation fur elderly; tndoed, it ‘iu,
the urban eituation that i desmed mure dangerous . for en older pecson
(here crime ie usually cited). For that matter, a rich mrlcau‘tauutcn
axiste that 1e pro-tursl and anti-urban n v;lu descriptions of those i
environmente. le one to “cowtetect® t;\t mie-percoptione uf lay individual
rutel elderly with that of the "expert” knowledge of the ucrontulogut-f‘i
The task 1@ neither to dismies nor wncritically accept at faco-
valim uGsarticae madd by rurel eldaerly qbout thoir circumstancas.
The ‘task ie to toeter communicetive mergere of "gor‘bntologtcal" knowledg
with the immediete social worlds of rurel slderly. “Ihia knovledge -
cumplex-prucess hae ot been researched. We do uét know hov to
marge “etructurel date” on rurel eging phenomene vith the soclel wurld
of rurel elderly themselves-—-and to do o in euch feshion that woold he
productive for policy development. Currsnt reseerch precticee do not
tout inely roqutr; resserchere to “report beck” directly to thygse olderly ’

from whom information ie extrected.

{3) Rural Aging Prectice: Inetrumsntal-Tochnicel Programmotic or blecoursive-
Incorporetive Evolutionary

I believe that ‘much geromtologicsl reseerch ecquires velus VIWn‘E.}
traneleted into policy-—-but thar the resserch modeling of euch processss
_la too ultrtsud and treditionsl. Indsed, fedsral policy encouregee thie
view of resserch-policy by Lreeting rurel aging ieeuse es tachnological
in nature (1 have heard programs dsecribed as “"technicel" programs).

1 would proposa inetesd e resserchable modsl in which policy davelopment

requiree e discoureive moude of exchange that seeke to incorporets zcrontolu;;tcal

knoviedgs ee pert of an evolutionary program dsvelopmsnt. ¥For example,

o
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rurel seroatology, 1ike eging etudies 1n mqrd..' often commente on the
expscted differencss in rural elderly in the future in comparison with
current older citisens in rurel envirocamente: educationsl echievement will '
be higher, health etetus better, family eize emaller, etc. Can wo
bagin research now on evolving “nev” rurel cohort prodbless se evidence
of program succese critoria? .

Amother example: Wenmborg and Gictelsohn (1982) ctu.lfcd wenoral
health cars in "emall oreee” in chres Mew England etates. Though not a wtydy
emplicitly on rural eging, it clearly perteine to health cers in rural
situations. They eugpest that an faportant (if not mnjor) factor critical
for reducing unneceesary madical usags ie an informed patient eesertive
enough to suek uem;d and evon chicd phyeician coasultation. 1ls en

sinformd rurel elderly person poseible? How can that qusetion be resserched?
$) Rurel lndmiun: adition or H Tach Potentisl %

The current American focus on high technology, new computer
generetions, and m!orinwn-proa.utn. revolutione might ed@m vareleted
to rurel eging tesearch. Howsver, the National Research Conference on

! Tachnology and Aging project currently wnderwey did include e Rurel
Envirommente workshop et ite firet mssting last eusmer. The two pepere
prepsared for that workshop (Coates, l’il and Windley, 1981) uﬂi hopefully
be only the firet of e eariee to explors implicatione of technology for
rurel eging. Resesrch on epplicatiome/isplications for-technological
1anovetion pertinsnt to iesuse in rural eging is virtually nonexistent.
Indead, @ major ‘Lnun: of tha firet Conference wae tnformstionel and )
educetiousl in gettin§ gerontologiete, business, and technological experte
to becoms svare of respective capcubutt‘t'u and intereete for developmsnt

of future product matkete and d.\nlopn’nn for elderly populetiones.

‘
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(1) Rural-Urban or RuubRLu; Aging Comparisons

kural gurontological studies claseically wdaretand ruval aiingy, in
comparieun to urban aglag pstterie. Tihie probably reflocts tho traditivnal
rural-uiban contlivua lesuss in rural soclulugy end rural develupmont
ro.uuch. Thie vesearch dtrategy will no Jduubt contianue.

Yot it ie pussible tu bugin volcing an alternative Iruurclx negyd==-
namsly, serious and full attention Jevoted to studiee of rural agiag
patterne in Jdiffevent rural regione of the country. le there ssrivus
reasun to take for granted that aging Ln rural Appalachla will accurately
wivem aglig peucceses in the ma.uz? Souttivest? Far Wost? Lo New York
tutal elderly lnfo.r- us of evente sncouwitered by ;unmt citicone fii
the Dakotas? Arc Spanish-epesking older peravna in California similar

to inn(us;hy hill elderly? 8ince rural elderly cunutitute abuout vie third

4
of older Amsricane, ies it not reasonable that ve ehwuld promste dowearch

activitise seeking undevetanding of the xutal-regionalism axistont iv
thie coumntry?

(8) Rural Aglng: tandmeiden of Utben Elderly ot Furesunner for Urban tlderly

With good reseun, muet research activities in aging concern theneslvae
with urboi elderly; rural etudiee coutinue ae a kind of sccond=counin
sntetpries, Vet, 1 believe the potential for imaginative m“; fundamental
work n aging will vecur in rural aging rasearch. Unlike urban studies,
ressarch L rural enviriunmente recognizee explicitly or implicitodly a
lé‘ng standing ‘commitment of the ft;ld: the racognition that all condvavers *
,aoi to maintain the existence of rural character to aging evonte. uuu.vir
dtéficult to analytically define or Joscribe, this tacit commitagot 1
thw lutegrity of tho cavironment placesd o prufuund cosoatch obld fgat lon

for tural spng studics: To prosorve that that gives tho oldor persos his/iwr
-

‘5
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‘axcéptions exiet to thie u+eru.on. i,8., SRO etudiee. Yet the general

4

:‘
|
rural chaucter to their ngih;. This research seneitivity to e social '

milesu Co eging is not as p*vmnt in etudies of urban elderly. (Important

\
point Mc.) s
Rural eging ressarch )co-itl icself not omly to mconring beeic

g-rontnlogical knowledge ab*out agin also commits bLtself to muintcuance

of the rural eocial envito&mt in Uhh:h aging pa::nrnn occur. We do

not have an adequate lmovl+dge buo for eccompliehing :huc taeke well.
|
On the one hand, rural ur‘lm:ologicn 0? avare that meclhanietic

tranefaral ot' urban eging .:recultt and puct‘im to e rurel environment will ,

wot do, on the othlr hlnd‘ ve atill leck eonnnd Jt rural aging knowledge

to fully conetruct aging érogtau for rural el.dcrly. IE we could acquire
{
the capecity go ufchuunl! and ifitervene appropriately in individual

|
eging ‘svente for rurel clh-rly and do so ciml:mously sainteining the

integrity of the rurel cmrunu for nu:h pooplc we will hlve [] knowledge
base and practice powcer indead ‘Eor cons‘.ldeution by urban gerontolo;,ints

Ic. 13 in thie sense, thlt cmhideub'lc ptomige existe for rural gerontologtcul

:amrch efforfe. : : L N
Concluding Rematks S v ‘ ,

: I have -ou;ht hcre;‘. Eo~1'deu:1fy exn-;lu of resserchable probldms . )
reflecting ;cpc in our, H‘novlldge about rurcl cgin; events, 1¢¢uel. d N

l .
pro&uc. In doing ool sy intention was to etietch Our m;mctiﬁn; for -

f
producing ;erontologicni htwledit

k
work will continue llong more tuditiml and nninc:reu atreams of :hought

I have no doubt tl’ut exullent. solid

th;u; typify current genjeution of ruul cgin; reseerch.
Yet I vich‘ to udue for eufficient rjoo- to explore elternative ) N

‘v‘tor genereting ren&crch problems in .rurel aging.

theoretical trndition¢~
| 4
:’i LS M
| - . e
| ‘
é‘
| \ ! .

| : :

. . \
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! ,
Such traditions aré reflected in the discussion presented above:

proposed dtud); of at least three reflexive dimensionalities to the .ping .
proceu“technolo;ical hermenesutic, enncipatory—; nation~wide vural
studies of using in variou- rural regionl\. regearch desigus that requirve
the mcorpontion of uldarly as e test of’ -:udy results (i.e., are results
. convincing enough to be incorporated into daily sucial worlds of rural cldeviy):

and examinatioo of language-dimensioning to rural a;in; throuk';h analysis

~.

of aging ae ducouIlive practices. Other kinds of studies come easily -~ \;\

to mind: identify the most extreme rural counties as defined by the . '
varicty of definitions of rural exis.tent in federal pollcey uuldéilnca fv.;t
defining what ought to be core rural aging envirdnments (McCarthy agd Morrison,
1979:22- 118t 623 of 2.1:69 nonmetropolitan couties as the most yrura) using
1970 Census deé¥initions); devalgp new indicators of gerontological well-beink
for U.S. comties modelmd efter th‘e work by Rosa, Bluestone, i‘ln‘sﬂines, 1979
using the 1970 Census to generate noci:l indicators on a County basis k’or;
the entire country;- or mentol-mapping assessments of rural aging °
programs and services combining 1980 Census data at enumeration district
luvels fur developing detailed studies (;f potential rural clients matched
to delivery designs. For relativeiy’ modest coste, a feaeible project would
+ be centralized analysis ‘of secondary data on rural aging already avallable

in such age-data archival systems currently existing at Michigan and Duke
*~ for identifying commonalities and gaps. “

- But if pressed ‘to advocate for research activities expressible in
vne word, that word'would be"thinking." An Amer&can Nobel Lauregte H
‘is said to have remnrk‘d that he&ould get a research guﬂ't’_’anytime he

watited, but it was not pusﬂ’lhlc to pet a rescarch grant un what he wanted to

du.‘h Ay emerging federal research pulicics on rural aging studles will

.
N
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properly identify research guidlines for such activities. Poseibilities .
noed to be created that allow for elternative ways of frami;xg research

: ’qucuom. thet ellow for supporting buicg :u;km. about rurel aging,
and that ellov for even futuristic modeling for rural aging eervices
twenty years from now. Howqver t‘nndln; and Suu‘cu current oueux:en:;
of rural eldorly now living in rural America ore, we do heod tesearch
etforts aimed at future cohorte of oldar Americane arriving in rural
environmente as we cnd :h:llc century.

.

Given the current times of extremely limited resourcee aveilable

»

for widosproad demands, better utilization and eupport of ruscarchers

interested in furel aging must oc::u‘t in Qnyc that ald policy decisions.

The rtecent creation of the Office of Rurel Development Policy within
the Depertmunt of Agriculturc involves nppoint-nt“ to that office
of @ Rural Aging Specialiet. Without queetion, that officer ehould - -

expect and Tsquaet cooperative help from those-of use seeking better

knowledge ebout rural eging. Answere ‘to the r rch gape identificd

in thie etetement will contribute to those efforte on the federel level,
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Appendix A (20)
tul Sex Role Difference in Perceiving Age:
. ]

ciologicel and Anthropologicel rindiage*
-

K
-

David Earl Sutherland
Robert K. Shelly :
and
Susan Rodgere Siregar
Departmamt of
Sociology and
,‘ . Anthropology
Ohio Ih}vnntty
Mh‘nc.]%to 45701

[ —

latroduction
Competing theoreticel and methodological approachas abide in
socisl science examinstion of gerontologyi indesd, vithout much difficulity,

one can readily identify e dosen theorise that have been proposed in

studiee of eging ranging from disengagsmsat :hoory\o socio-cultursl
th-onftu to ege-stretificetion theory. Mathodologiee ranga from

cese @tudies to neticnal eurvey projacte to participant observation
research. Typically theorias of gerostological ptenomene ere diepleyed
{o terms of contraste and eimilepitise vithis e perticular etudy. but
usually e centrel framswork provides the orientetion throughout the
\hsrk Methodological cowlui}:tu ere more rerely located \;xthtn e
discoursa of contraste and einilsritiee, but reported reesarch V:yptccuy
implorae om dominant cty!c of dste collaction and enalyeis. Givan

the current conceptusl etetus of sociel gerontology feeting on @ kind

of theoretical nLnd field and u\;cu the veusl veriety of eocisl ecience

*Thie paper ia based on resserch carried out under Adminletretion on Aging
grant 90-AR-2069 swerded oy the Departmsnc of lleslth and lluman Services,
Office of Human Development Services. Pressnted et Annual Masting of the
Garontelogical Socisty, November 8-12, Toronto, Cansds.
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rasserch atretegiee eveiladble, no definitive framewvork exieta (o

conducting aging etudies. Rathsr vbviously, treusarchere must wike

decided choices framing quastiona and developing projects. )
The Ohio Kinehip Study Project developed wirh the conecious mun't.

of combining eeversl th-orcttul intereste of the regsarchers around

@ ssriee of cwlﬂul}mcﬁim ebout eging proucnl‘accurtnl within

@ common context---namsly, selected eepecte of aging in n'mul

environment. An espscially wunique espact of thie project recognized

from the the creation of the etudy the deeire to reeapoct thavrctical

Mvnutt;'- One project goal wae to combine the etrengthe of thuoreticel

framsvorks focueing on releted aspects of rural aging. Tha project

reflecte an unusual combinstion of theoretical intereete vtthin sucial

gerontology.. Un the oue hand, the senior euthor hae boen interosted

in Hadarwae' cnu;u theory~~--an epprosch not within thea msinetrcan

of American sociology, mich lese social garontology. (m the other hand,

the other euthore have strong intersete ‘in eymbolic anthropology and

@ social construction of reelity cpr;:‘occh to eging. The pointw of

cenvergence in deeigning our resserch and in interpretetion of findinge

have provided an unususl richnese in eubetantive findipge from the projoct.
These theoretical intersete aleo impgcted wcnh the mathodological

foundations to the project. Tha Sate-gathering machanisaa reflect

Joint colleboretion datween two reseerch treditions: eurvey date gethering

techniquae and the employment of inteneive, in-dapth ethnogrophic etudy.

Indeed, the mathodological richness of combining and integrating empiricel

techniquae often seen Sa divergent proved to beons the eubstentive

findings resulting from the resserch (Shelly end Rodgsre-8iregar, 1981).

i

i  BEST COPY AVANABLE




. (22}

Our theoratical framsworks empluyed colloboratively tesultod In
sach of us contributing to verious anpacts of the deslgn of thv
aurvey instrumsnt used and the neture of qusetions employed In tho
sthnogrephic vork. . Thie perticuler peper illustretes the quputud

® richnese of such efforte and ve believe constitutes an wusual

situation. On the one hand. the dependent vauaialc (pex difiurences
in imagae of eging) reflecte the work of the unt;r sutbor in seeking
to epply critical theory to aging. On the other hand, ths confcnull
analysis of that variebls (the independent veriablad) reflects the
intereats of the othar euthors in the eymbdolic meaning and social
conatruction of riclny theoretical epplications for the analysis
of eging es @ sucial phenomenon. We thus sesk not theorotical
compstition but V theoreticsl colloboration for underetanding end
posing an wnexpected substantive finding ruv.:lttn; from our empiricel
invest igaticne smong rural elderly.
Backyp roud of tho Ohie Kinship Study

Gur resserch project examingd selectad aspecte of eging issuce
about rurel elderly reeiding in a southeastern cowty in Ohfo. 'fwu
furdamentel phases vers operetive in the date-gathering process.
The anthropologist lived in the county some 9 months prior to act:u_al -~
edminietretion of the eurvey inetrument, and began Che Hcldwﬁk
study of the project before the survey was initieted. Her study

. in Grantviev focused upon &b households in which wore than half contained

senbers over tha age of 55. In addition she wes involved Lntcnuvolyv
in vertous espects of community 1ife of eldsrly renging from villase

.
sctivitlon to senivr clubs to erips to tho roptonal senlor citirzons contor
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to pcn‘tctpot‘ton in senior trips to faire and other ovent# aut 8l de
the county. In addition towerds the end of the project s condactvd
edditionel interviews in one of the lerger "cities" loceted near thw
villege. la general, her resserch ectivities ellowed rather {ntensive
and exteneive ducumentetion in conpidarebly eymbolic detail of the
umuuw sociad :yum- and iinguistlc eystems wncclt;;ud emoug these
rural elderly. . .

The narv-y phass of the project drew upon two dmxncuv- cubuuplau
of thess comtry rurel eldsrly. The local eging egency cooperated i
fully with the project end provided us with e liet of their sorvice
usere. We eamplod from this 1liet in order to develop e "usor”
aubsample ;:l rural elderly. "Non-usare” wee e reeidual cetegory and
e® no list ol; non-users existed, wvo rosorted to e sampling plan which
involved @ veriant of the Propsbil uy' Proportionste to Size deeign
developed by Sudman (1973). The "user"” 1iet provided gome 700 names
of which 140 names vers randonly selected and 79 completed intervieus
vere accomplished (the reletively low rete of completion is attrlbuted
to etele addresses on ;fl ltufc and deceased individuale). We tergeted
100 intervieve to be ccc&nplu'h-d through che comt;-vtdn sampliog
procees and oo-plo:cd 9Hmcow1m More deteiled informstion ee to
the etepe taken to sssurs ‘sax representetion se well as sseuring .
ruuuty” to the eample ie .vllllbll alsevhare (Sutherland, Sh-lly. and

) bdpu-ltnur; 1981). ?

The eurvey inetrumsnt eddreessd e range of intereets, covering topice
ebout individual, luny.‘ cosmnity, and tergeted services. It eleo
covered household compoeition, contect with kin, community m_volvcnnu:

contact with friende and neighbore, and informstion on organitecicnal
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memberships. The psrticuler focus un this paper entailed aspeocto ot

tre sutvey instrumsit discuasad bLélow.

contemputy Amsrican sociological theory, much “lou

witiin wontompory sucial perontology. For a numbut ol yeurs tin

sanior suthor hae been working within the tredition of critical
theory sesking to both underetand and apply such theory to
talevant subdomains of evciology. la particulsr, the carly part
ot llabermas’ work Jdealing uuh the elaburation of o [ramework
rslating human intetests and knowledge produ:'ucm [T ol particular

promise end this section wild hriofly eusmarizo his understandinyg

of that eepect of Habsrmse®' echema for use here (e more datailod

ststamant of that underetanding is eveiledle elsevhere end is pused

in @ more generel format--Sutherland, 1979).

labermas pusds threa kinde of veadie” that cheracterize the Way

humane reeide in the wvorld end interact/interrelate vith the matoriol
world end wach other. These "medie” point out ;cncric human intcrestw

op-druvn respectively in neh“ domain ! ttyt ie, &seocietaed with aacH )
medium is @ perticulsr kind ul’hu-sn tnurﬁt and a perticuler
con-uu-uan of hnc;vlcdgc-uru:mru. Associated with "work" sctivity
1s inetrumssntel-technical knovledge; that 1e, knowledge cepsble of
releting "ab)ccuvuy" to direct exchanges with the masterial wurlidy.
Auudnod with "languags” 1s hermeneutical knowledge: that is,

Imoul-dgc reilectivealy produced @s a conesquence of unguuuc dimcoursa.

Flaelly, "emancipstion” poess the reflexive capecity of humans to

fmagine poesibilitied yet-to-be-realized end the kind of knowladye 'll\qulry

94
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aseocisted with thie intereete te "critical” immlcdgc. while not
§ermane to thie paper, we epaculeto that this dimension potnts b .
@ dietinceion betwsen “practice” and. "praxie.” ‘

The senior author sought to develup two empiricel indicators
reflecting the firet two medfe within the context of gerontological
revearch. For the tJee of “inetrumental knowledge' our survey *
{netrument included Pelmore's Pacte About Age Quis; for thw
reflexive dimsneioa of "htrmcutﬁ:d-duwuru" we Lagorpurated
a range of questione conécmln. rupond.nnn’ feelinge about a;c as
@ topic of dievoures relative to other potentiel topice of discourse.
Again, @ Jdetsiled diecuseion of chat analyeis te posed elecwhwrc
and we wieh to present only the sesanctiale relevant for thie pepot
(Sutharland, 1981). The edministration of Pelmore's Quls ebout
factusl knowledgs of eging to fe eurprieingly e novel epplication.
Pelmore (1980) tdanctified 30 different groups of subjecte otn SS atudics
rapresenting 3,231 reepondente to the ecale, Vistually ell cheee .
aubjecte are "c»gund" sudiedces (etudente, feculty, workehop participantae) (‘
and we eetimate from hie dats that only 130-200 in 4 etudiee wers themse!ves
"aged." - Rursl elderly do reflect patterne of "informitlon~imogos"
ebout eging in responding to the ecale. The sample msan was 13.14 with
@ gtandard deviation of 2.87.

Hovever, in eccordsnce with labersas’ model, the critical finding
concarned vhether or m;t “inetrumentel” knowledge of eging related
to "diecoureive” precticse of these rural elderly. Table 1 ehove

the major finding of che ettempt at eecking empiricel application of

Habermse within @ gerontological context. P

P
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the limftations of the eampls size elluw examination of n.u\s
dittocentiale onlv by i‘uhﬂh‘v’ldht% (he rospundant s acdovdbialy,
Cleasliy o dx‘umc:‘xv- sex-differentisted pettern emmrges. Fomijcs
Jemunetrated an extremaly strong cotsrent pettern Lok ing kiowloedyo
sbaut eglag tﬁ‘ll the topice uf discoures tncluded in the survey
fastrumeat. v Uw otiwe hand, mslow revealod ow aimont anomlc stdte
of iccormmct--amu “n their knowledge of eging and willingnoss
;.u deal with toplcs of diecvurse, The pattasn of sox~diflunentials
in “tnformation-tmages” of aging Jdeiine the dJopendent vartablo
for snsiyets tn thie pepsr. -The kinds of veriebles evailablu
on the instrument for heiping underetind thie pettern wore woloited
from tiw’ Cheoretical parepectiva of approach ssoking a soctal
can-uuctigg :ul r.-'lllty modaling [ho aging process.

« Tt Sociel Construction of “Imformation-Ima es” of Aging: A Sex-Difforentiutod
Constellstion -

i diddt At

Teble 2 showe the associetions Letween Palmore Seale wcrs

end sslected verisbles fop our rurel elderiy. The sslected veriables
R o lugh typical Jemographic verlablios of ape, sducatfon, marital u.a:u».
and residsence. They eleo '1nc&ud¢ L 31 ] complex phsnomene ranging from
sociel ties with kin or triends end “'mvol.v,o-mt in cosmunity etructure
ranging from generel scttvity o use o!'uxmud ;-wtc--. A strong
u.=lxuku§) patilern oniste.  For tumalom, 7 of tle 9 corrulations
with eging knowledge ote significent; but for malee, only 23 srve.

’ -

Male knowledge of eging tilltl‘. only to~9m1mnt in° public eervices r
and cq«:uct with friende. For females, cu'xn. s more complex and comnnt‘ '
pltt.n}‘ﬁtcl.— Their knovledge of sging tpieces to their owvn age, .
aducetion, maricel uit‘u. n-h’hnc-. public service usd, ;onculfcuvuy.

. ‘ s ’

%
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and use of targatud lcrviccq fov the elderly.

Finally, we examinad a-more ch'l:uilcd wapping ot of axsociatiops
. ’ L. .' .
T of demigraphic and scrvice variables with feelings apuut topics

of discourse. Table 3 provides those gata. L

L3

. . »
N L
Age ix refated to feelings about discussing Inceme and polltics. 019~

et people find both topics cnsier to discuss than o younger people (v 5 -, 159,

B

re <, 165). The pdttern in sex specifiec only for politics, with femaley
. more likely to find politics easy to discuss §f they are older.
Sex is significontly related tn feelings abuut aping, lnépme, and

health. 1In all three cases fcmales find these -fusuen to be more dlffléult

©
>

topics of conversation than do mules. Sex is uot related to any of the

other feclings about éuplcn of couwversation. R

¢ Residence in related Lo feelings about ogiung, fucome, health, Enmt}y.

politics, and relipion as topics of cuuversation. WiLh the cncoptlun‘oﬁ
family as a tupic of couvcrlntlon.‘rural rcsldcuts.flud these Lanua moru'
dlﬁficultvtb talk about than do-town residents. UOnly religion a;d bniltlcsv
are sex n}@clflé: rural males find religlon a difticult topic, while rural
- N . .
females find politils a difficult topic. if ,*
Education is related only to aging as o :op(chaf conversation.® ietter

educated people fing ngingvaore_dlfflcult to talk about than do others.

- Controlling for sex reduces this relationship to non-significant proportions.

" however.

Marital statns is rglntcd to-feelings abnut fuecome, healtll, family, and

.
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raligion only wheon sex is controlled. Marital states 5 related to 'l’ru. i-
ings about pulitics, Ju.h married. respondents likely l.‘o fand pedbties o

N dtfftcult mpic of vonversation. When aex s ;’(lllll'\||lt‘|l tneome b4 o Casy
Lopic for wnrued mlpa. and a difficult one for marritd l’em.xlos. Health
is o dltftcu{t topic for marriea! males. l'hcn: is o :ymuvl;ulun between
health and marital stntus for f{emales. Family A‘:'m n wopic of c;wcrsuuon
1s difficult to dissun“ for single femalcs; there Is no association fur
yle-. Harried fq}nnlcl find reuglon‘»:c“be a difficult topic, whide no
n-_qctndon oxints for uales. .

lncoma as a topic of conversation 1s onie:’n‘ for thosce with hipler =

. .

incomos. Controlling for scx shows this to be espc‘:cluuy l;ruyc Yor Gl ovs,
and not true for females. 1lucome is also related Lo feclliaps ahout c:-mn‘y
as & Eol»Lc of conversation. Higher incomg peoplu find (amily a dil(flcult
topic. This difference disappears when s‘cx is controlled, however.
Activity in ths Comaunity ns mcasured by the geaeral activily dndex
of public servica usa is relatad only to feelings about pping and jncome as
topics of convqna"ttbn; In:ths casa of both le‘(l of Indices this is cepe-

i

chll; pronounced for famales and in threc out®of four cnses not true 'for

:uun. Being activa mokes 1¢ more difficule to talk about apiup and income
than doss not being active, “but only for famalas.

l"ntly variables which hava an impact on !eolfngl include sox speciflc
“.".“: for fealings sbout aging, tﬁcgue. family, and pohdé-. ‘Fonmoles with
dense o!(lprtng net.v’otkl find aging and income dlfﬂculz topics to discuss.
Femalss vuh dense sihling netvorks find family an casy topic tn volk abo.n;.
Policics as a topic of qlt-cuu}cn 1s related to dansity of the nolwork nf ~
other relatives for both mnlas and famalas. Malas with densc othur rela-
tive natvorks ftnd' politics an casy topic, while femnlas ind 1t o difffcule

topic, if thay have other relatives nearby. ..
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W ) B
s Contece with felonds 1s highly ser. specific fn ten elffeces on toples

of conversation. ‘The glu?nx index of tarpoted servico une (x not related
to any of the feelings questions. Oaly when the mo;l specifie tndices are
introdoced do any patterns emerge. - Alnoutazlonal servicen arae rof;%ud i;;
tcclingl aboot friends und feelings about tdltglnn. but these assoclations

are ‘spx specific. rumuluc invoived gp ullociatinnul au(ivlttpﬂ are much

- I

norc‘lik-ly to find ealking nbout friomds and religton dtrrlcult than auy
other groop in the sample dultﬁed by saex and uotvléa usc. Mnles who use
welfars-oriented services ara likely to find politlcs g dlf((cult¥aopic to
diecuss. HNo other group exhibits chis pattorn.

The use of eervices which the respondent must chve thd home for arv
Eclntcd to fewlings about health, politics, and {riends. 1ln nll cthree ca-
sep the rvelationship is highly sex spocific. Females fnvolved in chose
services find health an easy-topic of cochr.;tton. flowever, thoy alsd
ft;d friends difficule to talk about {f thay .are using these services.
Males find politics a difficule topic of copversation if they are oulﬂu
these services.

an;oted services which come to the rospondent gre related l« Ecolingn
about aging, 1ncon¢. henlth. fricads, and politics an topies of cunvurnu-
tion. Once agsin the pattern is sex .p-clfie. Females who rocctve those
sorvices are 11kcly to find aging a difficule tople. A aiwilar rcuolt ob~
tnxg- with friends an o topic of conversation for femeles. ‘The relationship
with income o a toplc of cnnvornatton disappoars for both soxcey in Lkly raxe.
Males who rcceive services which come to them are likely to find health a

-
difficult topic of converaationd®

Uverell, the measures of feclings about topics of conversation repuat

the pacterus of highly mox spacific results we have observed thronghout the
[ A

data. The lsck of relatively large mwsbors of associatiuné for males in

ERIC
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thie dete cug*:ntc that topice of converestion ere not related €O

aspects of fawily, community. and targoted service uto L one bnomde.

The pettern ue observe for /unllu suggesete that rural women lead much
- awre fully integrated lives in the ssnsa that their respouses tu

i .

cognicive, elfective, and behaviorsl questione ore more 1ikely to corvrespind

to one another. .'L .

- s much edmit candidly that the coneistent sex-1linked pnctexnu
reveslod in our deta vere woxpacted. Indeed, the llalmore scory dutu.
and eepecially the aesociational patterne revealed in tho rather |
{nnocently deeigned question about topice of diecourso 'provod espocially

xerandipitieus in neturs for the project. One poseible modeling

jor relating these [indings is given in Figure 1. There we

provide a broad division of pre-canditional varisbles rulated Co .
.the production of information~imagse sbout eging ee well ae indicating:

the edmitedly not fully understood patterning of the impact of

aging information imagse held by rural eldorly in terms of the critical -
ieeus of involvement with programs for senior citizcns., Cloarly sous

of euch progrem involvement ie raflective of the usual treditional

noct'o-cconouc veriables c-ployad in gerontology.

Hovever ve do believé that we ere uncovering e nev lewdl of ¢
avente mru.n: from the Tether ebetrect theoretical !omdc:tdn; of ~
critical :buory, " The perticuler sex-1inksd pattern of our ctudy »

sleo. calle for comtd-uhh eddicional vork, ‘

1o -
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(31 . ‘ ) -
Famals Dimsnsiouning to.Aging: Reflsctive Conclusions ‘ ~
whils it Las long besn recognized thet sex-difforeantials exint
in sging psttsrus that favor the longevity of femalss ovar males.

and studiss on such issuss as widowhood and cstrengsmont have

besn dons on !pl;n aging, the r t sstnblishmone of a National Palicy
Centar on Womcn'ds indicative of tho vmorpent concerns with luw
- sging impacts upoD women. And cvon though larly studies of rural
sging focussd pradominstely upon males, the pontntfun ncx-pa:n ron
discoversd in our ressarch indicats tha necessity for Rroator awaruivss
of such dﬂhr.cncc- in futurs studlos of rural aglag. ’
{c might bs ussful to rslsts out thnoudcﬂl location of Lhin
1usue by comparison with ssveral rscont studios dealing oxplicitodiy
with famals elderly.
Cartaimly ths impetus of @ social construction of reslity approach
e not new. Matthews work (1979) (alls clsstly vithing this cradition
and indlcatow that the social meanlag of old sga hos lictlu to du wilh
blology psr ss, the difficulties hor elderly women feced u;rn concearnsd |
with having to confront stigmatized labele spplisd to vlder woman.
Sut her smphasis wes upon the lwnct’ of sociactel definitions upun those
women. not upon their cognitive grasp of the sging pl;ocon'n-
Others have used » combinsticn of survey methodology with
psychistric tneerviswe with » focud upon vomen during mniddle age
. transicions (Daten, Antonoveky, and Msos, 1981). Thair smphesis
wes on issuss other than the quastion ?ntud hers conserning (raming
. sging 88 8 knowladgs-genarated activity. And a research luagnuy
1a clasrly svident in which linkegss ere sought batween the specisl

oging procsssss encountersd by.women snd paycho~ruxual personslity
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CORRELATIONS OF PALMORE SCOFE WITH TOPICS
‘OF DISCOURSE: TOTAL SA'PLE, MALE ONLY,
FEMALE CMLY
e
wmsmm (n-m)
PALMORE AGING INCOME HEALTH FM]LY FRIENDS
200 268 06 .03
175 -1 . .085
L1630 -5 -.008
Co-y -89
) .m'
WES  (erh) )
PALMORE AGING INCOME HEALTH FAMILY FRIENDS
om ow 'o ‘o& “
olﬂq. olm '.315' 'om
om ‘.1& -0213.
-3 -0
N .m.
—ﬁ———
PALMORE AGING INCOME HEALTH - FAMILY FRIENDS
0%’ Om. Olm OZB.
-0218. '”.155' .29'
'omq 'o
0271.

siniFIcanT (P o(5 oR MORE)

-

[KCouo-n 7 b

POLITICS
SR
7
280 ¢
J15
071
Q04

POLITICS
168°
100
395°
240
055
105

RELIGION

189°
-.006
048
-.043
-9
118
27°

RELIGION

-.088
035
004
(126

"o%
050
120

RELIGION

S70*
'0017
116
-112
00
J76°
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TABLE 2 - ASSOCIATION BETWEEN PAUDRE W RD SEL[CIED ARIFELES FOR THE
- TOTAL SAPLE, MALES AD FBMALES :

hee ‘ -2 s 2
EncATION I J3 .20
MRITAL STATUS 28 273
Res1DENCE 109 185
SiaLing Density 18

GereAnL ACTIVITY 146 Q0
PBLIC SERVICES. ; 229

ConTaCT WiTH FRIENDS - J0

ReSOCATIONAL SERVICES 103 J75

| ' N
lpesron’s R VALLES GREATER THAN 125 ARE SIGNIFICANT FOR THE TOTAL SAWILE.

VALLES LARGER THMN , 135 ARE SIGNIFICANT FOR mso.*’dms LAPGER THAN
165 ARE SIGNIFICANT FOR FEMALES. '
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orunutlon_l ($innott, ot. al,, 1930). Thie ﬁu\zcarch emphonis
stresses "role” pstterne eppropriete to malee and females and
uhsther or not oldor persone must reepond to an androgynnus
eocisl expsctetions with edvancing ege.

For the mument our thinking doon nut work within-an oxuminat fon
of .c;x-mlc théory; although, that may play e role in the generetion
of aging kum;hdm. And tha emall numder of ceses ingvolvud In
@ cass study does not ellow full confidencs in the marit of employiny
Haberman® echema for arguing thntl-‘aﬂlng fa a epocial nu!;ncc of hin
larger progrem 1inking human intereste with knovlndge, [ wo are
able to generete additional espirical eupport for thoso tdone, the
next etep fe an argumant within the tredition of crtitcal theory
that would link ege~releted discourses to the generic ﬁ:ohlu poecd y

by l-lm:nt wnder hie discuseion of “dietortad” and "undietorted" ;

comunication procowsus rolevant to, g othwr pr %, the formitin
of public sphares, - It would vaiss the queetion of processes of *
“dominstien” applicable to gerontologicel phenomena,

‘on the other hand, further development of our soclel conetruction
of readity concerne would locste rursl eging o' & tradition eepecially -
saneitive to th.o elemente of social etructurs, symbolic-codse, end .
self-constructions ae teflections of ,locltteln in sociel eyetemas, That

theoretical iaterpretetion of eging evente has fiot besn much employed

in social geroutology. /ﬂ

[

.
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TABLE 3 - ASSOCIATICNS BETWEEN FEELINGS ABQUT TPICS OF cm&asmui no
¢ ssuscrEn DEMOGRAPHIC, KINHIP, COMMITY ND sswmmku’s

FeEwAGING:  SEX
RESIDENCE
EDUCATION

- . [ ] [ ]
| - . OFFSPRING DENSITY :§ . :%
PUBLIC SERVICE . . 26
3 ) / N TWEI' E . ) )
H 15,
SEX ¥
INCOE

TARGET E ye
. FeELEALTH:  SEX .
RESIDENCE .
MARITAL STATUS -
FRIEND CONTACT -
TARGET D .
- TARGET € .
FEELFAMILY:  RESIDENCE -
INCOME .
MARTIAL STATUS .

SIBLING DENSITY -
OFFSPRING DENSITY -

FEELFRIENDS: TARGET .
TARGET B .
TARGET D .
TARGET E .
FEELPOLITICS: AGE n -
RESIDENCE
. MARTIAL STATUS
TARGET €

TARGET D
DENSITY OTHER RELATIVES

. FEELRELIGION: aasxwm:s . . -
MARIRAL STATUS - . -
FRIEND CONTACT . . .

TARGET B

. ~
‘lPunsm's R VALUES GREATER THWN .1Z5 ARE SIGNIFICANT FOR THE TOTAL SWPLE.
VALUES LARGER THAN 185 ARE SIGNIFICNT FOR MALES. VALUES LARGER TN . 165
RE SIGNIFICANT FOR FEMALES - . . ¢
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ITEM 3. STATDMENT BY THE WATIORAL CAUCUS AND CENTER ON BLACK AGED, I

.

Ssnator Preseler and Mambers of ths Cosmittes on Aging, the
Mational Caucus and Center on Black Aged commends you for holding
hearings on the nesds of the rural slderly. Older Americans, of
courss, share Bany common problemss incoms, health, housing, trane~
portation, mdaoumu. Thaie p:ob).-a. are frequently intensified
for the rural sldsrly who oftentimss enocunter grsatser extreses of
dsprivation. And, the magnitude ie cm msore seriocus for rurel
older luc;- who suffer multiple jeopardy becauss they sre oid. '
Black, and ordinarily poor. - ) . %

Older Blacks -- sspecially in ths rursl Scuth -~ wers raised
in an era when ssgregation was Openly practiced. They wers victims
of discrimination -=- on the job./tn the housing market, and slss-
whers. They attanded inferior schcols, notwithstsnding the "separ-
sts but egusl® doctrine. Largs numbars were forced to drop out of
lén'ool to help their families. The nst impact ie that they wers
shortchangsd in being given necessary tcols to compete in e sochty
thet has bscome increasingly urbanised, Lndunttnuua, and co-vu
terized.

Sy virtuslly any baromster one would chooss to ues, older
Blecks have s substantially lower quality of life than aged Whitss.
They ars neerly thrse times 8s likely to live {n poverty than Whites
65 ysars orf older. They run a much grester risk of living in dile-
pidated, dftulontlng. or otherviss unfit housing. DBlecks ars slso
in poorss hesith, and hsve a shortsr 1ifs expsctancy than Whitss.

NCBA’e analysis revesls thet thess problgms are oftentimes
substantially greates for rural older Blecks. We have gons down the —

.
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long dusty roads and have seen the people left behind in the rural
slums. They nykppcn to be invisible to our Nation. But, their
needs are qrcit, and require immsdiate attention -- even_durinq' .
this period of great austerity. .

' These points were made emphatically in NCBA's study of "Informal
Social Networks in Support of Elderly Blacks in the Black Belt of
the United States”. That study focused on nearly 1,800 older per-

"sons ranging in age from 60 to 108 years old. About 92 percent of
the respondents were thk and 8 pcrccnt‘\nre White. Key findings
from that study include: . :

o About 72 parcent of thdle older persons had annual income
under $3,000. -

o Almost 87 percent of those older rural inhabitants had eight
years or less of formal education. '

' o Only 13 pcrcint were employed.

. The study concluded:

"The aging and qqod in these rural pockets of poverty and
in -other depressed areas around the country shire many common
characteristics in sddition to sdvanced nq..‘ Younger fasily
mambers have grown and moved away; health problems have sharply
increased; “friends and neighbors have died; many elderly have
been forced from their jobs by changes in the economic lt!ﬂg-
.tures of tl;“o:i'r communities, -by new technology, ,by thg retire-

ment patterns of our iocicty, and py ill health.”

v

. .

Py
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‘ ¥*
Rural aged Blacks -~ especially thoae living in the South -~
have repeatedly identified thres major problema when interviewed

by NCBA ataff: Income/employment, houaing, and tranaportation.._.
Income/Employment

One of the firat prioritiea of buaineaa is to p}onote compre- .
henaive employment policiea to maximize jqb opportunitiea for rural
older Americana, whether they are Black, White, Hiapanic, Aaian, or
other racea or national origin. NCBA atrongly aupporta effoftn to
sncourage the private aector to hire more older workers. Our
national policiea muat asek to achieve thia gé\i]. because the vast
majority of jobs for older Americana ia atill in the private sector.
Private induatry should be encouraged to l8cate in rural areaa.
Programs ahould be developed or bolatered to provide trained peraon-
nel for buainessea locating or expanding in rural areaa.

Another corneratons ia thia atrategy ia to continue and expand
the Title V Senior Community Service Employment Program (SCSEP).
Community aservice employment ia eaaential because many fural older ,
Americana aimply do not have the requisite akilla to be hifed by
private induatry. They can, though, move into private loyment
after they learn new and uaseful akilla in community aervice employ-
hent. N ‘

NCBA atrongly believea that Wuqht to have a right to

work . Oul; national policiea muat alaso be based upon the hard re-

alitiea of today and not ephemeral mytha that may be pleaaing to
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LY .
the body politic. We must realize, for example, that some older

rural persons may never be employable or only marginally employabls.

A program such as Title V can provide them with dignity and self

respect, while enabling them to contribute to society. Theae in-

‘dividuals £ind welfare just as distasteful as those who claim to

be paying for it. Title V enables low-income older Americans to

move into the mainstream of our socisty by bccopinq taxpaying

citizens who are rendering valuablse serviges to people in their

communities.

NCBA's Runi Senior Employment Program (RSEP) has provided

hope wherg none existed. We have scught cut the most disadvantaged

in our acciety, found them, and provided them with jobs. Numerous

RSEP enrollese wers unesployed for long periods of time -- quite

often ten years or -on.yf
. ; ]

RSEP has also pzovi:dod a shot in the arm for the depressed
4 -

sconomics of rural ucllj‘ in the South.’

We have contributed direct-

ly and indirectly to the' sconomy of these localities by' providing

additionll ancln for m;il older pereons to purchass urgently

mocdod services, £ood, -and other necessities.

Title V is clearly an excellant investment for our Mation

because the SCSEP more than pays for itaelf by:

. L] : .
O Enabling older persons to become self-sufficient, instead

of relying on public aasistance programs-such as food stamps,

mdic;id. and Supplemsntal Security Income;

o aclpinq older m:iml to become placed in unlubudizcd jobl

(St

80 that they can becoms taxpaying citizcnly. .and, - T .

-

-~

\”

o Providing valuable services to lécal comtunities.

o Tt
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Por these reasons, vwe urgs the Committee tO continue to sup-
port the SCSEP. We further recommend that Title V be increased to
allow more older persons to pnrtifipat.. Clear and convlnging evi-
dcnco exists that there are many aged individuals who are able to
serve in their localities if gi;cn the chance. NCBA's Rsxv‘pro~
jects oftentimee have eight or nine applicants for cnch“pOlitlon.
The ratio would be higher, but project directors dé not want to
raise the hopes of older persons by advertising the prdqum more --
only to have their expectations dashed baecause a job does not exist.

A comprehensive incoﬁ. strategy must also focus on those older
persons who might otherwise slip between the cracks in our national
prbgrl-l. Expanding employmsent opportunitidp is vital and essential
!9: older rural persons who can work. However, about seven out of
eight individuals 65 or older do not or can not work for a variety
of reasons, such as failing health, lack of job opportnniéiol.
negative employer stereotypes about the desirability and feasibility
of hiring older persons, and othere.

NCBA believes that oldey Americans should have a decent and
livabls incoms. The Supplemental Sccurity«lnéomn program is designed
to build a federal floor under the incomes o!'th. aged, blind, and
disabled. The problem, though, is that the SSI standards are be-
low the government's own bare bénol poverty thresholds. NCBA's

'numbcr one priority for the rural aged, as well as all older Ameri-
cans, is to llimin‘t. poverty once and for all. H¥e believe that

elevating the federal SSI basic grant is the most effective and
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efficient means to achieve this objective. further reslize
that it may be necesssry to schieve this go k on an incrementsl
basis. But, this should not deter us from jenabling older per-
sons to live their final years in dignity fand ulti:npoce. A
Mstion with s q:ou‘naeioxrul product gxcee g $3 trillion --
the greatest gross nstiocnal p;oduct in history clesrly has

the resources to wipe out poverty for the oldozly. . ¢

\
Houeing

Bousing is the number one expenditure for the elderly. Many
c;ldaz persons spend st lesst cne-third of their income for housing,
and s eignificant percentage spand gubétantially more.

Inadequsts housing is s major problem for s lsrge segment of
our populstion today. But, it has resched crieie proportions for
low-income rursl Blscks who may be tucked swey in the hollows of
Appalschis or elsqwhere. Large numbers live in tarpaper shacks
that are not fit for human occupancy. They sre oftentimes with-
out common umiu.yio- that ve take for granted, such ss running
water, indoor toilets, bathtubs, or electricity. Their homes sre
ordinarily quite old. They were built in s Aifferent ers when
energy was substantislly chesper thH.n it is today.

' NCBA fsvors s bslanced response to the housing neede of the
rursl sged. We believe that the privste ssctor and sll levele of
governmant must work cooperstively not only to build more housing
but better quslity housing and st & price within the resch of
older persons who may be struggling on limited incomes.

113
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Our policies should sssist, where sppropriste, older pcr4
sons in remaining in their hone“l. This can be schieved with
comparstively little or no sdditional federsl expenditures.

Title V SCSEP enrollees, for ulublc, could provide more ho-‘
repsir and westherizstion services for older homeowners.

NCBA recommends thst the massive cuts propossd in FY '83
for the rursl housing programs administersd by the Farmers Home
Administrstion ba restored. The PY ‘83 budget would cut the
FnHA budget by about 69 percent, from $3.727 billion in fiscsl
yesr 1982 to $1.145 billion in 1983.

_ #e are deeply concerned about the enormous reduction in the
section 515 direct loan and grant program (from $940 million in
FY 1982 to $200 million in FY 1983) and the section 502 low-income
housing loan program (from $2.3 billion in PY 1982 to $%00 million
in FY 1983).

Oversll, the Administrstion's budget would -lu'h the number
of federslly sasisted housing units in rursl aress by 67%, from
109,034 in 1982 to 35,395 in 1983. Low-income rursl housing
would bo especislly hsrd hit, pl;l-ou.ng from 96,334 units in
1982 to 35,395 in‘1983. ‘

NCBA believes that the Administrstion’s propossl would oaly
add to the economic misery of the rursl sged and would intensify
their slresdy miserable housing conditions, especislly in the
rursl Black belt. We urge the Committse to take thp lssd in

restoring funds for rursl housing proqrmknd-muec-rld,ﬂ
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lclh hss sericus misgivings about the Administrstion's

\cusing voucher systeas. We reslize that the Mninile:puon is
V uecapetnqw.o make limited donln stretch further. 'l'hc problem,
however, tl me & voucher system ny *gimply bscoms 8 lubltdy or
windfsll for m.doqunec housing without lppnchbly improving the
supply of quality housing for older muc-m. whether they live .
in rursl or urban sreas. Older Blscks are likely to be the losers
- if s voucher plan should replsce future cosmitments tb build sec-
ticn 8, saction 202, ‘or public housing. The net impact is thst
there will be no suitable housing !ox.; the low-income rursl snd
"urban sged without federsl lesdsrship and financisl seeistance.

Transportation
A livable income in retirsment tl clesrly the number one
need of the rursl Blsck elderly. lo'nvo:. income nlonc will not
_ solve sll of the problems of older Blscks. nunet,l ssrvices
sre quite often j;ne ss important se income, and in scme instances
even more important. ‘

Transportation is probably ‘the number one service néed of .
older Blscks in rursl sress. Transportstion clesrly has s multi-
plier effect. 1If older Americans are mcbile, they “!Lnd it such
easier to sdjust to new problems that come with sdvancing sgs.

But without transportstion, the rursl slderly frequently experi-
ence s syndrome of deprivstion.

HCBA'S study in the Blsck Belt found thst 38 percent of the
rursl elderly need transportation -uuelncc: Older Blsck wompen
were in the grestest need of transportstion. S$ingle persons were
'slsc more likely to encounter transportstion problems thshi married

co{iplcl . 1
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Traneportation inadequacies are clearly inteneifying the
problens con!raz;inq older Americans. aoutln; t‘ckc for moast
younger psople == esuch e8 lyopping. going to the doctor, or
vicittnq'!ricndc -- can bcé;-.‘!otnidnblo obatacles for senior
citizene without care. 1In some caees, transportation difficul-
ties can make these choroi ineumountable obetacles. Too often,
the rural Bleck eged aie limited to these choices:

o Thoy can pay e neighbor vith their limited income to taeke
then to badly needed eerviceas;

o They can walk; or

© They can juct,db vithous

NCBA hae been told’time and again about rural elderly pereones
who l1ive in "eolitary tonfinemant® because they ere cut off from
their !Anily,V!ricndi.‘ind-coqnmnity c(nch they do not heve an
sutomobile. We heve helped by providing treneportation eecort
eervices. Our RSEP enrolleee have aleo responded to the cell by

. transporting older pereons to vital services. H
Much more can be done, though, end without requiring new pro-=

grams or eubetantiel edditional euns of monoy. FYor example, echool

buesee during off duty houre -- perhape from %:00 e.m. to 2:00 p.m.
-- cen take seniore shopping, to the doctor or other serviceas.
In cddition: surplue governmant vehicles could be eold et
f.ducod rates to rurel ares egenciee on eging. Moreover, more =
multipurpoee senior centere with minibuses ehould be eetebliehed

in rural eress to deliver a wide renge of services to the elderly:
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Concluaion .

NCBA wishea to commend the Committee again for ita leader-
ship in focuaing on the needa of ths rural aged. Their prodblems
have been overlooked to a large dagres because the elderly in
aparsely populated rural areaa are uaually not aa viaible nor aa
vocal aa their urban counterparta. But, their needs are real and
aerioua.

We believe our recommendaticna represent sound and ssnaible
approachea to L-prwi the quality of life for the rural uqc‘. Ve
\irge the Committee to support théas measures. NCBA stands ready,
willing, and able to work with the Committes to implement or work
for the enactment of thess proposals. '

.
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